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“Company”) is pleased to announce the audited results of the Company and its subsidiaries for
the year ended 31 March 2025. This announcement, containing the full text of the 2025 annual
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This announcement, for which the Directors collectively and individually accept full responsibility,
includes particulars given in compliance with the GEM Listing Rules for the purpose of giving
information with regard to the Company. The Directors, having made all reasonable enquiries,
confirm that, to the best of their knowledge and belief: (1) the information contained in this
announcement is accurate and complete in all material respects and not misleading or deceptive;
and (2) there are no other matters the omission of which would make any statement herein or in
this announcement misleading.

This announcement will remain on the “Latest Listed Company Information” page of the website
of the Stock Exchange at www.hkexnews.hk for at least seven days from the date of its publication
and on the Company’s website at www.sst-holding.com.
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CHARACTERISTICS OF GEM OF THE STOCK EXCHANGE OF HONG KONG

LIMITED (THE “STOCK EXCHANGE”)

BBBERZAAERAR ([HXF]) GEMZ5He

GEM has been positioned as a market designed to
accommodate small and mid-sized companies to which a
higher investment risk may be attached than other companies
listed on the Stock Exchange. Prospective investors should
be aware of the potential risks of investing in such companies
and should make the decision to invest only after due and
careful consideration.

Given that the companies listed on GEM are generally small
and mid-sized companies, there is a risk that securities
traded on GEM may be more susceptible to high market
volatility than securities traded on the Main Board of the
Stock Exchange and no assurance is given that there will be
a liquid market in the securities traded on GEM.

Hong Kong Exchanges and Clearing Limited and the Stock
Exchange take no responsibility for the contents of this report,
makes no representation as to its accuracy or completeness and
expressly disclaim any liability whatsoever for any loss howsoever
arising from or in reliance upon the whole or any part of the
contents of this report.

This report, for which the directors (the “Directors”) of Sau
San Tong Holdings Limited (the “Company”) collectively and
individually accept full responsibility, includes particulars given
in compliance with the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities
on GEM of the Stock Exchange (the “GEM Listing Rules”) for the
purpose of giving information with regard to the Company. The
Directors of the Company, having made all reasonable enquiries,
confirm that, to the best of their knowledge and belief: (1) the
information contained in this report is accurate and complete in
all material respects and not misleading or deceptive; and (2)
there are no other matters the omission of which would make any
Statement herein or in this report misleading.
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CORPORATE PROFILE
AN

Founded in July 2000, Sau San Tong Holdings Limited and its
subsidiaries (the “Group”) have established itself as one of the
leading beauty and slimming services providers over the past
years through the introduction of a series of innovative health
and beauty treatment and products as well as the provision of
the most professional and superior beauty and slimming solution
to our customers. The Group was listed on GEM of the Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (Stock Code: 8200) in November
2003 and is the first listed beauty and slimming company in Hong
Kong.

The Group currently has four beauty and slimming centres in
Hong Kong. These centers are under two brand names “Sau San
Tong” (original brand of the Group) and “IPRO” (acquired in 2015).
All these centers provide unique all-rounded personalized beauty
and slimming services, health management and anti-ageing
treatment programs etc.. Combining the effective treatments
and comprehensive follow up services, all programmes enable
customers to achieve their desired skin quality, weight and body
shape in the healthiest manner. The Group has been widely
recognized and highly praised for its outstanding products and
services.

To further diversify its businesses, the Group has acquired a
distribution business in Mainland China in 2005, which distributes
P&G’s personal care products in Shanghai, and cosmetic and
skin care products with famous brands like SK-II and Olay in
the eastern and western part of Mainland China. With years of
development, the distribution network is well developed and with
the additions of international famous brands.
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CORPORATE PROFILE
AL

With the existing beauty and slimming business and product
distribution business, the Group is well-equipped to provide the
best-in-class services to our customers.

In March 2015, the Group commenced a new business segment
of investment in securities, with a view that such business will
diversify the income stream of the Group and broaden its revenue
base. It may also improve the capital usage efficiency and
generate additional investment returns on the idle funds of the
Group.

In May 2016, the Group commenced another new business
segment of provision of money lending services. The Group
provided both secured and unsecured loans with terms ranging
from several months to 4 years. For unsecured loans, the Group’s
targeted corporations and individuals are small to medium
sized corporations which include both listed and non-listed
corporations and businessmen in various industries. The money
lending business will diversify the income stream of the Group
and broaden its revenue base in order to enhance the capital use
of the Group as well as the overall interests of the Company and
its shareholders.
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SUMMARY OF FINANCIAL INFORMATION OF THE GROUP
AEEMBEERHE

2025 2024 2023 2022 2021
—E-RE T mE —E-=F —F-=F ZEZ—F
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FAT FET FHET FHET FET
Revenue & 840,025 1,092,735 1,231,548 1,561,356 1,793,826
Cost of sales and services HERBRERE
provided A (790,428) (988,167) (1,132,424) (1,424,185) (1,649,340)
Gross profit E ] 49,597 104,568 99,124 137,171 144,486
Other revenue and other Hi iz &
gains or losses Hiwham sk EE 13,980 9,276 12,423 11,227 10,198
Selling and distribution costs ~ $4%& K& % $5pk A (37,881) (42,853) (45,634) (46,578) (53,908)
General and administrative ~ —#& RITHH X
expenses (71,618) (81,220) (72,242) (82,331) (106,279)
(Loss)/profit from operations &% (&) /%A (45,922) (10,229) (6,329) 19,489 (5,503)
Finance costs BEKA (725) (809) (426) (441) (893)
(Loss)/profit before taxation BBAT (E#E),/
gl (46,647) (11,038) (6,755) 19,048 (6,396)
Income tax expense EHAY (3,007) (3,353) (7,913) (5,156) (10,189)
(Loss)/profit for the year FR(ER)EF (49,654) (14,391) (14,668) 13,892 (16,585)
Non-current assets IRBEE 176,587 174,779 170,671 135,165 137,367
Current assets RBEE 594,317 668,577 730,673 826,032 845,408
Current liabilities RBAE (75,495) (83,248) (125,404) (140,033) (168,192)
Net current assets RBEEFE 518,822 585,329 605,269 685,999 677,216
Non-current liabilities kRBEE (5,786) (4,101) (234) (1,154) (6,299)
Net assets BERE 689,623 756,007 775,706 820,010 808,284
Capital and reserves BEXR#E
Equity attributable to owners S BR AR A
of the Company BEANER 714,656 770,034 789,647 807,443 800,276
Non-controlling interests IR ER (25,033) (14,027) (13,941) 12,567 8,008
Total equity BREE 689,623 756,007 775,706 820,010 808,284
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MANAGEMENT’S STATEMENT
BEERE

On behalf of the Board of Directors (the “Board”), | present the
annual report for the year ended 31 March 2025 (the “Year Under
Review”) to the shareholders of Sau San Tong Holdings Limited
(the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (collectively referred to as
the “Group”).

In 2024, although the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC”

r “China”) withstood external pressure and overcame internal
difficulties, and the national economy rebounded and made
solid progress in high-quality development, the retail and
services industries are experiencing persistently weak consumer
sentiment across various markets, exacerbated by a rapid
transformation in consumer behaviors and preferences, which
present significant challenges for the Group. This shift has made
it increasingly difficult to predict market trends and adapt our
strategies accordingly. Meanwhile, the global geopolitical tension
between different nations remained high. The overall operating
environment remains fraught with uncertainties. Productivity levels
have remained subdued during the Year Under Review, with local
retail sales primarily driven by domestic customers. Economic
activities have been hampered due to the uncertain economic
climate, further complicating our ability to navigate this landscape
effectively.

Apart from carrying out its core business in the professional
approach consistently during the Year Under Review, the
Group has also proactively identified different opportunities of
acquisitions and development.
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MANAGEMENT’S STATEMENT
BEE®RE

Founded in 2000, Sau San Tong has been established for 25
years. Regardless of the changes in economic and business
environment over the years, the Group has long been upholding
its founding beliefs, dedicated to address customers’ needs in
a sincere, caring, professional and devoted manner, abiding by
industrial ethics and conduct. Along the way, Sau San Tong has
been sharing ups and downs and evolving side by side with its
customers! Establishing the market leading position is a hard-
earned achievement. We will continue to adhere to the Group’s
principles, conduct and service attitude while introducing new
elements by launching innovative treatments and products,
leading Sau San Tong and its customers to continue the legends
of beauty. On top of expanding business, the management team
puts equal emphasis on corporate governance, risk management
and social services. These corporate social responsibilities are of
utmost importance to Sau San Tong’s sustainable development
in the long run. In the effort to build a harmonious society and a
prosperous future, Sau San Tong always proactively demonstrates
its care for the community, supports various welfare activities
and sets up a voluntary team to participate in various voluntary
services.

Looking forward, while the local economic growth outlook
remains unclear, geopolitical risks and U.S. tariff policies bring
significant uncertainties to the recovery and development of the
macro economy. The business environment offers both challenges
and opportunities. In response, the Group will methodically and
thoughtfully pursue brand repositioning, adapting our products
and services to meet the changing preferences and behaviors of

consumers who seek an elegant and healthy lifestyle.

Simultaneously, we will continue to examine the situation carefully
and adjust the Group’s development and investment strategies
in the effort of diversifying its business, which in turn will enable
us to respond to the ever-changing market environment and
maximise the interests of the Group and our shareholders as a
whole.
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MANAGEMENT’S STATEMENT
BEERE

Financial Review

In respect of the financial performance during the Year Under
Review, the Group’s overall revenue decreased from approximately
HK$1,092,735,000 in the previous year to approximately
HK$840,025,000 in the Year Under Review, representing a 23%
of decrease.

The gross profit for the Year Under Review was approximately
HK$49,597,000, with a decrease of approximately HK$54,971,000
as compared with approximately HK$104,568,000 for the same
period last year. The decrease in overall revenue was mainly due
to the decrease in revenue from the distribution sale of cosmetic
and skin care products, sale of health, beauty and related products
and the loss on the investment in securities. Revenue from
distribution sale of cosmetic and skin care products decreased
from approximately HK$1,015,567,000 to HK$803,747,000 of the
Year Under Review. The loss on the investment in securities was
approximately HK$34,383,000 in the Year Under Review. Revenue
from sale of health, beauty and related products decreased from
approximately HK$6,840,000 to HK$2,626,000 of the Year Under
Review.

The overall revenue decreased while certain segments performed
relatively stable. The revenue from provision of beauty and slimming
services slightly increased from approximately HK$57,465,000
to HK$60,770,000 during the Year Under Review. The interest
income from money lending slightly decreased from approximately
HK$8,094,000 to HK$7,265,000.

During the Year Under Review, general and administrative
expenses amounted to HK$71,618,000 representing a decrease
of approximately 7.1% or HK$9,602,000 from approximately
HK$81,220,000 last year. The selling and distribution costs
amounted to HK$37,881,000 representing a decrease of
approximately 11.6% or HK$4,972,000 from approximately
HK$42,853,000 last year.

The loss attributable to the owners of the Company increased
from HK$14,297,000 to HK$51,981,000 due to decrease of gross
profit netting of decreased general and administrative expense
and the selling and distribution costs.
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MANAGEMENT’S STATEMENT
BEE®RE

Appreciation

On behalf of the Company, | would like to express my sincere
gratitude to our shareholders, my fellow members in the Board
and our hardworking staff, as well as our loyal customers,
business partners and other stakeholders for their valuable
contributions and strong support for the Group. We will continue
to provide the market with high quality service and adopt the most
stringent controls and adaptable strategies to drive the Group’s
business development in the long term. With our persistent
dedication and relentless efforts, | am confident that the Group is
able to overcome any obstacle ahead and adhere to its vision and
mission to bring rewarding returns to all shareholders.

Mui Wai Sum
Executive Director

Hong Kong, 25 June 2025
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
EEENWN N

Business Review

In 2024, the global economy experienced generally stable
growth. However, demand from various international markets
contracted due to several challenges, including a high interest
rate environment, U.S. tariff policies, and tensions in Sino-U.S.
relations. Additionally, consumer demand remained lackluster, as
the overall market recovery was slow.

In China, the retail market made twists and turns in this uncertain
economy. The GDP growth in 2024 was approximately 5%,
which was in line with the official target. However, the economic
recovery was uneven. The retail sales slowed down, consumer
confidence was remained cautious. In Hong Kong, the unclear
external environment, the economic slowdown in Hong Kong and
rapid transformation in consumer behaviors and preferences pose
challenges to the Group. The Group’s management stayed vigilant
and closely monitored changes in the economic landscape. Well-
laid response strategies that fully leveraged the Group’s strengths
were formulated to actively adjust its business deployment.

For the Year Under Review, the Group recorded a revenue of
approximately HK$840,025,000, representing a decrease of 23%
from approximately HK$1,092,735,000 of last year. This was
mainly attributable to (i) the decrease of revenue from distribution
sales of cosmetic and skin care products by approximately
HK$211,820,000; (i) net loss of approximately HK$34,383,000
resulting from the investment in securities compared to net gain
of approximately HK$4,769,000 last year; and (i) the decrease
of revenue from sale of health, beauty and related products by
approximately HK$4,214,000.

The business of distribution of sales of cosmetic and skin care
products of Shanghai Dong Fang Ri Hua Sales Co. Ltd. (“Dong
Fang”) China suffered from the sluggish economic conditions
which led to a pull back in consumer discretionary spending.
The sales generated by Dong Fang dropped by approximately
HK$211,820,000.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BEEN®RD

The result of investment in securities negatively impacted due to
high interest rates and an economic slowdown in Hong Kong.
Global geopolitical tensions and tightened financial conditions,
stemming from significant interest rate hikes, created challenges
for stock markets worldwide. The Group suffered from a net loss
of approximately HK$34,383,000 of investment in securities in the
Year under Review.

The change in customer behaviours and preferences and the
slowdown of retail industry affected the Group’s provision of
beauty and slimming services. The Group followed its principles
by providing good quality products, professional services and
honest operation and empowered the Group to achieve a
remarkable result in the current financial year with an increase of
approximately HK$3,305,000 under this uncertain environment.

Last year, the Group recorded a decrease of HK$4,214,000
in sales of health, beauty, and related products in the year
under review due to the economic slowdown in Hong Kong.
However, the Group remains committed to introducing various
new products and launched a new product called Youth Bloom
Collagen Elixir (the “Collagen Elixir”). Collagen Elixir is a premium
beauty supplement designed to enhance skin health and elasticity.
Formulated with hydrolyzed collagen peptides, it helps reduce
fine lines and wrinkles while promoting hydration.The Group
keeps placing a great effort to promote our existing product, the
iPRO NMN Deluxe, and Collagen Elixir through different marketing
channels and cooperated with well established distributor for the
customers to access to our products.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BEENRRD T

The interest income from money lending business decreased
approximately from HK$8,094,000 to approximately HK$7,265,000
of the Year under Review. The Group reviews and approves the
application of the loans with high standard on due diligence and
in results, only qualified loans are made. In light of uncertain
market conditions, the Group remained prudent and cautiously
monitored the development of the Group’s money lending
business.

Loss for the year was approximately HK$49,654,000 as
compared with loss for the year of approximately HK$14,391,000
of last year. The reason for the loss is the decrease of overall
revenue netting of decreased general and administrative
expenses and selling and distribution costs. For the Year Under
Review, the Group recorded approximately HK$71,618,000
(2024: HK$81,220,000) and approximately HK$37,881,000 (2024:
HK$42,853,000) of general and administrative expenses and
selling and distribution expenses respectively.

As at 31 March 2025, cash and bank balances was approximately
HK$344,080,000 (2024: approximately HK$390,265,000),
whereas liquidity ratio (represented by a ratio of current assets
over current liabilities) was 7.87 (2024: 8.03), reflecting the
adequacy of financial resources.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
EEEN W& DN

Beauty, Slimming and Spa Centres

During the Year under Review, as the trend of Mainland-bound
Consumption, Hong Kong recovery was hindered by elevated
commodity prices, high interest rate and disrupted supply
chains impact on consumer confidence. Therefore, the Group
faced various negative factors such as increasing costs of sales,
rising salaries and inflating rentals. The beauty, slimming and
spa business was unavoidably affected to some extent in the
Year Under Review, but the Group backed by the strengths of
the brand and quality service recorded an increase of 6% in the
overall revenue of this business segment as compared to last
year.

The Group has a long history in the operation of beauty, slimming
and spa centres in Hong Kong. With extensive experience in the
industry and committed efforts for innovations, the Group has
continuously introduced sophisticated services and products
of the highest quality for its customers, winning the long-term
favour of its customers for its beauty and slimming products
and services while successfully establishing brand advantages
and customer loyalty. To further fortify its leading position in the
industry, the Group has introduced a number of new beauty,
slimming and anti-ageing treatments and machineries during the
Year Under Review.

As the first listed beauty and slimming company in Hong Kong,
the Group has consistently uphold the principles of quality
products, professional services and honest operation. Backed by
the strengths of the brand, the Group has won numerous awards
over the years and enjoys sound reputation in Hong Kong. It was
strongly trusted by its customers. With increasingly intensive
market competition, some industry players have resorted to all
possible means including dishonest sales methods to secure
their market shares. Coupled with various beauty and slimming
incidents during recent years and seriously weak and outdated
government supervision, customer confidence has been impaired.
This, however, has at the same time encouraged the customer
demand for quality beauty and slimming services. In view of this,
the Group will continue to provide quality products and services.
Maintaining the strategy of winning with quality, the Group will
continue to leverage on its professional and outstanding beauty
and slimming technologies, bring its brand visibility to the full
play, and operate with honest and honour, in order to win over the
consumers’ trust, secure a wider business coverage in the high-
end market and thereby realise sustainable growth and return.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BEENRRD T

Distribution Business in the PRC

Product distribution in the PRC is another core business of the
Group and is carried out by the Group’s subsidiary, Dong Fang.
Dong Fang is one of the top three distributors of P&G in the
greater China in terms of average sales in the PRC, and is the top
distributor in the East China area. It is responsible for the overall
distribution coverage in the Shanghai region and provides supply
and sales services to its customers via various channels, including
online platforms, electrical appliances merchants, department
stores channel, local modernised retail malls, supermarkets,
small-sized supermarkets, convenient stores, maternity stores
and cosmetic stores headquartered or regionally headquartered
in Shanghai. Products involved include OLAY skincare, Head &
Shoulders, Vidal Sassoon, Pantene, Rejoice, Pampers, Crest,
Safeguard, Whisper, Ariel, Oral-B and Gillette. Moreover, the
Company is responsible for the SK-Il business in East and West
China areas, covering Shanghai city, Zhejiang Province, Jiangsu
Province, Anhui Province, Henan Province, Shanxi Province,
Sichuan Province and Chongging city (8 provinces and cities
in total). In the Year Under Review, the business of distribution
sales of cosmetic and skin care products of Dong Fang recorded
a revenue of approximately HK$803,747,000, representing a
decrease of 21% from approximately HK$1,015,567,000 of
last year. The retail industry slowdown in China has dampened
discretionary spending, leading consumers to be more cautious
with their purchases. The retail sales in Dong Fang dropped
accordingly.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BEEN®RD

Health, Beauty and Related Products

The Group spares no efforts in keeping itself abreast of time and
marching at the forefront of the market. Through heavily investing
in the development and introduction of products embedding
advanced technologies and safe ingredients to enrich its portfolio
of health and beauty products, the Group targets to bring to its
customers a wider array of sophisticated product choices. This
will in turn further enhance the attraction of the brand name “Sau
San Tong” and “IPRO” and ensure the Group’s leading market
position.

During the Year Under Review, the Collagen Elixir, a newly
launched product, was marketed successfully. Going forward, the
Group will continue to launch different safe and effective products
that meet the different needs of its customers, helping them to
achieve beauty in a healthy way. We believe that the segment of
distribution of health and beauty products will continue to make a
stable contribution to the Group’s results in the time ahead.

R - XBERMEEEM

AEBEERNAKERYE EETEREREK-
AEEBEHEREXFAENIESBEGEA TRL
EMRERERDZER BHIEEERER
XPEmMEE EERBESTRESZEREL
EmEE AME-—FRATESE| RTEWR]
MR 2R ERAEERER MBS ZEE
HAT o

RAEREFE - ¥ L E®[Collagen Elixir]
MG & HK I - BERR  AEEGEEE D
EREEFPEESK - WALZE BRCEM:
HRABFUREEAKRERE - KMBE R

SAU SAN TONG HOLDINGS LIMITED &5 Z#=RAER AT

Annual Report 2024/25 FE K&

15



MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BEENRRD T

Securities Investments Business

As a move to expand its diversified business, the Group has
commenced the new segment of securities investments business
in March 2015 to put the idle funds of the Company into long-
and short-term investments in listed securities in Hong Kong
and other recognised securities markets in the overseas as well
as wealth management products purchased from banks and
other financial institutions, with a view to generate additional
income outside its retail business, to widen its revenue base
and minimise the risks of the Group on the overall, in order to
enhance the capital use of the Company as well as the overall
interests of the Company and its shareholders. This new segment
of securities investments has good contribution to the revenue
and profit of the Group in the Year Under Review. During the
Year Under Review, the Group has recorded a net loss of
approximately HK$34,383,000 from its investments in the Hong
Kong stock market and unlisted equity fund outside Hong Kong
compared with net gain of approximately HK$4,769,000 last
year. The investment portfolio included investments in a variety
of industries including construction, real estates, internet service,
retailing, food and beverage, finance, industry and education,
with the objective of minimising the risks while maximising the

return. As at 31 March 2025, financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss amounted to approximately HK$75,350,000 (2024:
HK$102,649,000).
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BEEN®RD

Money Lending Business

In addition, the Group engaged in money lending in order to
better utilise the idle funds to generate additional returns. The
Group is a legitimate money lender licenced in Hong Kong
under the provisions of the Money Lenders Ordinance. The
Group’s targeted corporations, which are small to medium sized
corporations including both listed and non-listed corporations,
and businessmen in various industries mainly acquired through
business referrals and introductions.

Loan applications are reviewed by the Group with a series of
due diligence work to assess the credit worthiness of applicants
and their financial ability for loan repayments. Due diligence
performed by the Group involves know your client (“KYC”)
procedures including obtaining information as to source and
amount of income, proof of other net assets, ID copy, address
proof, etc. The loan terms would be arrived at after considering
a combination of factors including prevalent market rates, the
financial strength of the applicants, the collaterals offered and
past credit history of the applicants with the Group.

Monitoring of loan repayment and recovery are a continuing
task of the Group. The Group has regularly communicated with
borrowers regarding their financial condition and search through
publicly available information to ascertain whether the borrowers
have any difficulty in making repayment on time.

There was a total of 41 (2024: 39) borrowers for the loan
receivables as at 31 March 2025.

The Group provided both secured and unsecured loans with terms
ranging from several months to 4 years. The Group has recorded
revenue of approximately HK$7,265,000 (2024: HK$8,094,000)
for the Year Under Review. As at 31 March 2025, the loans and
interest receivables from money lending business amounted to
approximately HK$67,569,000 (2024: HK$69,644,000).
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BEENRRD T

Credit Assessment System of the Group

In order to perform credit assessment on the loan applicants of
the Group, the Group conducts a series of due diligence work to
assess (i) the credit worthiness of applicants, and (ii) their financial
ability for loan repayments.

Due diligence performed by the Group involves know your client
(“KYC”) procedures, including but not limited to (i) obtaining
information as to source and amount of income, proof of other
net assets, copy of identity card, address proof, (ii) interviewing
the applicants to understand heir financial needs and repayment
abilities, (iii) inspecting supporting documents to verify the
information submitted by the applicants, and (iv) performing
background research and on-site visit.

Determination of Interest Rate

The interest rate charged on the loan portfolio by the Group was
subject to the macro-economic factors during the time of the loan
granted. The loan terms, including the interest rate, were arrived
at after considering a combination of factors including (i) the
prevalent market rates, (ii) the financial strength of the applicants,
(iii) the collaterals offered, and (iv) the past credit history of the
applicants with the Group.

Determination of interest rate, or the range of interest rate, is
assessed on case-by-case and dynamic basis taking into account
of totality of the circumstances (rather than on a bright-line test
basis) which could be varied over time. Generally, the ranges of
interest rate offered for the loan receivables could be summarised
as below. However, it does not form a bright-line test basis for the
Group to grant loan going forward and all relevant factors should
be considered on case-by-case basis from time to time.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
EEEN W& DN

Interest rates ranged from 6% to 12%

In general, for those loan applicants who could demonstrate
satisfactory creditworthiness and financial ability to make loan
repayment without any material findings by the Group, the Group
would offer interest rate mainly ranging from 8% to 12%, except
individual cases that the loan applicant could demonstrate
exceptionally promising creditworthiness and strong financial
ability, then the Group would offer a lower interest of 6% when
the general market offered very low interest rate.

For this group of loan applicants, satisfactory creditworthiness
was demonstrated by a combination of:

° good repayment record in the past;

° high consistency between the supporting documents
provided and the descriptions and representations made by
the loan applicant;

° sustainable operating history and track record; and/or

° reputable character and/or renowned brand name in their
respective industry.

Further, the loan applicants were able to demonstrate that

they possess the financial ability to make loan repayment by a

combination of:

° holding of good quality asset(s);

° relatively low debt to the income ratio of the loan applicant;

° relatively low gearing ratio and solid financial liquidity; and/or

° able to provide, if any, other personal guarantor or high
value collateral as additional proof of financial ability.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
EEENWN N

Interest rates ranging from 14% to 16%

During the course of conducting due diligence on the loan
applicant by the Group, if it comes to the attention of the Group
that there are any findings potentially raising additional concern
to the Group, regardless of such findings relate to the loan
applicant’s credit worthiness or the financial ability, appropriate
following-up steps will be taken by the Group.

If appropriate reasonable explanation could be provided by the
loan applicant, with the support of sufficient documents to justify
the loan applicant, that the Group could conclude the expectation
of the potential risk is still minimal, the Group would then tend to
charge an interest rate ranging from 14% to 16%, which is slightly
higher than the general range of 8% to 12%.

Interest rates ranging from 24% to 30%

For all findings in the due diligence process, the Group would
take appropriate follow-up steps to assess the impact of such
findings to the loan applicant’s creditworthiness and financial
ability. In the event that the findings causing a potential risk exists
but at an acceptable low level, and the loan applicant’s capability
to meet the financial obligation is considered adequate in the
event of adverse business or economic conditions, the Group
would then tend to charge a high interest rate ranging from 24%
to 30%, which is higher than the general range of 8% to 12% and
the range of 14% to 16%.

Interest rates ranging from 36% to 48%

In the event that, after conducting all reasonable steps to
following up the findings, the Group concludes the findings
could potentially elevated the vulnerability of the loan applicant,
particularly in the event of adverse change in business or
economic conditions, but the business or financial flexibility
available to the loan applicant could still support the serving of its
financial commitment, the Group tends to charge a premium high
interest rate ranging from 36% to 48%, which is notably higher
than the other interest rate ranges.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
EEEN W& DN

Since the potential risk of this group of borrowers are in general
higher than the others, the loan term would generally shorten to
two or three months only. For this type of high risk borrowers, the
Company would put through additional effort to closely monitor
the repayment progress to ensure the collectability. In particular,
the interest would typically be charged and paid on monthly basis
and the Company would closely monitor the borrower’s interest
repayment.

The Benchmark of Borrowers of the Group

The benchmarks that the customer should meet to become the
Company target/potential customers are mainly (i) satisfactory
credit worthiness, and (ii) the financial ability to make loan
repayment, having taken into account of all relevant factors
after performing the respective due diligence by the Group. The
followings are the key factors to be considered in assessing
whether the borrowers meet the above benchmark and up to the
satisfaction of the Group.

Corporate Customers:

To avoid a high level of concentration risk, prospective borrowers
are not restricted to a particular industry and the existing
borrowers are also not from a particular industry.

o The prospective borrowers should have principal business
operation in Hong Kong which could facilitate the Group’s
KYC procedures.

° Minimum amount of revenue/profit in the last 12 months and
minimum amount of total assets/net assets as at a particular
date are to be considered collectively but not in an absolute
pbenchmark. The value of collateral and the financial position
are also one of the factors to be considered. However, when
there is no guarantee or collateral attached, ratio of loan
amount to profit, ratio of loan amount to revenue and ratio
of loan amount to net assets value are to be considered
collectively.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BEENRRD T

The cash flow information and loan applicant’s budgeting, if
available, are other financial benchmarks acceptable to the
Group. These could solidify the Group’s understandings on
the loan applicant and facilitate the Group to estimate the
recoverability of the loan.

Length of operation history is considered but this is not the
only conclusive factor.

Legal cases and/or public news of the corporation are also
the factors to be considered.

Individual Customers:

No particular age group of prospective borrowers is
targeted.

No particular occupation of prospective borrowers is
targeted.

Minimum asset threshold are not set. However, other types
of asset proof and income proof are one of the key factors
to be considered to assess the financial solvency.

Legal cases and/or public news of the individual are also the
factors to be considered.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

EEENWmE DN

Overdue Loan and Actions Taken by the

Group

The following table sets forth the distribution of the balances of T &R#EFIANEBE R
the Group’s outstanding loan exposure to borrowers by size as at —EZWNFE=H
31 March 2025 and 31 March 2024:

B ER R AREE RN ITE

RMEEERERH DM -

Overdue for period Not yet due with maturity
BHREA HRIAMEDA A
Gross loans Net loans over
Interest  receivable receivable 1year  Over2
Tenure rates as at as at and years and
Principal amount BRHERRE Number  of the per 31 March Loss 31 March  within over  within  within  within
when the loan granted WAeHE of loan loan  annum 2025 allowance 2025 1year  1year  1year 2years 5years
RZBZTF RZBZEF
ZA=t-A ZA=+-§
HEKER HEWER 180 2FNE
EXHE ERE  ERE AE FRER RE OIFNR 1EULE 1FEHUR 2FBRA SEUR
Months % HK$'000  HKS'000 HKS$'000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HKS$'000 HKS'000 HKS'000
A % FET FET FEr FExr FEx TExn FEx  FEx
Less than or equal to DREAAZER5,000,000 1t048  7t048
HK$5 million BT M 1248 7248 67,015 (26,130) 40,885 4,187 968 15398 16,686 3,646
Over HK$5 million but less than or  #8i#5,000,0007% 7018
equal to HK$10 million DR E%R10,000,000 3t048 10to 36
B 3 3248  10Z36 24,500 (525) 23,975 - - 7,850 7,292 8,833
Total @zt 91,515 (26,655) 64,860 4,187 968 23,248 23,978 12,479
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BEENRRD T

Overdue for period ~ Not yet due with maturity

BHERA RAIAMIBAA

Gross loans Net loans over
Interest receivable receivable 1 year
rates as at as at and
Principal amount BRHERE Number  Tenure of per 31 March Loss 31 March within over within within
when the loan granted ok e ofloan  the loan annum 2024 allowance 2024 1 year 1 year 1year 2 years
et 11k:3 RZZ-ME
=A=+-H =A=t-H
HEKER fERER £
ENHE ERE  FAE BE EEAE B8 O1ENR AFNE MR 2FNA
Months % HK$'000  HK$ 000 HK$'000  HKS'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000
A % FET  FEL FEr  FET  FEr  FET TEr
Less than or equal to DRI AAER5,000,000 21036  7to48
HK$5 million B 39 2%36 7248 67,287  (18,022) 49,265 17,150 1492 14336 16,286
Over HK$5 million but less than ~ #885,000,0007% T2
or equal to HK$10 million PRFBER 91024
10,000,000% 7T 2 9&EM 10 13,500 (239) 13,261 - - 5,894 7,367
Over HK$10 million but less #81810,000,000% 7t {8
than or equal to PRFBER
HK$15 million 15,000,000% 7T = - - 6,024 (130) 5,894 - - - 5,895
Total it 86,811 (18,391) 68,420 17,150 1492 20230 29,548
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BEEN®RD

The Group has taken the following actions in recovering the
overdue loan amounts:

(i) issued demand letters to the borrowers;
(i) made calls to demand full repayment;

(i) enquired the borrowers the expected time to fully repay the
loan;

(iv) considered and continued to evaluate the cost and benefits
to take legal actions against the borrowers (for those
borrowers who could demonstrate that they are fully aware
of their overdue obligation; easily reachable by our Group;
committed to repay as soon as possible and continue to
make timely repayment of interest after the maturity date,
the Group may not take legal actions immediately which
could incur additional legal cost to us); and

(v) consulted external legal advisers and took legal actions
against the borrowers when necessary.

The Group applies general approach in measuring loss allowance
for expected credit loss (“ECL”) on loan receivable in accordance
with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standard (“HKFRS”) 9
Details of the ECL model are disclosed in the notes of the
consolidated financial statements.

In assessing default risk of loan receivables, the following factors
have been taken into consideration:

collateral ratio (if any);

- amount of actual shortfall;

- time of delay in payment;

- responsive to the Group’s request in repayment after
maturity of loan; and

- external market indicators that are expected to cause a
significant change in the borrower’s ability to meet its debt
obligation.

AW B ERFR  AEERRT M7 ¢

() TRE SR EE KK

(i) BERBHEN:
(i) MERAERBEHBRSEEERARERM

(iv) ZEEFEFGEEERA ?%HX}%?%G@J
MR Rk (R ERABEERETD
ﬁi?@,ﬁﬁéﬁc‘K%laﬁ%%éﬁ%ﬁﬁép%ﬁ‘
%%%’I?&i%?ﬂiﬁ&@lﬂﬂEI??:%@%E&H%E%
B AAREERLE K RIOAETE
(BETAeSAEEELBEINEZR
BR)) R

(v) FHHEIBEEBERLELZRREERA
REUER1TE -

AEERBEEEMBHREER ([FAEY B R
EEA] ) FOREA —MRIT A ERKERD
EHEERR ([BRBEEER] ) ZBREE-
BHREEBREEANFBEN G M B WMKRME
PR -

EREERESREORR
SR % -

i AEEZEET

- BRRE(WE):

- EBERTER#H:

E

- REERER:

HARKERE
&

BEREBIHR BESERHEFE

BHREHERAERENE LS AR
fe s 2B 5 FaiE -
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BEENRRD T

In particular, based on the ECL assessment for the Year Under Hr RIEEABBEFENEHEESEIG:
Review, the Group has made provision for several borrowers, HRN&EBDHBEZERATIREE 2B R0

which are set out in the following tables. TR
Means of Due diligence
Name of Relationship introduction Date of Terms of Outstanding Interest rate performed
relevant Client ~ with the Group to the Group agreement the loan amount  per annum by the Group
RALEH AEBEST
HBEEFE® EAKECEE ZHEN ELEL: ERAR KEESE ENE 2BBRT
HK$'000
FET
(Note)
(H1it)
Relevant Client 1 Independent By referral 05/01/2022 12 2,864 12%  Full KYC procedures including
third party obtaining information as to
source and amount of income,
ID copy and address proof
HEER BUE=H TN —T-Z 12 2,864 12% TREFIHZRE BHEER
—AAA BRKARRREEAHN &
13 3 Bl Rtk 3 8
Relevant Client 2 Independent By referral 01/03/2023 12 2,105 14%  Full KYC procedures including
third party obtaining information as to
source and amount of income,
ID copy and address proof
HBREF2 BIE=H i —TC=H 12 2,105 14% THREFHH2RE BHER
=A—-H BARBKARRREEAHN &
1 Bl A Rt F 8
Relevant Client 3 Independent By referral 01/03/2023 12 1,800 12%  Full KYC procedures including
third party obtaining information as to
source and amount of income,
ID copy and address proof
HEEF3 BUE=H N —Z-= 12 1,800 12% TEREFOHZ2RE SREER
=A—-H BRRARRReBEER F
R EIAR Rt E A
Relevant Client 4 Independent By referral 16/06/2022 12 395 10%  Full KYC procedures including
third party obtaining information as to
source and amount of income,
ID copy and address proof
HBEF4 BIE=H N —%-z 12 395 0% TREFIHZRE BREER
AATRE BRBARRREEAHN &

GRS S

Note: The amount represents the outstanding principal balance with accrued — ffit . % & BER S _AF A=+ HZAREE
interest as at 31 March 2025. e EHRRERTFIS -
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BIEER W

Name of

relevant Client

HEEF&W

Relevant Client 1

HEEF1

Relevant Client 2

HEEF2

K73

Outstanding
amount

REESHE
HK$'000
FET

2,864

2,864

2,105

2,105

Amount of
provision
during the
year ended
31 March
2025

BZE
—B-HF
=ZR=+—H
LFEE
ZBEEH
HK$’000
FET

2,864

2,864

1,405

1,405

Collateral
and/or
guarantee
obtained

sz
@
R/ RER

No

No

Event leading to impairments

BHREZEH

The loan receivable was reclassified from stage
2 to stage 3. The loan and the interest were
past due. Relevant Client 1 did not repay
the outstanding interest and principal after
negotiation. The Group sent the demand letter
and initiated legal actions. Relevant Client 1
was declared bankruptcy by the court.
EREREHFRREFTHBEEFEIRR -ERR
MEEEB KEER HETPIRAEER
BEMNERAE -AEEDELEMSE WERR
ERITE - MR P 18UER & M B E ©

The loan receivable was reclassified from stage
2 to stage 3. The loan and the interest were
post due. The Group communicated with
Relevant Client 2. The Group gradually received
outstanding interest and principal payments
after year end and the progress of interest and
principal settlement was improved.

BUERCHE2EREFT DR EFEIRR -ERR
MEEEBP AEECDBEBEF2ER A&
ERFEREESKRIREZMNERETEMNK A
MERKTEHEEEETHEARE -

SAU SAN TONG HOLDINGS LIMITED &5 Z#=RAER AT

Annual Report 2024/25 FE K&

27



28

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BEE R DM

Name of Outstanding
relevant Client amount

HEEF&W RAEESHE

HK$ 000

FET

Relevant Client 3 1,800
EREF3 1,800
Relevant Client 4 395
BEEF4 395

Amount of
provision
during the
year ended
31 March
2025

BZE
—B-HF
=A=+-—H
LFEE
ZRBEESHE
HK$'000
FET

1,500

1,500

395

395

Collateral
and/or
guarantee
obtained

sz
7 m
R/ RER

No

No
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Event leading to impairments

HHREZSEH

The loan receivable was reclassified from stage 2
to stage 3. The loan and interest were past due.
The request of delaying the payment of loan and
lead the impairment. The Group has received
the interest payments and part of the principal
after communicating with Relevant Client 3.

EREREHE2EREFTDREFIRR -ERK
MEEBH - THERERXRNFRKGERE K
HAMEFIBERE AEEEKENEREH

The loan receivable was reclassified as stage 3.
The loan and the interest were past due.
Relevant Client 4 did not repay the outstanding
interest and principal after negotiation. The
Group sent the demand letter and initiated
legal actions. Relevant Client 4 was declared
bankruptcy by the court.

EWEREADEEEIER - ERENEE B -
KERE HETP4RNRERERERNE K
ToAEEEHHESE  LRDUEETE - H
B P A AR B MR E -



MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BEEN®RD

Outlook

The Group’s performance was underperformed in the Year Under
Review. The Group keeps cautious to the volatile business
environment and the economy. The Group will continue to
consistently maintain a positive attitude to explore, research
and develop more sophisticated and effective health and beauty
products and professional treatments, in order to meet the
pursuit and demand for beauty and health by the ladies in Hong
Kong and China and in turn achieve stable growth and enhance
the performance of the Group’s core business. Meanwhile, the
Group is also devoted to the training of its people, with the aim to
ensure the consistence in the quality of operation and services of
the beauty, slimming and spa centres across different places.

In addition, parallel to its focus on the beauty and slimming
business, the Group will also utilise the abundant funds on hand
to identify new investment opportunities, including appropriate
and timely investments in securities, money lending and
properties, with the objectives of generating additional return,
broadening its revenue base, enhance the efficiency of capital
use and further promote the performance of the Group in different
areas. The Group will meticulously select sound investments with
high return potentials. Moving forward, the Group will concentrate
on bringing its strengths, customer base, reputation and other
advantages into full play in order to actualise stable growth
of its core business. This will be complemented with careful
investments in the effort to bring along more rewarding returns to
our investors.

AI=RE

RABBEFEA AEEZRBETRBEH- K
SEESHEONRANZEBRRENEBERER
HEE AEEEHEERS B 2BBEE
BOBERMBESZLE SBRZRBEXS
EmkEERRFERE DahEMb L TMEXE
REzERAFR BRBEER BALE
B2 LR KRR R AEEITEGRE
AT ERTIFRMEMR XD B8 RKEF
LDZEERERRGmETEERN—-

SN AEBEZEINEBTRBERRE 2R -
ﬁ@ﬂﬁitZEmﬁi'%éREﬁ&Q%
CBREEMNERREFS BELRDE
M%?iﬁ%@ﬁ~%%%@% REXRE
REAMGS E—FPREAEESTHZIRA -
$§I%@%%§_F WEASERENZ
RERE-BXA AKEEEIRELE
Hh BEFERMBEEIEITEES E2¥ZL
EBcRRER AREABRERE NEkR

REEGKRELREER-

SAU SAN TONG HOLDINGS LIMITED &5 Z#=RAER AT

Annual Report 2024/25 FE K&



MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
EEET W& DN

Corporate Social Responsibility

As a leader in the beauty and slimming industry, the Group is
dedicated to leading the way in enhancing the safety level of the
sector. We have always attached great importance to the safety
of our services and products and exercises stringent quality
control on its products. The machines and materials used in our
treatment services have passed vigorous safety tests and attained
international safety standards. Beauty and slimming consultants
and technicians of both the direct operations and franchise co-
operation businesses of the Group all received professional
training to ensure the provision of safe services of high quality.

Charity

Since its establishment, the Group has been actively partaking
in charity affairs and has set up the “Sau San Tong Volunteer
Team” in an effort to support different charity initiatives. During
the Year Under Review, the Group continued to make regular
charity donations in the pursuit for inner beauty, alongside with its
yearning for physical perfection.

SAU SAN TONG HOLDINGS LIMITED {65 Z#ERAER AR
Annual Report 2024/25 FE k&
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BEEN®RD

Capital Structure, Liquidity and Financial
Resources

Cash and bank balances as at 31 March 2025 were approximately
HK$344,080,000 compared to approximately HK$390,265,000
as at 31 March 2024. Gearing ratio of the Group was 0.2%
(2024: 0.1%), based on total of loans of HK$1,137,000
(2024: HK$1,009,000) and the net assets of approximately
HK$689,623,000 (2024: approximately HK$756,007,000). As at
31 March 2025, liability of the Group amounted to approximately
HK$81,281,000 (2024: approximately HK$87,349,000), including
trade and other payables of approximately HK$56,088,000
(2024: approximately HK$64,301,000) arising mainly from the
daily operations of our subsidiary, Dong Fang and contract
liabilities of approximately HK$9,567,000 (2024: approximately
HK$11,628,000). The decrease of trade and other payables was
consistent of decrease of revenue. The liability was intended
to be financed by internal resources of the Group. The liquidity
ratio of the Group represented by a ratio of current assets over
current liabilities was 7.87 (2024: 8.03), reflecting the adequacy
of financial resources.

Treasury Policy

The Group adopts a prudent approach towards its treasury
policies. The Group evaluates the financial condition of its
customers regularly to mitigate the credit risk. The average
outstanding days of the Group’s trade receivable was maintained
at below 90 days. To manage the liquidity risk, the Group closely
monitors its liquidity position to ensure the liquidity structure of
the Group’s assets, liabilities and commitments and to ensure
the fulfillment of its funding requirements. The Group has no
investments in derivatives, bonds or structured financial products.

Foreign Exchange Exposure

Since the assets, liabilities, revenue and payments of the Group
are mainly denominated in Hong Kong Dollars and Renminbi, the
Group considers that there was no significant exposure to foreign
exchange fluctuations.

BEXRB RBESRYBER

RZEZRAF=A=+—RAZHReRETHE

49 7344,080,000/8 Tt MW ZE Z_MF = A
=+ —H A% A390,265,0008 L AEE 2
BEAGBHLEA2% (ZE-WMF:01%)
TR B A48 581,137,0008 ¢ (—Z T — PO 4F:
1,009,000/ 7t ) & & & ¥ 58 £1689,623,000#
JT (ZZ U4 : £9756,007,000/8 70 ) 51 & -
—E-RAF=A=+—RH AKEEZEENAE
81,281,000/ 7T ( = F = /Y 4 : 987,349,000
BIL) RREERMNESREREMEMNFKIELY
56,088,000/ 7T ( —F = Y 4 : #964,301,000
BIL) (EEREASEMBAR —R4H 2 H
BEB)UREHBERNIS67,0008 T (=F
Z P4 #911,628,000/8 L) - BT B HHIER
HiENFERBRESKEBEFT EEAE
BRINAAEB 2 ABERBN AEEBZRE
B X (AR EELARDBEZLLXR)A
7.87(ZZF W4 :8.03) RMYPFBKERTRE -

B BE

AEERREBEEZEFBER AEEE SRS
HEPZBMBIRRABEEERR KNEEE
WE SHRE PR ER KRR - BE
BErgEeRR ~TEETYNEEERPES
A AERAEEZEE - BERAEZR
BECHEB UERBRAKEANENEESH
FASEYERETATAE BFUEBK
ETREmM-

5B fE B
MRAEEZEE BE WS RAREEMN
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BEENRRD T

Use of Proceeds

The Group completed the Rights Issue on 3 March 2017 resulting
in net proceeds of approximately HK$352,000,000. As at 30
November 2023, the board of directors (the “Director(s)”) of the
Company (the “Board”) has resolved to change the proposed use
of the unutilised Net Proceeds. The detail of the used of proceed
is as follows. For further details of the change in use of proceeds,
please refer to the announcement on 30 November 2023.

Revised
allocation Actual
of unutilised amount
Original Net Proceeds utilised
allocation as at 30 during the
of the Net November year ended 31
Use of Net Proceeds Proceeds 2023  March 2025
RZBZZF =k
+-B=+R =2Z1%
Frigi8 HEBHA =ZA=t-8
Rz FMBREFE LEEZEH
FBEREFERE REAR ZBBIIE FREBRESE
HKS$ million HKS$ million HK$ million
BEET BE¥ET BEET
Acquisition of commercial, industrial and residential 174 58 -
properties situated in the PRC and Hong Kong
(the “Properties Acquisition”)
WRURTEAREE EE TXREENE
(k&)
Repayment of the outstanding amount due to Dr. 20 20 -
Cheung Yuk Shan, Shirley under the Convertible
Note
EBRTARZEATENRERBEL 2 RENHKE
Development of the Group’s money lending 40 78 -
business
RRARE HEEH
Renovation of offices and shops in the PRC and 60 50 1
Hong Kong
BHTEAREARAERESR
Development of securities investment business 30 30 -
EREFRAEH
General working capital of the Group and/or 28 116 34.5
investment opportunities
AEE-REBASR /ARARE
Total 352 352 35.5
M@zt
Note:

The expected timelines for utilising the remaining Net Proceeds is based
on the best estimation of the present and future business market situations
made by the Group. It may be subject to further change based on the future
development of the market conditions.
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FRGRIERE

AEER-_Z—+tF=A=B=KHER E
A BT 15 SRIEF BE £9352,000,0008 Lo R =&
—=Ft+t—HA=1TR ARAEBER([EF])
S([EFg| )DHRELA R AAEREA
FRECEZRE - MEHRERZ ZF BRI
T -FHRENMBEREREZE-THE F
2UBERA T _=Ft+—-A=THZR’fH-

Utilised Remaining
amount of the balance of the

Expected timeline
for unutilised

Net Proceeds Net Proceeds  Net Proceeds
as at the date as at the date  as at the date of
of this report  of this report  this report (Note)
REARERS REAREAH RABEAHEADA
RERERE BTHRE AERERE
ZEBREE TEEE  ZEERBER (W)
HKSE million HKS million
BEET EE¥T
21.0 37.0 By 31 December 2027
ZERCAEFZAZ+—AE
20 - -
78 - -
20.8 29.2 By 31 December 2027
ZECEFTZAST AR
30 - -
95.9 20.1 By 31 December 2026
ZECZAFTZAZT AR
265.7 86.3
wiE:

PRABKTASREFR 2 AARRRDERANEERY A
Al R AR R TR 2 SR E M E - WA BEAR B R 2R T
RERMEHE - T ER-



MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
EEENW& N

Net Assets

As at 31 March 2025, the Group’s net assets amounted to
approximately HK$689,623,000 compared to approximately
HK$756,007,000 as at 31 March 2024. No bank deposits have
been pledged for certain banking facilities of the Group as at 31
March 2025 and 2024. There are no other charges on the Group’s
assets as at 31 March 2025 and 2024.

Contingent Liabilities

As at 31 March 2025 and 2024, the Group had no material
contingent liabilities.

Employee Information

As at 31 March 2025, the Group had 194 (2024: 213) employees.
During the year, the Group’s total staff costs amounted
to approximately HK$54,104,000 (2024: approximately
HK$56,617,000).

The Group’s remuneration policies are formulated on the basis of
the performance and experience of individual employee and are in
line with practices of local markets in which the Group operates.
In addition to salary, the Group also offers to its employees other
fringe benefits including share option, provident fund and medical
benefits.

Share Option Scheme

The Group has a share option scheme whereby qualified
participants may be granted options to acquire shares of the
Company, under the terms and conditions stipulated therein, as
incentives or rewards for their contributions to the Group. During
the year ended 31 March 2025, the aggregate of 3,001,976
outstanding options allow the subscription of 3,001,976 shares
of the Company pursuant to the share option scheme adopted on
24 February 2016.

EEFHE

RZZE-_RAF=ZA=+—H AEBZEETF
B #) /689,623,000 L MR ZEZMF =
A=+—HEAI% A756,007,0008 L - R =%
THER-ZE-NE=ZA=+—08" HERLRT
FREpgmeE T AEB 2 RITREERR K=
ERFRZE_WMF=A=+—H KEH
S 4 H fth & EE KA o

HAREE
RZBE-_RAFR-_ZFE_NF=ZA=Z+—H &
EETEEARARBE-

EBEEHR

RZE-_RAF=ZA=+—H AEEEHF194
FZ(ZEZMNF:213R)EE-FN AEEZ
B TR AN4REE A A54,104,0008 L (ZF =M
£F 1 4956,617,000 7T ) °

AEBEZHMERKEENBE 2 RRLER
HE YA AEEKEMER 2 EHMMISE
BlofrFrEsN REEIRAEEBRHEE MR
SMER BREBERE AEEREREN-

B RERT 8l
AEERE-ERRESE Bl AEHS

HEAREE PR A 2GR AR EE T
BARRIRNDCERE EFARSHAEEE
PEBRE KR - BE_ST_AF= A
=+—HLFE 4H*HF3001,976{0 A KT
ErEREATRER - _A-+WmA
R4 2 B R 82 883,001,976 AN 2 7] %

{/\ 5
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BEENRRD T

Future Plans

The Group will continue to spare no efforts in the development
and introduction of different sophisticated and innovative
treatment, products and machines of supreme quality to nurture
our portfolio of services and products into one that is diversified,
accommodated to market demands and attractive to new
customers. We will however adopt a more careful approach
under the uncertainties in the macroeconomy and operating
environment at present.

Seeing the increasing influence of the social media in Hong Kong,
the Group plans to increase its promotional efforts on different
social media platforms in order to increase the awareness of the
younger generation for our brands name Sau San Tong and IPRO,
and thereby broaden the Group’s customer base.

The Group will also increase the investment of the abundant funds
on hand into securities, money lending, properties and other
opportunities. Apart from the generation of additional investment
return, it can also open up new revenue bases and promote the
efficiency of capital use, and thereby procure more rewarding
return to our shareholders.
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DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT PROFILE

EENSREEAERE

Directors
Executive Director

Mr. MUI Wai Sum (“Mr. Mui”), aged 37, is an Executive
Director and joined the Group in December 2014. He is also a
member of the Company’s nomination committee. He also holds
directorships in various subsidiaries of the Company. Mr. Mui
is a Certified Public Accountant of the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants. He holds a Bachelor of Business
Administration degree in General Finance and a Master of Arts
degree in Philosophy from the Chinese University of Hong Kong.
Mr. Mui had worked in Corporate Restructuring Services for
an international accounting firm. He has extensive experience
in corporate finance, corporate restructuring and securities
investment.

Mr. LEI Nelson (“Mr. Lei”), aged 37, is a Certified Public
Accountant of American Institute of Certified Public Accountants
and also certified as Certified Management Accountant of the
Institute of Management Accountants. Mr. Lei holds a bachelor
degree of Arts in Applied Mathematics and Statistics from
University of California, Berkeley. He also has a Master degree
of Science in Electronic Commerce and Internet Computing
from The University of Hong Kong. Mr. Lei has over 10 years of
working experience in accounting, risk management and asset
management. Mr. Lei is the Independent Non-executive Director
of Skymission Group Holdings Limited (a company listed on the
Main Board of the Stock Exchange, stock code: 1429) since
15 November 2024. He has been the Company Secretary of
hmvod Limited (a company listed on the GEM Board of the Stock
Exchange, stock code: 8103) from 20 November 2023 to 14
March 2024.

55
BOTEE

BEREE(IEBEE]) =T tm HTE
ERE-WUET_AMBAEE - BT
ARAZREZEERE -BRIRARAZME
MBARETEERK - BEERTEGM
REZAMEAM -BEERBEEFEPXAE
THERETEU (ZTBEHRAMB) REEX
BEITEM-REERN —FAEESIMEL
e REARBML- NEERE EXEMA
LREFRETEEBE=ERER-

EREXE([ERE]) =ZTtH AEH
TMestmiperEMestam TAERER
i eradMERgsm-TEEHR/E
BEmMMARENREIREAEERATES
TEM-BNEBEBEREEFHH KB
TRERMBELTEM -FTEERSFT EREE
NEEEBTAHABIOF T EER B -
—MF+—At+RBR ZhEEETRTER
TRERAR (—EREBERMER T Z2AA
RORIE 1429) 2 B ERTEET - R _F
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Independent Non-executive Director

Ms. TSANG Tsz Nok, Aleen (“Ms. Tsang”), aged 37, joined
the Group in December 2022 as an Independent Non-executive
Director, and also a member of the audit committee and the
nomination committee and the chairman of remuneration
committee of the Company. Ms. Tsang is a certified public
accountant of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. Ms. Tsang holds a bachelor degree of Business
administration in information systems from the University of Hong
Kong. Ms. Tsang has over 10 years of working experience in
auditing and accounting profession.

Mr. LAU Wai Leung, Alfred (“Mr. Lau”), aged 45, is an
Independent Non-executive Director and joined the Group in
December 2016. He is the chairman of the audit committee,
member of the remuneration committee and the nomination
committee of the Company. He has over 21 years of working
experience in accounting, corporate finance, debt restructuring
and private equity investment. Mr. Lau holds a bachelor
degree of business administration from City University of Hong
Kong. Mr. Lau is a member of American Institute of Certified
Public Accountants and also is a certified public accountant in
Washington State, USA.

Mr. Lau is the Independent Non-executive Director of Sky Light
Holdings Limited (a company listed on the Main Board of the
Stock Exchange, stock code: 3882). Mr. Lau has also been
an Independent Non-executive Director of Jianzhi Education
Technology Group Company Limited (a company listed on
NASDAQ), stock code: JZ) and the Independent Non-executive
Director of Creative Global Technology Holdings Limited (a
company listed on NASDAQ, stock code: CGTL).

Mr. Lau was the Company Secretary and the Executive Director
of Risecomm Group Holdings Limited (a company listed on the
Main Board of the Stock Exchange, stock code: 1679) during the
period from 3 July 2020 to 31 July 20283.

Mr. Lau was an independent non-executive director of Xinming
China Holdings Limited (a company listed on the Main Board of
the Stock Exchange, stock code: 2699) from 18 November 2021
to 12 October 2024.
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Mr. AU Siu Lun (“Mr. Au”), 49, is an Independent Non-executive
Director who joined the Group in May 2020. He is a member
of the audit, remuneration, and nomination committees. Mr.
Au graduated from the University of Hong Kong in 1998 with
a degree in Finance and brings over 26 years of professional
experience in information technology and artificial intelligence
research and development.

Mr. Au currently serves as Chairman and Chief Architect of Oxmd,
a medical and healthcare Al company specializing in developing
domain-specific Al models. In this role, he leads the company’s
strategic and technical direction, overseeing the research and
development of scalable Al architecture and solutions aimed at
transforming the medical and healthcare landscape through Al
technologies.

Senior Management

Dr. KWAN Fei Ying (“Dr. Kwan”), aged 41, is the chief executive
officer of the Company. Dr. Kwan joined the Company in December
2015 and is responsible for the overall management, business
strategy and development of the Group. She is also involved in
the formulation of various aspects of the Group’s policies. Dr.
Kwan holds an honorary doctorate degree from the International
American University, U.S.A. and has more than 19 years of
experience in the beauty and slimming industry. Dr. Kwan has
served as the management of a beauty and slimming company in
Hong Kong.
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Introduction

The Board presents this Corporate Governance Report in this
annual report for the year ended 31 March 2025.

The Board assumes overall responsibility for the leadership and
control of the Group. It believes in good corporate governance
practices that strengthen investors’ confidence, facilitate the
development of the Group, and increase transparency in the
operation of the Group, ultimately striving for the long-term
interest of the Group and enhancement of shareholders’ value.

The Board has reviewed the Group’s corporate governance
practices and is satisfied that the Company has complied with the
code provisions set out in the Corporate Governance Code and
Corporate Governance Report (the “Code”) contained in Appendix
C1 of the GEM Listing Rules throughout the year ended 31 March
2025, except for the following deviation:

Code provision C.2 and C.2.7

Code provision C.2 stipulates the role of the chairman of the
Board. The Company does not have the chairman of the Board
and hence does not compiled with code provision. The Company
has two executive directors who have performed part of the
function of the chairman of the Board.

Code provision C.2.7 stipulates that the chairman of the board
of directors should at least annually hold meetings with the
non-executive directors (including independent non-executive
directors) without the executive directors’ presence. The
Company does not have the chairman of the Board of directors.
The management of the Company considered that it was
unnecessary as it would be more transparent and efficient to let
the Independent Non-executive Directors express their views to
all Executive Directors in the meetings of the Board. Besides, the
management of the Company always welcomes all Independent
Non-executive Directors to communicate with them directly via
email or phone to discuss any matters of the Company from time
to time.

SAU SAN TONG HOLDINGS LIMITED {65 Z#ERAER AR
Annual Report 2024/25 FE k&

515

A

o

EEeRXAFRARZBEE_FT_0F
St BLEFEZACEERRSE

EEeAETARERASE EREF -&
ZEMERMEEELATRABRSKREEREL
REAEEERALRRESAKEER ERAE -
REFDMARERENS  RIATBREE

EFZeCEHNAEB 2 EERTH YEM
ARBRBE_ZE_AF=-A=1+—HILEFE
B — B & FGEM L1 45 Bl B 8xC1 P & 2 @
EERTAIRDEERAME IS 2 FAEX
(T=RRI)) - HELA T IR BEBR AN

FHIM%E X C.2KC.2.7

SHAGRXCAIAEFEETRAC - ARRAY
BEEETF HTEBRBTUKEX-ARAAE
MEHTEFENTHEOEFTSEEME-

STRAMGRXC 2. 7RI BEX QX RAELBFA
FRTEF(BERBUFATES)RITEH
—RHTEFIAEG ARAYEEEE
TR -ARAEEERS REFESEHL B
VIHMTESFANEERRBRULAMARITE
ERABRFZEH - AT B ST I ST RIME -
BN ARREEE -—EHBEM AR IERTT
EERBENREFTREZERIRT WA
AARARZEMER-



CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
SREARE

Code provision B.2.2

Code provision B.2.2 stipulates all the non-executive directors
should be appointed for a specific term, subject to re-election.
The term of office for non-executive directors is subject to
retirement from office by rotation and is eligible for re-election
in accordance with the provisions of the Company’s bye-laws.
At each annual general meeting, one-third of the directors for
the time being, (or if their number is not a multiple of three, the
number nearest to but not less than one-third) shall retire from
office by rotation. As such, the Company considers that such
provisions are sufficient to meet the underlying objective of this
code provision.

Code provision C.1.6

Code provision C.1.6 stipulates that independent non-executive
directors and other non-executive directors, as equal board
members, should attend general meetings of the Company and
develop a balanced understanding of the views of shareholders.
Ms. Tsang Tsz Nok, Aleen, Mr. Lau Wai Leung, Alfred and Mr.
Au Siu Lun being the Independent Non-executive Directors,
attended the annual general meeting of the Company held on 20
September 2024.

Code provision D.1.2

Code provision D.1.2 stipulates that the management shall
provide all members of the board with monthly updates.
Management considers that quarterly updates and periodic
instant updates when developments arising out of the ordinary
business instead of monthly updates are sufficient for the Board
to discharge its duties. Besides, during the Year Under Review,
the Executive Directors have provided, and will continue to
provide, to all Independent Non-executive Directors updates
on any material changes to the position and prospects of the
Company, which are considered to be sufficient to provide
general updates of the Company’s performance, position and
prospects to the Board and allow them to give a balanced and
understandable assessment of the same to serve the purpose
required by the code provision D.1.2.
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Directors’ Securities Transactions

The Company has adopted a code of conduct regarding
Directors’ securities transactions on terms no less exacting than
the required standard of dealings set out in Rules 5.48 to 5.67
of the GEM Listing Rules. Having made specific enquiry of all
Directors, all Directors confirmed that they had complied with the
required standard of dealings and its code of conduct regarding
Directors’ securities transactions throughout the year ended 31
March 2025.

Corporate Culture and Strategy

The Board has set the following values to provide guidance
on employees’ conduct and behaviors as well as the business
activities, and to ensure they are embedded throughout the
Company’s vision, mission, policies and business strategies:

Integrity: do the right things;

° Excellence: deliver our products and services excellence;

o Collaboration: work better together;

o Accountability: accountable for our commitments;

o Empathy: care about our stakeholders; and

° Sustainability: commit to a sustainable future.

The Group will continuously review and adjust, if necessary,
its business strategies and keep track of the changing market
conditions to ensure prompt and proactive measures will be taken

to respond to the changes and meet the market needs to foster
the sustainability of the Group.
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Board of Directors
Composition

As at 31 March 2025, the Board comprised of five Directors,
including two Executive Directors and three Independent Non-
executive Directors. The composition of the Board during the year
is set out as follows:

Executive Directors
Mr. Mui Wai Sum
Mr. Lei Nelson

Independent Non-executive Directors
Ms. Tsang Tsz Nok, Aleen

Mr. Lau Wai Leung, Alfred

Mr. Au Siu Lun

The composition of the Board reflects the balance of skills and
experience appropriate for the requirements of the Company’s
business and for the exercise of independent decisions. The
Company has three Independent Non-executive Directors which
is more than half of the Board. They are professionals in different
areas and provide independent opinions based on their expertise.

Biographical details of the current Directors are set out in the
section headed “Directors and Senior Management Profile” on
pages 35 to 37.

The emoluments of the Directors are determined by the Board of
Directors on recommendation of the Remuneration Committee
with the reference to their respective duties and responsibility
with the Company, the Company’s performance and current
market situation. Details of emoluments of the Directors for the
Year Under Review are disclosed in note 7 to the consolidated
financial statements.
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Functions, Roles and Responsibilities of the Board

The Board is responsible for the overall management of the
Company, undertaking the responsibility to lead and control
and to promote the success of the Company through providing
direction and supervision. All Directors are bound by their duties
to make objective decisions in the interests of the Company.
The Board is responsible for the major affairs of the Company,
including the approval and supervision of all major policies,
overall strategies, internal control and risk management systems,
material transactions (particularly transactions involving conflict of
interest), financial information, appointment of Directors and other
material financial and operating matters. Major corporate matters
that are specifically delegated by the Board to the management
include the preparation of annual, interim and quarterly accounts
for approval by the Board before publication, execution of
business strategies and initiatives adopted by the Board,
implementation of adequate internal control systems and risk
management procedures, and compliance with relevant statutory
requirements and rules and regulations.

The Directors have distinguished themselves in their field of
expertise, and have exhibited high standards of personal and
professional ethics and integrity. The Board is of reasonable size
and composition to provide checks and balances that safeguard
the interests of the shareholders and the Company as a whole.
All Directors have given sufficient time and attention to the
Company’s affairs.

Independence

As at the date of this report, the Company has three Independent
Non-executive Directors, at least one of whom has appropriate
professional qualifications or accounting or related financial
management expertise under Rule 5.05 of the GEM Listing Rules.
The Company has received from each of the Independent Non-
executive Directors a confirmation of independence pursuant
to Rule 5.09 of the GEM Listing Rules. As at the date of this
report, the Company in its best knowledge considers all of the
Independent Non-executive Directors to be independent.
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Each Independent Non-executive Director is required to inform
the Company as soon as practicable if there is any change that
may affect his/her independence.

There is no relationship (including financial, business, family or
other material/relevant relationship) among the members of the
Board.

Board Meetings

The Board regularly meets in person or through other electronic
means of communication at least four times a year to, among
other matters, review past financial and operating performance
and discuss the Group’s direction and strategy. Appropriate
notices of regular Board meetings are given to all Directors,
who are all given an opportunity to attend and include matters
in the agenda for discussion. Senior Management provides to
the Directors information on activities and development of the
business of the Group from time to time. The Company Secretary
takes detailed minutes of the meetings and keeps records of
matters discussed and decisions resolved at the meetings. Both
draft and final versions of the minutes are sent to all Directors
for their comments and records, and such minutes are open for
inspection with reasonable advance notice.

The Directors can seek independent professional advice in
performing their duties at the Company’s expense, if necessary.
According to the current Board’s practices, should a potential
conflict of interest involving a substantial shareholder or Director
of the Company arise, the matter is discussed in a Board
meeting, as opposed to being dealt with by written resolution.
Independent Non-executive Directors with no conflict of interest
should be present at meetings dealing with conflict issues. When
the Board considers any proposal or transaction in which a
Director has a conflict of interest, the Director declares his/her
interest and abstains from voting.

If a substantial shareholder or a Director has a conflict of interest
in a matter to be considered by the Board which the Board
has determined to be material, the matter should be dealt with
by a physical Board meeting rather than a written resolution.
Independent Non-executive Directors who, and whose close
associates, have no material interest in the transaction should be
present at that Board meeting.

WHBRITMAETERBIEZES AEE
MEMTEEARAEAMTEATRERAEAR

AR

EFEeXNERYBEANER(BEREME ¥
%Kik HEMEXR AEBEREE)

Exged

EFENERGNEREMETRANAEF
ROBITOREREZ N (EFRFE)EHA
EHBREERT UERHRAKREZT R M
RE - 2RESEREACETSTHEER
M EEIRBREHFERTWEENIFER-
BREEABETHAERRHEBNAERZE
BEBLBERZER RAMESIFLFERELZ
FRLE URFEFLATHRFARBERZ
T -BRALBERXARKRRATFET
PIEESEUHAEAREE R RFRE M%EE
BEBRELAEMNEBER TAIHER-

EENETERBHAISRKBYEXER &
AEARBAXN(NFE) REBNEFS
ZEH HARBDZIERRIEET S REHE
NEEFR FRAEFESNEZEER LTW
MEFEBREARBZREE LB S RMNEF
RZBIAFPTEEKELFER UKEEF
REH - MEFERAREEFNENRZRRS
TEEMNSTR AEREFARRENG
FTHRERE-

EATZRARETHEEZTEHTERNER
THEEESFERREANTNRER EFCE
IZFHBETEFER(MIFETERE) A
ARE - EXFTFAGREEEHEATRE
EAMGSNBILFATETRZELEABANE

P —
ETgH-

SAU SAN TONG HOLDINGS LIMITED &5 Z#=RAER AT

Annual Report 2024/25 FE K&

43



CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
EEARE

Nine meetings of the Board were held during the year. The
attendance of each Director at the meetings of the Board is set
out below:

FRNEFEHEBETNLREZ -BEFHFE
EEERZIBEREINMT :

Number of meeting

attended/held Attendance rate

Name of Directors EEHS HEBITEBRE &R
Executive Directors BTESE

Mr. Mui Wai Sum BEREE 9/9 100%
Mr. Lei Nelson FWELEE 9/9 100%
Independent Non-executive Directors B FEHITESE

Ms. Tsang Tsz Nok, Aleen BIEHLZ T 9/9 100%
Mr. Lau Wai Leung, Alfred 2ERSLE 7/9 78%
Mr. Au Siu Lun &= JK fm 5E & 9/9 100%
Appointment and Re-election of Directors ZRARERES

The Company uses a formal, considered and transparent
procedure for the appointment of new Directors. The proposed
appointments will be considered and if thought fit, approved by
the Board after due deliberation and upon recommendation of the
Nomination Committee.

All Directors (including the Independent Non-executive Directors)
are appointed for a specific term and are subject to retirement
by rotation and re-election at least once every three years at the
annual general meeting (“AGM”) of the Company in accordance
with the provisions of the Company’s Articles of Association.

Pursuant to the Code provision B.2.2 of the Code, the non-
executive directors should be appointed for a specific term,
subject to re-election. The Non-executive Director is not
appointed for a specific term, but he is subject to re-election
at the AGM of the Company in accordance with the Company’s
Articles of Association.
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At the forthcoming AGM of the Company, Mr. Au Siu Lun shall
retire pursuant to the Company’s Articles of Association. The
above retiring Director, being eligible, will offer himself for
re-election at the forthcoming AGM of the Company. The Board
and the Nomination Committee recommended his reappointment.
The Company’s circular, to be sent to the Shareholders, contains
detailed information of the above Director as required by the GEM
Listing Rules.

Continuing Professional Development

On appointment to the Board, each Director receives a
comprehensive induction package covering policy and procedures
of the Company as well as the general, statutory and regulatory
obligations of being a Director to ensure that he/she is sufficiently
aware of his/her responsibilities under the GEM Listing Rules
and other relevant regulatory requirements. All Directors shall
participate in continuous professional development to develop
and refresh their knowledge and skills.

The Directors are regularly briefed on the amendments to or
updates on the relevant laws, rules and regulations to ensure that
their contribution to the Board remains informed and relevant.
The Company has been encouraging the Directors and officers to
participate in a wide range of professional development courses
and seminars relating to the GEM Listing Rules, applicable
regulatory requirements and corporate governance practices
organised by professional bodies and/or independent auditors to
further improve their relevant knowledge and skills.

All the Directors also understand the importance of continuous
professional development and are committed to participating any
suitable training or seminars and reading relevant materials to
refresh their knowledge and skills.

Directors and Officers Insurance

Appropriate insurance covers on directors’ and officers’ liabilities
have been in force to protect the Directors and officers of the
Group from their risk exposure arising from the business of the
Group.
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Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

The Company does not have the Chairman of the Board, the two
Executive Directors have performed part of the function of the
Chairman of the Board.

The roles of the two Executive Directors and the Chief Executive
Officer are separated and performed by Mr. Mui Wai Sum, Mr. Lei
Nelson and Dr. Kwan Fei Ying, respectively to ensure a balance of
power and authority.

The two Executive Directors provide leadership and are
responsible for the effective functioning and leadership of the
Board whereas the Chief Executive Officer focuses on the Group’s
business development and daily management and operation
generally.

Board Committees

The Board has maintained three Board Committees (the “Board
Committee”), namely the Audit Committee, Remuneration
Committee and Nomination Committee, throughout the year to
oversee particular aspects of the Group’s affairs. Each of these
Committees has specific written terms of reference, which deal
clearly with their authorities and duties.

Audit Committee

The audit committee of the Company (the “Audit Committee”) was
established on 4 November 2003, with written terms of reference
in compliance with Rule 5.28 to 5.33 of the GEM Listing Rules.
The terms of reference are available on the websites of the Stock
Exchange and the Company.

The Audit Committee comprises all Independent Non-executive
Directors, namely Mr. Lau Wai Leung, Alfred, Mr. Au Siu Lun
and Ms. Tsang Tsz Nok, Aleen. The Committee is chaired by Mr.
Lau Wai Leung, Alfred. No member of the Audit Committee is a
member of the former or existing auditor of the Company.
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The primary duties of the Audit Committee include, but are not
limited to, the following: (a) to independent review and supervise
the financial reporting process and internal control systems;
(b) to ensure good communications among Directors and the
Company’s auditor; (c) to recommend the appointment of external
auditor on an annual basis and approval of the audit fees; (d) to
assist the Board in oversight of the independence, qualifications,
performance and compensation of the independent accountant;
(e) to review quarterly, interim and annual results announcements
as well as the financial statements prior to their approval by
the Board; and (f) to provide advice on audit report, accounting
policies and comments to all Directors.

The Audit Committee reviews the quarterly, interim and annual
reports before submission to the Board. Senior representatives of
the external auditor, Executive Directors and Senior Management
are invited to attend the meetings, if required.

During the year, the Audit Committee has approved the nature
and scope of the statutory audits, and reviewed the quarterly,
interim and annual financial statements of the Group, and was
satisfied that the accounting policies and standards of the
Group complied with the applicable accounting standards and
requirements and that the adequate disclosures have been made.

Four meetings of the Audit Committee were held during the year.
The attendance of each member at the meetings of the Audit
Committee is set out below:
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Number of meetings

attended/held Attendance rate

Name of members REHR HE " BITERIH i FE &
Mr. Lau Wai Leung, Alfred (Chairman) RIEREE (£FE) 4/4 100%
Mr. Au Siu Lun B IKfm okt 4/4 100%
Ms. Tsang Tsz Nok, Aleen D IEFR 4/4 100%
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Remuneration Committee

The remuneration committee of the Company (the “Remuneration
Committee”) was established on 23 June 2006, with written terms
of reference in compliance with Rules 5.34 to 5.36 of the GEM
Listing Rules and the requirements set out under Code Provision.
The terms of reference are available on the websites of the Stock
Exchange and the Company.

The Remuneration Committee comprises all Independent
Non-Executive Directors, Ms. Tsang Tsz Nok, Aleen, Mr. Lau Wai
Leung, Alfred and Mr. Au Siu Lun. The Committee is chaired by
Ms. Tsang Tsz Nok, Aleen.

The primary duties of the Remuneration Committee include, but
are not limited to, the following: (a) to make recommendations
to the Board on the Company’s policies and structure for all
Directors’ and Senior Management remuneration; (b) to make
recommendations to the Board on the remuneration packages of
individual Executive Directors, Non-executive Director and Senior
Management; and (c) to ensure that no Director or any of his/her
associates is involved in deciding his/her own remuneration.

During the year, the Remuneration Committee has reviewed the
remuneration packages of the Executive Directors, the Non-
executive Director and senior management of the Company.

One meeting of the Remuneration Committee were held during
the year. The attendance of each member at the meeting of the
Remuneration Committee is set out below:
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Number of meeting

attended/held Attendance rate

Name of members REER HE " BITEBERE i FE &
Ms. Tsang Tsz Nok, Aleen (Chairman) EHEZE (FE) 1/1 100%
Mr. Lau Wai Leung, Alfred 2ERSEE 1/1 100%
Mr. Au Siu Lun = JK fm 5E & 1/1 100%
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Nomination Committee

The nomination committee of the Company (the “Nomination
Committee”) was established on 29 March 2012, and the
Company had adopted a terms of reference in compliance with
the Code Provision A.5. The terms of reference are available on
the websites of the Stock Exchange and the Company.

The Nomination Committee comprises, all Executive Directors,
namely Mr. Mui Wai Sum and Mr. Lei Nelson and all Independent
Non-executive Directors, namely Mr. Lau Wai Leung, Alfred, Mr.
Au Siu Lun and Ms. Tsang Tsz Nok, Aleen. The Committee is
chaired by Mr. Au Siu Lun.

The primary duties of the Nomination Committee include, but are
not limited to, the following: (a) to review the structure, size and
composition (including the skills, knowledge and experience) of
the Board, and make recommendations to the Board regarding
any proposed changes; and (b) to make recommendations to
the Board on the appointment or reappointment of Directors and
succession planning for Directors, in particular the Chairman and
the Chief Executive Officer.

During the year, the Nomination Committee has reviewed the
Board composition, the appointment and re-appointment of
Directors and also succession planning for the Board, the
Chairman and the Chief Executive Officer of the Company.

One meeting of the Nomination Committee was held during the
year. The attendance of each member at the meeting of the
Nomination Committee is set out below:
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Number of meeting

attended/held Attendance rate

Name of members REHSH HiE EITEBRH HE =
Executive Directors HITESE

Mr. Mui Wai Sum BERTE 1/1 100%
Mr. Lei Nelson ERELE 1/1 100%
Independent Non-executive Directors BIFHTESE

Mr. Au Siu Lun (Chairman) BXmEE (EE) 11 100%
Mr. Lau Wai Leung, Alfred RERTE 11 100%
Ms. Tsang Tsz Nok, Aleen E#EZL 1/1 100%
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Corporate Governance Functions

No corporate governance committee of the Company has
been established and the Board as a whole is responsible for
performing the corporate governance duties including: (a) to
develop and review the Company’s policies and practices on
corporate governance; (b) to review and monitor the training
and continuous professional development of Directors and
Senior Management; (c) to review and monitor the Company’s
policies and practices on compliance with legal and regulatory
requirements; (d) to develop, review and monitor the code of
conduct and compliance manual (if any) applicable to employees
and Directors; and (e) to review the Company’s compliance with
the Code and disclosure in the Corporate Governance Report.

During the year, the Board has reviewed the Company’s policies
and practices on corporate governance.

Board Independence Evaluation Mechanism

The Company has adopted the board independence evaluation
mechanism. The details are as follows:

Objective

Continuing improvement and development of the Board and
its committee processes and procedures through Board
independence evaluation provides a powerful and valuable
feedback mechanism for improving Board effectiveness,
maximising strengths, and identifying the areas that need
improvement or further development.

The evaluation process also clarifies what actions of the Company
need to be taken to maintain and improve the Board performance,
for instance, addressing individual training and development
needs of each Director.

This mechanism is designed to ensure a strong independent
element on the Board, which allows the Board to effectively
exercise independent judgment to better safeguard Shareholders’
interests.
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Mechanism

(@)

Nomination Committee is established with clear terms
of reference to identify suitable candidates, including
independent non-executive Directors, for appointment as
Directors.

Nomination policy is in place with details of the process and
criteria of identifying, selecting, recommending, cultivating
and integrating new directorship.

For Independent Non-executive Directors (“INED(s)”):

(i) Every INED is required to confirm in writing to
the Company his/her independence upon his/her
appointment as Director with reference to such criteria
as stipulated in the nomination policy as well as the
Listing Rules;

(i)  Each INED has to declare his/her past or present
financial or other interests in the Group’s business as
soon as practicable, or his/her connection with any of
the Company’s connected persons (as defined in the
Listing Rules), if any; and

(i)  Each INED is required to inform the Company as
soon as practicable if there is any change in his/
her own personal particulars that may affect his/her
independence.

The Nomination Committee will assess annually the
independence of all INEDs and to affirm if each of them
still satisfies the criteria of independence as set out in
the Listing Rules and is free from any relationships and
circumstances which are likely to affect, or could appear
to affect, their independent judgement. Every Nomination
Committee member should abstain from assessing his/her
own independence.
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Where the Board proposes a resolution to elect an individual
as an INED at the general meeting, it will set out in the
circular to Shareholders the reasons it believes he/she
should be elected and the reasons it considers him/her to
be independent.

A mechanism is in place for Directors to seek independent
professional advice, if necessary, in performing their duties
at the Company’s expense.

Directors are encouraged to access and consult with the
Company’s senior management independently, if necessary.

The Board Independence Evaluation may take in the form
of a questionnaire to all Directors individually and may be
supplemented by individual interview with each Director, if
necessary, and/or in any other manners which the Board
considers fit and necessary.

The Board Independence Evaluation report will be presented
to the Board which will collectively discuss the results and
the action plan for improvement, if appropriate.

The results of the Board Independence Evaluation or
a summary of the findings of the said evaluation will
be disclosed in the CG Report contained in the annual
report of the Company or on the Company’s website for
accountability and transparency purposes.

The aforesaid Board Independence Evaluation will be
regarded as an ongoing exercise of the Company while the
Company may seek assistance from external consultant if
an external evaluation on the same subject is needed.
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During the year ended 31 March 2025 and as at the date of this
report, the Board Independence Evaluation had been conducted
by way of completing a questionnaire by all Directors. The results
of the Board Independence Evaluation are summarised as follows:

1. The Board as a whole possessed the skills and range
of experience needed to adequately fulfill its fiduciary
responsibilities, more reliably hold management to account,
and better safeguard Shareholders’ interests.

2. Board meetings were conducted in a manner that allowed
open communication, meaningful participation (including in
depth discussion and resolutions of issues).

3.  All INEDs brought independent judgement to bear on the
Board’s deliberations.

4. All INEDs have actively participated in all Board meetings
and Board Committees’ meetings; and raised governance
and ethical issues to the Board.

Diversity Policy

The Company recognises and embraces the importance of having
a diverse Board, that increasing diversity at the Board level will
support the attainment of the Company’s strategic objectives and
sustainable development. Pursuant to the board diversity policy,
the Company seeks to achieve the Board diversity through the
consideration of a number of factors, including but not limited
to gender, age, cultural and educational background, ethnicity,
professional experience, skills, knowledge, length of service
and any other factors that the Board may consider relevant and
applicable from time to time. All Directors appointment will be
based on applicable merits and candidates will be considered
against objective criteria, having due regard for the benefits
of diversity on the Board. The Nomination Committee shall
review the Board Diversity Policy and make recommendations
to the Board on amendments to the Board diversity policy (if
any) as appropriate, which will include an assessment of the
implementation and effectiveness of the Board diversity policy on
an annual basis in accordance with code provision B.1.3 of the
CG Code. The Board Diversity Policy is available on the website
of the Company for public information.
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The Board currently has one female Director. We will continue
to strive to enhance female representation and achieve an
appropriate balance of gender diversity with reference to
the Shareholders’ expectation and international and local
recommended best practices. We will also ensure that there is
gender diversity when recruiting staff at mid to senior level and
we are committed to providing career development opportunities
for female staff so that we will have a pipeline of female senior
management and potential successors to our Board in near
future.

Whistle-Blowing Policy

In compliance with code provision D.2.6 of the CG Code,
the Board adopted a whistle-blowing policy. It provides
employees and the relevant third parties who deal with the
Group (e.g. customers, and suppliers) with guidance and
reporting channels on reporting any suspected improprieties
in any matters related to the Group directly addressed to the
Audit Committee and designated person. An email account
(whistleblowing@sausantong.net) has been set up for this
purpose. All reported matters will be investigated independently
and, in the meantime, all information received from a whistle-
blower and its identity will be kept confidential. The Board and
the Audit Committee will regularly review the whistleblowing policy
and mechanism to improve its effectiveness.

Anti-Fraud and Anti-Corruption Policy

In compliance with the new code provision D.2.7 of the CG Code,
the Board adopted an anti-fraud and anti-corruption policy. It
outlines guidelines and the minimum standards of conducts, all
applicable laws and regulations in relation to the anti-corruption
and anti-bribery, the responsibilities of employees to resist fraud,
to help the Group defend against corrupt practices and to report
any reasonably suspected case of fraud and corruption or any
attempts thereof, to the management or through an appropriate
reporting channel. The Group would not tolerate all forms of
fraud and corruption among all employees and those acting in
an agency or fiduciary capacity on behalf of the Group, and in its
business dealing with third parties.
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The Board and the Audit Committee will review the anti-fraud and
anti-corruption policy and mechanism periodically to ensure its
effectiveness and enforce the commitment of the Group to the
prevention, deterrence, detection and investigation of all forms of
fraud and corruption.

Accountability and Audit
Financial Reporting

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility for preparing the
financial statements of the Group that give a true and fair view
of the state of affairs of the Group. In preparing the financial
statements for the year ended 31 March 2025, the accounting
principles generally accepted in Hong Kong have been adopted
and the requirements of the Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards, Hong Kong Accounting Standards and Interpretations
issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance have been complied with. The Directors believe
that they have complied all applicable accounting policies and
applied them consistently, made judgments and estimates that
are prudent and reasonable. The Directors also ensure the
timely publication of the financial statements of the Group. As
at 31 March 2025, the Directors were not aware of any material
uncertainties or events which may have a significant impact on
the Company’s ability to operate as a going concern. Accordingly,
the Directors have prepared the financial statements on a going
concern basis, which contemplates continuity of normal business
activities and the realisation of assets and settlement of liabilities
in the ordinary course of business.

The reporting responsibilities of the Company’s external auditor,
Baker Tilly Hong Kong Limited, are set out in the “Independent
Auditor’s Report” in this annual report.

Auditor’s Remuneration

The Company reviews the appointment of external auditor on an
annual basis including a review of the audit scope and approval of
the audit fee. During the year, the fee payable to the Company’s
external auditor for audit services amounted to HK$1,250,000
and fee for non-audit related activities amounted to HK$270,000.
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Company Secretary

The primary duties of the Company Secretary include, but are
not limited to, the following: (a) to ensure the Board procedures
are followed and that the activities of the Board are carried out
efficiently and effectively; (b) to assists the Chairman to prepare
agendas and Board papers for meetings and disseminates
such documents to the Directors and Board Committees in a
timely manner; (c) to timely dissemination of announcements
and information relating to the Group to the market; and (d) to
maintain formal minutes of the Board meetings and other Board
Committee meetings.

Mr. Chan Hin Hang (“Mr. Chan”) has been appointed as the
Company Secretary in 2020. Mr. Chan is an employee of the
Company and confirmed that he has complied with all the
qualifications, experience and training requirements as required by
the Listing Rules. Pursuant to the Listing Rules and in the opinion
of the Board, Mr. Chan possesses the necessary qualification and
experience, and is capable of performing of the functions of the
Company Secretary.

Mr. Chan has taken no less than 15 hours of the relevant
professional training during the Reporting Period.

Shareholders’ Rights
Right to convene an extraordinary general meeting (“EGM”)

In accordance with Article 58 of the Company’s Articles of
Association, any one or more shareholders holding at the date
of deposit of the requisition not less than one-tenth of the paid-
up capital of the Company carrying the right of voting at general
meetings of the Company shall at all times have the right, by
written requisition to the Board or the Company Secretary, to
require an EGM to be called by the Board for the transaction of
any business specified in such requisition.

Right to direct enquiries to the Board

Shareholders may at any time send their enquiries and concerns
to the Board in writing through the Company Secretary by
addressing them to the principal place of business of Company
in Hong Kong at: Room 2303, 23rd Floor, China Insurance Group
Building, 141 Des Voeux Road Central, Central, Hong Kong.

Shareholders may also make enquiries with the Board at the
general meetings of the Company.
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Right to put forward proposals at a general meeting

Shareholders are welcomed to suggest proposals relating to
the operations, strategy and/or management of the Group.
Shareholders are request to follow Article 58 of the Company’s
Articles of Association for including a resolution at an EGM. The
requirement and procedures are set out in paragraph headed

“Right to convene an extraordinary general meeting (“EGM”)
above.

Communication with Shareholders

The Board is committed to maintaining an ongoing and
transparent communication with all shareholders. The Company
has provided clear and full performance information of the Group
to shareholders in accordance with the GEM Listing Rules and
through various communication channels, including AGM and
EGM, quarterly, interim and annual reports, announcements
and circulars. Additional information of the Group is also
available to shareholders on the Company’s website at
http://www.sst-holding.com.

Shareholders are encouraged to attend the AGM for which
not less than 21 clear days’ notice is given. The Chairman and
Directors are available to answer questions on the Group’s
business at the meeting.

The Group values feedback from shareholders on its effort
to promote transparency and foster investor relationships.
Comments and suggestions are always welcomed.

Corporate Governance Enhancement

Enhancing corporate governance is not simply a matter of
applying and complying with the Corporate Governance Code of
the Stock Exchange but also about promoting and developing an
ethical and healthy corporate culture. We will continue to review
and, where appropriate, improve our current practices on the
basis of our experience, regulatory changes and developments.
Any views and suggestions from our Shareholders to promote
and improve our transparency are also welcome.
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Risk Management and Internal Control

During the Year, the Board complied with the code provisions
on risk management and internal control as set out in the CG
Code. The Board has overall responsibility for evaluating and
determining the nature and extent of the risks it is willing to take
in achieving the Group’s strategic objectives, and maintaining
appropriate and effective risk management and internal control
systems for the Group. The systems are designed to manage
the risk of failure to achieve business objectives, and can only
provide reasonable and not absolute assurance against material
misstatement or loss.

The management of the Company has established a set of
comprehensive policies, standards and procedures in areas of
operational, financial and risk controls for safeguarding assets
against unauthorized use or disposition; for maintaining proper
accounting records; and for ensuring the reliability of financial
information to achieve a satisfactory level of assurance against
the likelihood of the occurrence of fraud and errors.

The Board has overseen the Company’s risk management and
internal control systems on an ongoing basis. A year end review
of the effectiveness of the Company’s and its subsidiaries risk
management and internal control systems has been conducted
annually and the systems are considered to be effective and
adequate. Self-assessment and comprehensive risk assessment
surveys have been conducted during the review. The Company
also has an internal audit function to carry out the analysis and
independent appraisal of the adequacy and effectiveness of
the systems, and has procedures in place to keep information
confidential and manage actual or potential conflicts of interest.
Stringent internal structures have been designed to prevent the
misuse of inside information and avoid conflicts of interest.

All Directors and those employees who could have access to, and
monitor, the information of the Group are responsible for making
appropriate precautions to prevent abuse or misuse of such
information. Employees of the Group are prohibited from using
inside information for their own benefit.

The Board is also vested with the responsibility to disseminate to
the Shareholders and the public any inside information in the form
of announcements and circulars, in accordance with the Listing
Rules.
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The Directors submit herewith their annual report together with
the audited financial statements for the year ended 31 March
2025.

Sau San Tong Holdings Limited (the “Company”) was incorporated
in Cayman lIslands on 21 May 2002 as an exempted company
with limited liability under the Companies Law, Cap. 22 (Law 3 of
1961, as consolidated and revised) of the Cayman Islands and its
shares have been listed on GEM of The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) since 19 November 2003.

Principal Activities and Business Review

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding. The
principal activities and particulars of the subsidiaries are set out
in note 34 of the financial statements.

The Group is principally engaged in the provision of beauty and
slimming services from slimming centres, distribution sales of
cosmetic and skin care products, sale of other health and beauty
products, investments in securities and money lending business.
The slimming centres, which are operated under the “Sau San
Tong” and “IPRO" brand names, provide services such as whole
and partial body slimming, weight management, body treatment
services and facial treatment services to its customers.

Further discussion and analysis of these activities as required by
Schedule 5 to the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, including
a discussion of the principal risks and uncertainties facing the
Group and an indication of likely future developments in the
Group’s business, can be found in the Management’s Statement
and Management Discussion and Analysis set out on pages 6
to 34 of this annual report. This discussion forms part of this
directors’ report.

Financial Statements
The loss of the Group for the year ended 31 March 2025, and

the state of the Group’s affairs as at that date, are set out in the
financial statements on pages 124 to 252.
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Dividends

The Directors do not recommend the payment of a dividend in
respect of the year ended 31 March 2025 (2024: Nil).

Summary Financial Information

A summary of the published results and assets, liabilities and
non-controlling interests of the Group for the last five financial
years is set out on page 5. The summary does not form part of
the audited financial statements.

Property, Plant and Equipment

Details of the movements in property, plant and equipment of the
Group are set out in note 11 of the financial statements on page
175.

Share Capital

Details of the movements in share capital of the Company during
the year are set out in note 28(a) of the financial statements.

Share Option Scheme
Share option scheme adopted on 24 February 2016

On 24 February 2016, the Company has adopted a share option
scheme (the “Share Option Scheme”). The purpose of the Share
Option Scheme is to enable the Company to grant options to
eligible participants as incentives or rewards for their contribution
or potential contribution to the Company and/or any of its
subsidiaries. Eligible participants of the Share Option Scheme
include full-time or part-time employees, executives or officers
(including executive, non-executive directors and independent
non-executive directors) of the Company and/or any of its
subsidiaries and any consultants, agents or advisers who, in
the sole opinion of the Board, have contributed to the Company
and/or such subsidiaries.
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Share options are granted to the eligible participants at a
consideration of HK$1. Each option gives the holder the right
to subscribe for one ordinary share in the Company. The period
during which an option may be exercised will be determined by
the Board at its absolute discretion, save that no option may
be exercised more than five years after it has been granted.
No option may be granted more than 10 years after the date of
approval of the Share Option Scheme.

The maximum number of shares which may be issued upon
exercise of all outstanding options granted and yet to be
exercised under the Share Option Scheme and any other share
option plans of the Company at any time shall not exceed 30% of
the shares in issue from time to time.

The total number of shares issued and which may fall to be
issued upon exercise of the options granted under the Share
Option Scheme and any other share option plans of the Company
(including exercised, cancelled and outstanding options) to each
eligible participant in any 12-month period up to the date of grant
in excess of 1% of the number of shares in issue as at the date
of grant, are subject to the Company issuing a circular and the
approval from the Company’s shareholders in a general meeting.

The exercise price for a share in respect of any particular option
granted under the Share Option Scheme (which shall be payable
upon exercise of the option) shall be such price as the Board
in its absolute discretion shall determine, save that such price
will not be less than the highest of (i) the official closing price of
the shares as stated in the daily quotation sheets of the Stock
Exchange on the date of grant, which must be a business day;
(i) the average closing price of the shares as stated in the Stock
Exchange’s daily quotations sheet for the five business days
immediately preceding the date of grant; and (iii) the nominal
value of a share.
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Details of the share options movements during the year ended 31 #HE_-_Z -_RAF=ZA=+—HI-FEEERKE
March 2025 under the Share Option Scheme are as follows: FTEIE T ZERESHFBNT
At At
Subscription 1 April Granted Cancelled 31 March
price per 2024 during during 2025
Date of grant Exercisable period share R-E-NE the period the period RZ-ZB-R%F
R A8 GRcd SRABE mA-H BARE BHREHE =A=t+-AH
HK$
BT
Directors 10 February 2021 10 February 2021 - 0.87 750,494 - - 750,494
9 February 2026
5% ZEZ-f¥ZA+H ZEZ-¥-A+HZE
“ZCoREZANRA
Chief Executive Officer 10 February 2021 10 February 2021 - 0.87 750,494 - - 750,494
9 February 2026
THEH “Z--f-ZA+R ZE=-%=ZA+HZ
ZZZREZANA
Employees 10 February 2021 10 February 2021 - 0.87 750,494 = = 750,494
9 February 2026
EE8 ZZ--%-A+R ZZ--%-ATHZ
ZZZRFZANA
Other participant 10 February 2021 10 February 2021 - 0.87 3,001,976 - (2,251,482) 750,494
9 February 2026
HppmE ZZZ-%-A+A ZT=Z-FZATHZ
ZZZREZANA
5,253,458 - (2,251,482) 3,001,976
Weighted average exercise price HK$0.87 HK$0.87
IEFHTEE 0.87% 7T 0.87% T
Weighted average of remaining contractual life 1.87 years 0.87 years
METHFSHAOFH 1.87% 087%F
Note: Brat -

(i) During the year ended 31 March 2025, 2,251,482 share options were
cancelled.

(ii) As of 1 April 2024 and 31 March 2025, the total number of share
options available for grant under the scheme mandate and available for
issue under the Share Option Scheme were 1,575,802 and 3,827,284
respectively.

No service provider sub-limit was set under the Share Option Scheme.
As at the date of the Annual Report, the total number of shares available
for issue under the scheme were 3,001,976, which represent 3.8% of
the issued shares of the Company.

Equity-Linked Agreement

Save for the share option scheme of the Company as disclosed
in the section headed “Share Option Scheme” above, no equity
linked agreements were entered into by the Group, or existed
during the Year.
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Distributable Reserves

Pursuant to the Companies Law, Cap. 22 (Law 3 of 1961, as
consolidated and revised) of the Cayman Islands, share premium
and contributed surplus of the Company are distributable
to the shareholders. As at 31 March 2025, the Company’s
reserves available for distribution to equity shareholders of the
Company amounted to approximately HK$479,598,000 (2024
HK$481,999,000).

Segment Information

The segment information of the Group for the year ended 31
March 2025 is set out in note 10 of the consolidated financial
statements.

Connected Transaction

The “Other related party transactions” as disclosed in the note
32(b) to the consolidated financial statements for the year ended
31 March 2025 do not constitute a connected transaction or a
continuing connected transaction under the GEM Listing Rules.

Directors

The Directors who held office during the year and up to the date
of this annual report are:

Executive Directors
Mr. Mui Wai Sum
Mr. Lei Nelson

Independent Non-Executive Directors
Mr. Lau Wai Leung, Alfred

Mr. Au Siu Lun

Ms. Tsang Tsz Nok, Aleen

In accordance with Article 87 of the Company’s Articles of
Association, Mr. Au Siu Lun will retire at the forthcoming annual
general meeting and, being eligible, offer himself for re-election.

The Company has received annual confirmations of independence
from Mr. Lau Wai Leung, Alfred, Mr. Au Siu Lun and Ms. Tsang
Tsz Nok, Aleen as at the date of this annual report and therefore
still considers them to be independent.
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Directors’ and Senior Management’s
Biographies

Biographical details of the Directors of the Company and senior
management of the Group as at the date of this annual report are
set out on pages 35 to 37.

Directors’ Service Contracts

The Executive Director is entitled to a basic salary and a
discretionary bonus provided that the aggregate amount of
the bonuses payable to all the Executive Directors for any
financial year of the Company may not exceed 10% of the
audited consolidated net profit of the Group (after taxation and
non-controlling interests but before extraordinary and exceptional
items of the Group) in respect of the financial year.

Save for a total fee of HK$360,000 for all of them for the year
ended 31 March 2025, the Independent Non-Executive Directors
are not entitled to any other remuneration.

None of the Directors (including those proposed for re-election at
the forthcoming annual general meeting) has a service contract
which is not determinable by the Group within 1 year without
payment of compensation (other than statutory compensation).

Emolument Policy

The emoluments of the Directors and Senior Management of
the Group are determined by the Remuneration Committee with
reference to their relevant qualifications, experience, competence
and the prevailing market conditions.

The Remuneration Committee was established on 23 June 2006,
and the Company had adopted a revised terms of reference as of
30 December 2022 in accordance with the GEM Listing Rules and
the requirements set out under Code Provision. Details of the role
and work performed by the committee are set out in “Corporate
Governance Report” in this annual report.
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Remuneration by Bands

The remuneration paid or payable to the Directors and senior
management during the year were fell within the following bands:

FRA BENIENEERSREEA B K
ERTHIEE :

Number of Number of senior
Directors management

EEHE SREEABHE

HK$Nil to HK$1,000,000

HK$1,000,001 to HK$1,500,000
HK$1,500,001 to HK$2,000,000
HK$2,000,001 to HK$2,500,000
HK$2,500,001 to HK$3,000,000
HK$3,000,001 to HK$3,500,000
HK$3,500,001 to HK$4,000,000

T L E 1,000,000/ 7T

1,000,001 7t £1,500,000/%8 7T
1,500,001 7T £2,000,0008 7T
2,000,0017% 7t £2,500,0005% 7T
2,500,001 7L 23,000,000 T
3,000,00178 7T £3,500,0007%8 7T
3,500,001 JT 4,000,000/ 7T

Directors’ Interests in Contracts

None of the Directors had a material interest, whether directly or
indirectly, in any contract of significance subsisting during or at
the end of the financial year to which the Company or any of its
subsidiaries was a party.

Permitted Indemnity Provision

The Group has taken out and maintained directors’ liability
insurance throughout the Year, which provides appropriate cover
for legal actions brought against the Directors. The level of the
coverage is reviewed annually.

Directors’ and Chief Executive’s Interests and
Short Positions in Shares

As at 31 March 2025, the interests or short positions of the
Directors and the chief executive of the Company or their
respective associates in shares and underlying shares (the
“Shares”) of the Company or its associated corporations (within
the meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance
(the “SFQ”)) which are required to be notified to the Company
and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV
of the SFO, including interests and/or short positions which they
are deemed or taken to have under such provisions of the SFO,
or which will be required, pursuant to section 352 of the SFO or
as otherwise notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange
pursuant to Rules 5.46 to 5.67 of the GEM Listing Rules were as
follows:
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Long position in underlying shares of the Company:

Share Option Scheme

The interests in the underlying shares of the Company arise from
share options granted to the Directors and senior management of
the Company under the Company’s share option scheme, details

of which are as follows:

REQBDEBRD Z2HF A
BRETE
AR AAR R D 2 #E 2K BRI AN R ) RE AR

AERTARREEREREEABZBEE
HFERBWT:

Approximate

percentage
Aggregate interest in the
long position Company’s
in underlying  issued share
shares of the capital
Name of director/ Subscription Company EARAT
chief executive price ;NN BRITRAE
EE /FETHK Date of grant Exercisable period per share HERGDZ BRZBN
ABHR BHAH TS BRAEE FREH BAW
Mr. Mui Wai Sum 10 February 2021 10 February 2021 - HK$0.87 750,494 1.00%
9 February 2026 0.87/8 T
BEERLE “E-—-FZ-A+H “E-—-F-RA+HE
—E-RF-ANA
Ms. Kwan Fei Ying 10 February 2021 10 February 2021 - HK$0.87 750,494 1.00%
9 February 2026 0.878 T

BSER L L

Note:

The above interest constitutes a long position of the Director and the Chief

—E-—%=-A+H

ZE-—FZA+HZE
“E-RFZANA

Executive in a physically settled equity derivative for the purpose of the SFO.
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Save as disclosed above, as at 31 March 2025, none of the
Directors or chief executive of the Company or their respective
associates has any personal, family, corporate or other interests
or short positions in the Shares of the Company or its associated
(within the meaning of Part XV of SFO) as recorded in the register
required to be kept under section 352 of the SFO or as otherwise
notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the
minimum standard of dealings by Directors of the Company as
referred to in Rules 5.46 to 5.67 of the GEM Listing Rules, are
required to be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange.

Substantial Shareholders’ Interests and Short
Positions in Shares

As at 31 March 2025, so far was known to any Directors or chief
executive of the Company, the following interests of which would
fall to be disclosed under Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO,
or who were deemed to be directly or indirectly interested in 5%
or more of the issued capital of the Company, or which were
recorded in the register of interests required to be kept under
Section 336 of the SFO or have notified to the Company were as
follows:

Long position in Shares:

BEXFREEEN R -_RAF=A=1+—
H ARRIEE FETHRABXEZTE 28
BATHERAQAKEAEEIE (TERLE
HFRHEEGOIEXVE) 2RHF - -EBEMR
HRBIEESRAEROEI2KAEFE 2
e AR EBEGEM E TR BI55.46E25.67
B ARRESHTR G I REZEANS
RARIRBRRZBA Kk AR HEME
mOOK B MAME AR A R ZFT -

FTERRRROD 2R RXR

RZF-_AF=ZA=1t—H RARREMFE
ERTRITHABMRAM THEEREFEF N
HEGPIEXVEE2 R EIDFATHRE -
BREEIRBEEEARFC EITRALRK
A bz s AN REE S MHE &
FEHEMEFELEEELMIMERR A
FEWT

RERZER:

Number of shareholding

BREAR
Substantial shareholder Capacity Share Percentage
FERR g4 IR 17 Aok
Yau Chung Chung Beneficial owner 15,119,000 19.17%

ERR EnEAA

Saved as disclosed above, as at 31 March 2025, no person,
other than the Directors of the Company and the chief executive
of the Group whose interests are set out in the section “Directors’
and Chief Executive’s Interests and Short Position in Shares”
above, has registered an interest or short position in the share
capital, underlying shares and debentures of the Company that
was required to be recorded pursuant to Section 336 of the SFO.
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Directors’ Rights to Acquire Shares or
Debentures

Save as disclosed under the heading “Directors’ and Chief
Executive’s Interests and Short Positions in Shares” above, at
no time during the year were rights to acquire benefits by means
of the acquisition of shares in or debentures of the Company
granted to any Director or their respective spouse or children
under 18 years of age, or were any such rights exercised by
them; or was the Company, its holding company, or any of its
subsidiaries or fellow subsidiaries a party to any arrangement
to enable the directors to acquire such rights in any other body
corporate.

Competing Interests

None of the Directors or substantial shareholders of the Company
or their respective associates (as defined in the GEM Listing
Rules) has any interest in a business which compete or might
compete with the business of the Group.

Purchase, Sale or Redemption of Listed
Securities of the Company

Neither the Company, nor any of its subsidiaries purchased,
redeemed or sold any of the Company’s listed securities during
the year.

Sufficiency of Public Float

Based on the information that is publicly available to the
Company and within the knowledge of the Directors as at the
latest practicable date prior to the issue of this report, the
Company has maintained a sufficient public float of more than
25% of the Company’s issued share as required under the GEM
listing rules throughout the Year Under Review and up to the date
of this report.
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Corporate Governance

Principal corporate governance practices as adopted by the
Company are set out in the Corporate Governance Report section
set out on pages 38 to 58.

Events after the Reporting Period

The Group does not have significant events after the reporting
period.

Major Customers and Suppliers

During the year, purchases from the Group’s five largest suppliers
accounted for 99.9% (2024: 99.6%) of the total purchases for
the year and purchases from the largest supplier included therein
amounted to 97.5% (2024: 98.0%). Sales to the Group’s five
largest customers accounted for 12.7% (2024: 13.9%) of the total
sales for the year.

None of the Directors of the Company or any of their associates
or any shareholders (which, to the best knowledge of the
Directors, own more than 5% of the Company’s issued share
capital) had any beneficial interest in the Group’s five largest
suppliers.

Charitable Donations

Charitable donations made by the Group during the year
amounted to approximately HK$100,000 (2024: HK$2,000).

Pre-emptive Rights
There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s

Articles of Association and there was no restriction against such
rights under the laws of the Cayman Islands.

P Y- YN
JL%E/I:
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Audit Committee

The Audit Committee was established on 4 November 2003,
and the Company had adopted a revised terms of reference as
of 31 March 2016 in accordance with Rules 5.28 to 5.33 of the
GEM Listing Rules. Details of the role and work performed by
the committee are set out in “Corporate Governance Report”
in the annual report. The Audit Committee has reviewed the
consolidated financial statements of the Group for the year ended
31 March 2025.

Code of Conduct Regarding Securities
Transactions by Directors

The Company has adopted a code of conduct regarding securities
transactions by Director on terms no less exacting than the
required standard of dealings set out in Rules 5.48 to 5.67 of the
GEM Listing Rules. Having made specific enquiry of all Directors,
the Company confirmed that all Directors have complied with the
required standard of dealings set out in Rules 5.48 to 5.67 of the
GEM Listing Rules.

Auditor

Baker Tilly Hong Kong Limited retire and, being eligible offer
themselves for reappointment. A resolution for re-appointment of
Baker Tilly Hong Kong Limited as auditor of the Company is to be
proposed at the forthcoming Annual General Meeting.

On behalf of the Board

Mui Wai Sum
Executive Director

Hong Kong, 25 June 2025
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About this Report
Environmental, Social and Governance Report

Sau San Tong Holdings Limited and its subsidiaries (hereafter,
called the “Group”, “we”, or “us”) is committed to promoting
transparency of the Group’s operations and the impact of its
operations on the environment and society in which it operates,
as well as communication with its stakeholders. The results of
the Environmental, Social and Governance (“ESG”) review shown
in this report demonstrate the importance of environmental
protection we place on top of our business development target,
and explain how we seek to continually improve our ESG strategy
in line with the global standards. The report also illustrates
our focus of resources utilization for core operations in order
for the Company to become the leading professional slimming
and beauty service provider for creating a highly efficient and
balanced business profile.

Report Profile

This ESG report (“Report”) focuses on the Group’s main
operations in Hong Kong and the People’s Republic of China (the
“PRC”), for the financial year ended 31 March 2025 (“Reporting
Period”). It describes the Group’s progress on the way towards
creating sustainable value for its shareholders and other
stakeholders. During the process of preparing this Report, we
have conducted a thorough review and evaluation of the existing
ESG practices of the Group with the aim of achieving better
performance results in the future.

Report Scope and Boundary

This Report contains information that is material for the
stakeholders to understand the Group’s ESG practices and
performance in its daily operations in Hong Kong and the PRC.
Unless otherwise stated, this Report focuses on the Group’s key
operating units in Hong Kong and Shanghai. There is no change
in the reporting scope and boundary covered in this Report from
the previous year.

In addition to the internal factors such as our core values,
strategy, and competency that contribute to our sustainable
development, we have considered the ESG challenges as
reported by other market players and communicated with our
stakeholders as for them to decide and prioritize the material ESG
issues in this Report.
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The material ESG issues are considered as they have or may have
a significant impact on:

° the various branches of the Group in Hong Kong and the
PRC;

° the current and future environment and/or society;
° our financial and/or operational performance; and
° our stakeholders’ assessments, decisions and actions.

This Report is prepared in accordance with the ESG Reporting
Guide of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock
Exchange”) as set out in Appendix C2 to the Rules Governing the
Listing of Securities on GEM of the Stock Exchange (the “GEM
Listing Rules”) and complies with all provisions of “Mandatory
Disclosure” and “Comply or Explain”, as well as the principles of
materiality, quantitative, balance and consistency. In preparing
the Report, the Group has adopted the international standards
and emission factors specified in the ESG guidance materials
issued by the Stock Exchange for computing the relevant Key
Performance Indicators (“KPIs”), there is no change from the
previous year in the way the Report has been prepared. The
application of materiality is detailed in the subsection headed
“Materiality Assessment”.

The relevant sections of the ESG Reporting Guide of the Stock
Exchange are provided from pages 71 to 114 of this Report for
cross-referencing purpose.

Information and Feedback

For details in relation to our financial performance and corporate
governance practice during the financial year, please visit our
website: http://www.sst-holding.com and refer to our Annual
Report. Your feedback and comments are our greatest motivation
to improve our ESG performance. Please send us an email to
enquiries@sausantong.net, if you have any queries on this Report
or the Group’s sustainability policies.
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Approach

Our operations in Hong Kong are principally engaged in
the provision of beauty and slimming services, whereas our
operations in the PRC are mainly engaged in the distribution of
skincare and cosmetic products.

As a responsible corporate citizen, we acknowledge that prudent
environmental and societal management is of great importance
to sustainable economic growth. We see the integration
of sustainability into our business strategy as well as daily
operations as a must to pursue our business model. To deal with
the ESG issues effectively, understanding of, and interaction with,
our employees, customers and other stakeholders are of the
highest priority.

The Group believes that effective management of ESG issues
is important to our long-term success in a rapidly changing
world. We have established a governance structure to enhance
its management of ESG issues. The Board has an overall
responsibility of overseeing the Group’s ESG-related risks
and opportunities, establishing and adopting the ESG-related
strategies and targets of the Group, reviewing the Group’s
performance annually against the targets, and revising the
strategies as appropriate if significant variance from the target is
identified. In order to exert governance over the ESG issues, we
have set up an ESG Working Group that comprises of members
from middle to senior management, and it serves as a supportive
role to the Board in implementing the ESG-related strategies and
targets, conducting materiality assessments of ESG issues and
prioritize them, reporting regularly to the Board about the relevant
tasks carried out for sustainable development, identifying the
relevant issues that have a significant impact on the operation of
the Group and/or the interests of other important stakeholders,
and promote the implementation of respective measures. Under
the authority of the Board, the ESG Working Group assists in
collecting ESG data from respective functional department,
monitoring the implementation of the measures, and investigating
deviation from the targets and liaises with the respective
functional department to take prompt rectification actions.
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Governance Structure

ERER

Board
BExg

e The Board is responsible for the overall decision-making, oversees the formulation,

administration, and assessment of the ESG system.

BHIE - B RAFE

s EFTAEEBBEAR RERE UIREALEM

e The ESG Working Group is responsible for assisting the Board in managing and

monitoring the ESG matters on a daily basis.

o R -HEMEATFEAAERDEFEEREER

[ Functional Depa

ent. -

ERRE  HEREREH-

e Functional department is responsible for the execution of implemented measures to

achieve the set strategies and targets.

o BELHFIAERITEERNEHE

The Board will continue to review the progress based on the
set goals and targets to help building sustainable markets, with
broader benefits for the society. With a thorough understanding
of the ESG risks and opportunities, the Group will be better
positioned in allocating its resources to reduce and recycle
different kinds of waste, and responding to the increasing demand
for higher standards of waste treatment by regulators. In addition,
we believe that our expertise, capabilities, and ownership
model can form part of the solutions to some of the challenges
that organizations around the world are already facing. We are
confident that as part of the business decision-making process,
by involving all relevant stakeholders in the ESG management
process, we will be able to better monitor the ESG issues, and
the long-term success of the Group will be assured.
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Our sustainability strategy in the following aspects applies to all HfIRU TE A A Z O HFEMEERERANE

the work streams:

1.

To promote environmental sustainability;

To attract, retain and support employees;

To engage with stakeholders;

To sustain local communities;

To strengthen community relations;

To grow suppliers’ commitment.

ESE R

1. HEEREWUHEN:

2. WE -BBERXKEE:

3. BHBHEBR:

4. HERHITHER

5. EEMEEARE:

6. EEHEEAE-
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Our Stakeholders EKPzEnE

AEERGSREGEEE ATHRRERMZ
FOERR BARUNERMZERRRS -
BPREFNDEERMZEBHERBKINM
EREEEEAC - TRBEBEFRZLFNE
HRLHEMNS2ET X

The Group is actively looking for every opportunity to understand
and engage our stakeholders to ensure that improvement of our
products and services can be implemented. We strongly believe
that our stakeholders play a crucial role in sustaining the success
of our business. The following table provides an overview of the
core stakeholder groups identified and our engagement methods.

Stakeholders

FoE

Probable points of concern
A REREEEIE

Communication and responses

BEAKDE

HKEX Compliance with GEM listing rules, timely Meetings, training, workshops, programs,
& B P and accurate announcements. website updates and announcements.
B FGEM LT AR A 0 BB AL o ®% - FY - TEY 5B @HEHRAL
Government Compliance with laws and regulations, Interaction and visits, government
BT prevention of tax evasion, contribution to inspections, tax returns and other
social welfare. information.
BTFEEEER BEREBARRALERE LHRES BNEE BHREREMER-
V5 & B -
Suppliers Payment schedule, stable demand. Site visits.
R NREBR BEFK- S E -
Investors Corporate governance system, business Seminars, interviews, shareholders’
REE strategies and performance, investment meetings, financial reports or operation
returns. reports for investors, media and analysts.
PEERNE EBHRBEKRER REOH BE - HA RRXG RAREE HBESD
AR B EHEERE -
Media & Public Corporate governance, environmental Newsletters on the Company’s website.
HERAR protection, human rights. NRA T Mk 2 BB -
BEES RRFR Ak
Customers Product quality, service delivery schedule, Site visits, after-sales services.
ZFE reasonable prices, service value, personal GH2 8 EERY -
data protection.
EmBEE RERBREXR 2BERL KRB
BE  EHABRRE-
Employees Rights and benefits, employee Union activities, training, interviews with
== compensation, training and development, employees, internal memos, employees’
work hours, working environment, labor suggestion boxes.
protection and work safety. TeEs HF HESEX RFBEM-E
N EEN EEME BIRER IR BERM-
IERR BITRERIELZR
Community Community environment, employment and Community activities, employee voluntary
HE community development, social welfare activities and community welfare subsidies

HERRR EBERAMEBEER HEQHF-
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Materiality Assessment

The Group has identified issues that may have an impact on, or
that may pose a risk, its business in short-, medium- or long-
term. Issues that are important to our stakeholders, including but
not limited to, our customers and employees, as well as non-
governmental organizations (“NGOs”), are also crucial to us. The
Group has identified ESG issues that have potential or actual
impact on its sustainable development from various sources, such
as issues identified in the previous ESG reports, internal policies,
industry trends and the Sustainability Accounting Standards
Board’s Materiality Map'. The ESG issues have been analyzed
with reference to an array of factors, including the Group’s overall
strategy, development, goals and targets. We have conducted a
materiality assessment to rate the identified ESG issues that are
pertinent to its business and stakeholders, and their respective
level of impact. The assessment results are shown below:

High

=

Impact on stakeholders
HiFnENTERE

Low

Low Impact on business

{8 HEBNTRIEE

U Sustainability Accounting Standards Board’s Materiality Map,
https://materiality.sasb.org/

BEEMFME

AEECBAEREHARENS HEEKA
REXNTE JEZCHARERARZEFE -#
PTERERHRMzFOE (BRETRR
EFREEBIAREBRFEGMERBEZ L
EH-AKECHSBRIREEH H AT HEE
RABEBREXERTEZRR HENRERA
BoPImBERE HERERRETHEEZ
RE APER TEBERAKSEERSS
HAUAZEGZEZNTFTER -RME2E—
RIAEHRE HERERRBETHIN
BREAEEZERRRE ZERANMBEMER-
BAMEETEEUHFME AFECBEERLE
BRBNHEEXRRBEZRE L kERHE
UREB R ERE FEBREIWOT:

Governance
=N
B /R

O

Environmental
RIE
@® Social
e
High

I

IREBEFTREFTEMNZEGZEELER
» https://materiality.sasb.org/

it
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Material Topics How we address them in corresponding sections
EZRE KM AEEN S EER
1. Responsible Procurement Supply Chain Management
1. BEEHE HEHEE R
2. Product Quality and safety Product Responsibility; Quality Assurance
2. EmBEERLD ERET BE2RE
3. Packaging Material Packaging Materials
3. 2EYR ek
4. GHG Emissions and Energy Consumption Emissions; Use of Resources
4. BERBY M RAEIRERE e BIR(E R
©: Hazardous Waste Environmental
5. BEEEEY RIE
6. Changing consumer preferences Social
6. HEERTE( e
7. Talent, recruitment, and retention Employment; Welfare and Benefits
7. AT BERRE 1B 1%« 18 A R Al &
8. Water Consumption Use of Resources
8. FEK BIRGERA
9. Anti-corruption and Business Ethics Anti-Corruption
9. RESEEZERE RES
10. Development and Training Development and Training
10, BRERRE TR R
11. Diversity and Equal Opportunity Equal Opportunity, Diversity and Anti-discrimination
11. ZrRTEH#E TE#E Z R RIS
12. Non-hazardous Waste Environmental
12. BEEED R
13. Climate Change Climate Change
13. RixE1{ RizZ1{
14. Health and Safety Health and Safety
14, EREZZ EREZR
15. Labour Standards Child Labour and Forced Labour
15. & T AR BEIRBEIST
16. Community Investment Community Investment
16. HEREE HREE

SAU SAN TONG HOLDINGS LIMITED €5 E#RER AT
Annual Report 2024/25 FE k&



ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL & GOVERNANCE REPORT

B HEREARS

Environmental
Overview

During the Reporting Period, the Group has complied with all
relevant environmental laws and regulations in Hong Kong and
the PRC that have a significant impact on us, including but not
limited to, the “Environmental Protection Law of the PRC”, “Law
of Atmospheric Pollution Prevention and Control Law of the PRC”,
“Water Pollution Prevention and Control Law of the PRC”, “Energy
Conservation Law of the PRC” and “Waste Disposal Ordinance”

in Hong Kong.
Emissions

The Group understands that a healthy environment is the
foundation of economic progress and well-being of the society.
Thus, we prioritize environmental protection as our key target and
strive to mitigate any undesirable impact on the environment.

The Group has generated air emissions and greenhouse gases
through our daily business operations, including direct vehicle
emissions and indirect emissions from the consumption of
electricity.

As of 31 March 2025, the Group owns 17 motor vehicles
for delivering goods and transporting our management team
members, guests, and clients. To enhance fuel consumption
efficiency, the Group replaces vehicles that are obsolete and
optimize route plans for transportation and product delivery.

RiE
BE

RBERRE AKREETHRMBEATEZ
FrERERTBRBEBRFREZLEN  BFEE
FERCPEARAMBRRREZE) (P
FEARKMBARGEBRE) (PFEAR
HMBE AT R EE) (PEARKLMEEH
HBEIRZE) RBEZ(EMREERD) -

235871

AEERARRRESLEERILEEUZ
ER-Al RMAARERESETIZEFR I
BRBESRBTEREFNEEATE -

AEE AR EBEEEE TR NRAER
. BEAEEBERRAEEE Y BN

HE_Z-_RAFZA=+—RH A£EHH17
WMAENEERREEEEBRKE SEAR
FEXRBRABZAE - BIEm B ERNRE
AEEEMRREAERTERBRERNTEZ
B AR B o
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During the Reporting Period, details of the emissions are shown R4 HIR - HE B &N T RKPI A1.15%

in the following table (KPI' A1.1 and KPI A1.2).

KPI A1.2) o

For the For the
Year ended Year ended
31 March 2025 31 March 2024
BZ-2-HF BE-FT-_NF
Emission Indicators Source =A=+—H =A=+—H
BEHER HRIR LFE ILFE
KPI A1.1
KPI A1.1
Emission Data from Gaseous Fuel Consumption
FERBEENEREE
Unit Units of LPG consumed 55,200 MJ 146,280.00 MJ
B RICA M RIHEFEE KEH KEE
Emission type (in kg) Nitrogen Oxides 220.8 585.12
R (A FREE) AELD
Sulphur Oxides 1.10 2.93
ety
Emission Data from Vehicles
RENEREE
Unit Kilometers travelled 337,699.00 km 406,167.00 km
B BEITRAR nE nE
Emission type (in kg) Nitrogen Oxides 303.38 337.44
PR (A FRatE) AELD
Particulate Matter 29.11 32.37
CER TR
Sulphur Oxides 0.83 0.97
k=R |7
Units of fuel consumed Diesel 35,825.43 L 36,067.82 L
BRI e 7t Pan
Petrol 17,098.49 L 25,751.44 L
s 7t 7t
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Emission Indicators

BERER

KPI A1.2
KPI A1.2

Total Greenhouse Gas (“GHG”) Emissions

BERBAERE

Scope 1: Director Emissions or Removals from sources

BE1  ERRERBERIAR

Scope 1a - GHG emissions

from stationary combustion

sources

#HE1a —ETRNAEERE
HERL

Emission type (in kg)
R (A FREtE)
Scope 1b — GHG emissions
from mobile combustion
sources

HE1b —REBRBEIRAAE
REBHE L

Emission type (in kg)
R (A FREE)

Units of fuel consumed

EIHFERE

LPG

BAL AR,
Carbon Dioxide
—&1Lhx

Units of fuel consumed

R

Diesel

e

Petrol

EaW:i

Carbon Dioxide
=R (74

For the
Year ended
31 March 2025

BEZE-ZT-1F
=A=+-—8
ILFEE

1,200 kg
Tx
3,620.47

35,825.43 L
F
17,098.49 L
F
142,711.50

For the

Year ended

31 March 2024
BE-Z-NOF
=H=+—H
LHE

3,180 kg
s
9,594.24

36,067.82 L
Ft
25,751.44 L
F
167,825.68
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Emission Indicators

BERER

Scope 2 - Energy Indirect Emissions

HE2 EREMBEAZEREHER

Emission type (in kg)
R (A FREE)

Unit of Electricity Consumed
Carbon Dioxide

— &bk

Scope 3 - Other Indirect Emissions

HES HtEMEAZREER

Emission type (in kg)
PR (AT RETE)

Emission type (in kg)
PERER (AT RETH)

Total Amount of Carbon Dioxide Produced during the Reporting Period

(in kg):

Paper waste disposed at landfills
EEIHERMNER

Carbon Dioxide

— &1 bhx

Business air travel by employees
Total aircraft fuel burn/journey
12 8 - A R N 2 58 AR IRk
Carbon Dioxide

—&1bhx

RBEREEE 2 —aikgs (FTr):

Carbon emission intensity (metric tonnes of carbon dioxide equivalent/

per thousand revenue)
B RE E (AW — | bR

i3

B/ 8TWA)
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For the
Year ended
31 March 2025

BE-Z_FHF
=H=+—H
IEFE

93,984 kWh
TRE
50,784.42

470 kg
T
2,256.96

314,617.00

4,801.00

204,174.34

0.24

For the

Year ended

31 March 2024
BE-Z-MOF
=H=t+—H
X3

119,848 kWh
TR
71,057.76

501 kg
Fr
2,404.80

530,568.60

5,697.2

256,479.69

0.23
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During the Reporting Period, the total amount of carbon dioxide
produced by the Group decreased by 20% compared to
FY2023/24, mainly due to the disposal of vehicles and cease
of staff meal provision in PRC. However, the carbon emission
intensity has slightly increased due to the decrease in revenue
during the Reporting Period. Nonetheless, the Group has achieved
the target for the Reporting Period of maintaining the carbon
emission intensity at/below 0.2 metric tonnes per thousand
revenue. To uphold the principles of sustainable development,
the Group is committed to reduce the impact of its operation
on carbon footprints, and aims to maintain or reduce the GHG
emissions intensity between 95% to 120% for the next reporting
period, against the baseline year ended 31 March 2022. To
reduce the emissions generated by the Group, we have adopted
several measures for the management of vehicles, including but
not limited to, reasonable use of vehicles, prohibition of private
use and strict approval for long-distance travel arrangements
to reduce unnecessary travel. Mitigating measures for reducing
indirect emission from electricity consumption and paper waste
are detailed in the below subsection headed “Environmental
— Energy and Water Consumption” and “Hazardous and Non-
hazardous Wastes” respectively. We monitor and report Scope 3
emissions to enhance our carbon reduction efforts by identifying
large emission sources along our value chain. We acknowledge
our business air travel as a significant contributor to our carbon
footprint and understand the importance of addressing its
environmental impact through mitigation measures. We strive
to reduce the frequency of flights and associated emissions by
encouraging remote communication. We remain committed to
addressing this issue and taking proactive measures to improve
our performance.

REERBEHEMEEAN LR BER
ZEZ= /ZHFERAL20%  EEZERAEFH
EERERFILIETIRAHBEAR - AT  H
R 2 A R MR AR A+ B O ik B RO R 0
me-BEWY AEECERREHHEZ
BRERBEERBFES TRAQ2ABISIAT
ARERBARHERERI AEBBIRRLH
KETHHRETNTE W HARKET @R
EHABRERBHEREEEBE S -
FZAZ+—BLEEEFEHALRBTEBRE
120%38K A T o AR D AN 5 B EE A /9 B0 AP
KOS EEMERER BREETRRAEME
AE®m ZHABRBERENEREE TR
LA D A 6 BT < 5 2 B 0 H A R B AR
HEI R B R IS e 9 B T 3L N3R35 — BB R &K
HEIRIBEREZEEY] D a0 - B
ERWHREHE R E REETCEEEL
A B K HE B S DN o B R Bk T - B PIR R -
REEEIINABRTERBMRETNEERE
B RBEREREALRESENSEE -
BMPSBERBE SHRIRITEERIEEHE
HEm - BB EER NN RE & WIR
R Z RPN R -
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Hazardous and Non-hazardous Wastes

Due to the nature of operation, the Group does not generate
hazardous waste from its operations in the PRC. Hazardous
wastes are generated during our daily operations in Hong Kong,
which are mainly clinical wastes from the provision of beauty
and slimming treatments, such as syringes, needles and medical
dressings. Non-hazardous wastes are mainly office-use paper in
the PRC and Hong Kong.

The Group has complied with all relevant laws and regulations that
have a significant impact on us, including but not limited to “Waste
Disposal Ordinance” in Hong Kong. The Group exercises special
caution when handling clinical wastes, which are segregated
from municipal solid wastes and other waste streams. Moreover,
qualified third-party waste recycling companies are engaged for
clinical waste disposals. Despite the fact that the generation of
clinical waste is inevitable in our ordinary course of business, we
strive to mitigate the generation of it, our employees are educated
on proper clinical waste disposal and are constantly reminded
to avoid using excessive materials during daily operations and
treatments.

To minimize the adverse environmental impact caused by the
disposal of paper, the Group uses environmentally friendly paper
and promotes the use of double-sided printing. For any double-
sided printing, the relevant paper should be reused under the
circumstances that no confidential information was printed on
one side of the paper. Moreover, ink cartridges are recycled upon
full usage to avoid the generation of non-hazardous wastes. The
Group aspires to move towards paperless operations through
the implementation of electronic administrative platforms and
communication channels. The wastes produced during the
Reporting Period are detailed in the following table (KPI A1.3 and
KPI A1.4).

SAU SAN TONG HOLDINGS LIMITED {65 Z#ERAER AR
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FERBEERY

HREBEE AKRERTEZEZEYBES
BEEREED AEREVWREAREB ZATEE
EREL TEREUXANBREREMEL
ZEFEEY Pl HEREREF -
BEEEENIEZRTELREERAEAK-

AEBECEETHAYRMBERZEZARZX
BEER BRETRREEZ(EVREE K
)y - AEBEREEEREMEER /N LER
A # EL S2#R T (B B8 RE ) K LA BE YD B © LS -
BMERAERF =T BREYRLRLRRRES
BEZRY SERMANBEEEHERETATE SR
WwELBRERY BRMABNRIEELE -
REREEIMEEBRERY L TEHREER
ERAREEMFEBRETELBEEMBME -

AEEERREECTHNREZERERK.
REBEEARRA R RHEREEE DR TR
CEAORMARTEHERZER AEERF
AR - EeHAT 220 MU
HEOEEREREEY AEEEREBE FI7
HTrak@BMEE AEERRALE - NW
EHEEEZEEYR TRFY (KPI A1.3%
KPI A1.4) °
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Waste Indicators

BEYERZ

KPI A1.3

KPI A1.3

Total hazardous waste produced

FEEEEBREYEE
Syringe
a ik
Glass Tube
BEE
Contaminated Cotton
BT R
Gloves
F=

Hazardous wastes produced per treatment provided

BRRBEEZHEREY

Syringe

I 5T 28

Glass Tube

BEE

Contaminated Cotton
B3R RE

Gloves

FE

KPI A1.4
KPI A1.4
Non-hazardous wastes produced per capita

ALFRELEBRERERY

Paper

i
Total non-hazardous wastes produced
FEEBRERREYRE

Paper

S

For the
Year ended
31 March 2025

For the
Year ended
31 March 2024

BZ-E-_1fF #®HE-FT-OHE

=ZA=+-H
IEFE

=ZA=+-H
IEFE

(in kg)
(AT R E)
0.0370 0.0550
0.0000 0.0750
0.0225 0.0370
0.0875 0.6670

(in kg per treatment provided)

(ABRERTRHE)

0.000010 0.000012
0.000000 0.000017
0.000006 0.000008
0.000024 0.000148

(in kg per capita)

(XA FREHE)
2.6869 2.2267
470.20 501.00
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The Group is not aware of any material cases of non-compliance
with laws and regulations relating to generation of hazardous and
non-hazardous wastes during the Reporting Period. The Group
has achieved the target of maintaining the intensity of hazardous
wastes and non-hazardous wastes produced below 0.001 kg
per treatment provided and 2.8 kg per capita respectively in
the Reporting Period. The Group will make continuous efforts in
maintaining or reducing the intensity of total hazardous and non-
hazardous wastes produced between 95% to 120% for the next
reporting period, against the baseline year ended 31 March 2022.

Use of Resources

The Group believes that environmental sustainability is the key to
its long-term development. The management of waste and water
resources are priorities under our strategy. We always aspire to
promote sustainability and strive to cease resources wastage.

Energy and Water Consumption

During the Reporting Period, 93,984.00 kWh (2023/24:
119,848.00 kWh) of electricity, 1,615 (2023/24: 2,437) cubic
metres of water and 55,200 MJ of LPG (2023/24: 146,280 MJ)
were consumed. The electricity, water and LPG consumption
intensities are detailed in the following table (KPI A2.1 and KPI
A2.2).

Energy and Water Indicators Source

REREEKERZ IR

KPI A2.1 & 2.2

KPI A2.1 & 2.2

Consumption per capita

AGFEE
Electricity
EWs)
Water
K
LPG
BAL A MR
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REBWTHNBRRERHBETMBBREE
BENEBEEBREMIERRFERZIERNTER
EE-RREHHE AKECERBELESR
EREYREEEEMEE D RZEH1£0.001
TRUATREAEETRIUTZEZE - AEEH
BENKET —EAREHRNBEMEEEERE
EEEYREREE _T_—_F=A=+—H
IEEEFEEERFEISNE120% I AT ©

BIRE A

AEEHEEREVHEERERBR 2R -
EHEMANKES HREZVNKERNEE
REAZFR - BMARTHDAFEER UTXK
NTBREER-

BER K 7K OH #%

R¥EERE - Ei%ﬁﬁ9398400:FEH%(:=;
Z=/ZMEE:119,848.00F R )E 5
1,615(_7_:/_E$J;~2,437)_LE71—
KEKS5200KkER(ZE == /ZHFE:
146,280 K EH)RILAMA - FEEE - FEK=E
MBI EBRREERERTER (KPI A2.1 &KPI
A2.2) 55 o

For the

Year ended

31 March 2024
ZE-NUEF
=A=+—H
LFE

For the
Year ended
31 March 2025

BE-ZT-8Ff BEZ

=Z=A=+-—8
IEFE

290.20 kWh per 315.81 kWh per

capita capita

AT R A9 F R

9.23 cubic 10.83 cubic
metres per capita metres per capita
ALK ALK
315.43 MJ per 650.13 MJ per
capita capita
ABKEFH AEKEH
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The electricity intensity of this year was slightly decreased by 8%,
showing our commitment to sustainability and energy saving.
The water intensity and LPG intensity decreased by 15% and
62% respectively compared to last year. This is attributed to the
cease of staff meal provision in PRC. We will continue our efforts
to explore all feasible ways to achieve targets of reduction. Due
to the business nature of the Group, the consumption of water,
electricity and LPG is relatively minimal. The Group will strive
towards the target of maintaining or reducing the electricity and
LPG consumption intensity between 95% to 120% for the next
reporting period, against the baseline year ended 31 March 2022.
The Group has implemented mitigating measures to reduce its
usage of energy, which include, but not limited to, the following:

° Keep indoor temperature at 24 degrees Celsius or above;
° Switch off electrical appliances when they are not in use;
° Enable energy-saving mode of printers;

° Use energy-efficient light bulbs, such as LED lamps;

° Display eco-friendly reminders to raise employees’
awareness of energy saving;

The Group does not have any issue in sourcing water, and the
existing supply of water meets our daily operational needs. Water
consumption of the Group mainly serves the purpose of cleaning
and sanitation. In addition, shower rooms are available at our
beauty centres for clients to take showers after body treatments.
We offer showers instead of baths, which significantly reduced
water consumption. Moreover, water conservation notices are
displayed in prominent areas in the office and the beauty centres.
The Group has achieved its target of maintaining the intensity of
water consumption at/below 12 cubic metres per capita in the
Reporting Period. The Group strives to reduce water usage and
increase overall water usage efficiency. We will make continuous
efforts in working towards the target of maintaining or reducing
the intensity of total water consumption between 95% to 120%
for the next reporting period, against the baseline year ended 31
March 2022.

AEENREEREEMRI8% BRTH
P ER FHERE REAIRRE R A - M
EFMEL BKBEERRELAERAREERED
BT FE15%K%62% ILAEFREEILIETIRER
HEAB -RMEBRFTH TR —DATEHR
BB BRI E - AR AEB 2 EBKHEE
FER K BRRECABRZEERER D
AEBE O RKEREERREAHERERE
BEE T - _F=-A=+—HILEEFEH
LERFFEISHBE120% AT - REEE B4
BIERAR D EERER BEEBTRRAT
BIH

s ERNREHEFNBE24FHIAL:

s BIETERZESR:

o FIRRENRIH 2 EHREE S :

o  EREARRME B PIANLEDE ;

e RERRETR URSEBEEZER:

& B 2 oK I M A A 7R N 3R B K BE 4
EHEMzAREETE-ASBENREKEEA
RBEBRRBE W BHI2ETRLEMRD
EHETTETIRBERELA -BMEH
WA R BE I FER L - Al KIR R A FEKE o b ok -
HKBEERRURPHERERERFOZER
UE - AEBERBERHEREEKBER
BEABHI2Y A ASIATZEZ - REBRA
AR RIEMEBEA KRR  NEEGEE
NKET—EARGSHARNBEEKEERZEHES
—E =A==+ —HLEEFERLFS
HI5%E120% AT »
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Packaging Materials

Packaging materials consumed by the Group mainly included
polystyrene boxes, paper boxes, filler, straps and stretch film.
During the Reporting Period, 19.23 tonnes of (2023/24: 24.60
tonnes) of polystyrene boxes and paper boxes, 0.06 tonnes
(2023/24: 0.18 tonnes) of filler, 0.72 tonnes (2023/24: 1.13
tonnes) of straps and 6.72 tonnes (2023/24: 3.92 tonnes) of
stretch film were consumed. The intensities of the packaging
materials used are as follows.

Packaging Material Indicators Source

BENRIER
KPI A2.5
KPI A2.5
Packaging material per unit produced
BENELEZBEMH
Polystyrene Box and Paper Box
BABaNER
Filler
B
Strap
R
Stretch Film
BeR

The Group will strive to source responsibly. We will continue to
work with our supplier to continually improve in seeking greener
alternatives and minimize the use of packaging, where practicable
or suitable options exist.
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BEMH

AEERAZEEMBEIZREERARE
e EHRY REREEE -RBEEHE
FA1928M (ZE - = /M4 E:24.60M)
BTHABERKE 006 (T -_= /—MHN4F
E:018ME)EFRYW 072 (—E—-= /Y
FEE 118 RERE.7T2H (T -= /=N
FE 3020 BER -CEABREMBREN
To

For the

Year ended

31 March 2024
gz _mHE
=H=t+—H
LEFE

For the
Year ended
31 March 2025

BE—Z_-1f%
=A=+-—8
IEFEE

0.106 0.088
0.000 0.001
0.004 0.006
0.037 0.016

AEBEBEHaETHRBE - RMABEESRR
PEHEE A THEESKERRNER
o WEATHEENEEFENRATERE
B REER -



ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL & GOVERNANCE REPORT

RIEBE-AEKE

\\A-’FE( =

Climate Change

As a part of the Group’s ESG strategies formulation, the Board
has an overall responsibility for overseeing the Group’s climate-
related risks and opportunities. Our ESG Working Group regularly
review and identify climate-related issues that may pose risks to
the Group in the short, medium and long term. The Group has
considered the potential climate-related risks in respect of the
recommendations of the Task Force on Climate-related Financial
Disclosures. The potential physical risks and transition risks from
climate change, which may pose adverse financial impacts on the

RIRE

Group’s businesses, and its corresponding mitigation strategies
are shown as follows.

ERAKEIRE & NE QR H T H — &6
D EE® %EEE\%%$E@E’JﬁﬂﬂH%§H
R B M AIRE
HimE K # R A
EHRBRHNREEBEE ASECRBRIK
HEAMERETIE)ENERE ZREERRK
MR KR o AR E (L AT B
MY BFENBEERR RSB
B8 4% AR SRS 40 T FATUR ©

e kERTHEMARE
REHASEBKER 8K

ERARERBEBERT
B B e B AR

Increased compliance costs and
potential disruption to operations caused
by new climate-related regulations, such
as restriction on electricity consumption
level.

MR EABERENEBRANEE
(BHE DREBEEKT

Short-term
(This Reporting
Potential Financial Impact Period) Medium-term Long-term
Risk Type BEMBHE T (RgE (1-3 years) (4-10 years) Mitigation Strategy
Bk ER Lowff Medium® [ High® ) T (1-3%F) | R (4-10%F) RERE
Transition Risks | Policy and Legal
BERR BERER

Regularly monitor the regulatory
environment and strictly adhere to the
Group’s emission-reduction measures to
maintain a low emission level.
EREANEERRLBRRETREEN
WHHE R AR EHBURT

Technology
MH
Transition costs to more energy-efficient
treatment machines and technologies,
which include costs to adopt and deploy
new processes, capital investment,
research and development expenditures
and write-offs or early retirement of
existing assets.
BEZEHENRRERREMOLA -
DEFARDBEN TR EXRE HE
FXARRBEENMERRABEN
PR

Continue to keep abreast of the latest
development in slimming and beauty
technologies and energy-efficient
equipment.
FERB AR AR A
BHER-

REN

Physical Risks
BERRR

Acute

b33

Extreme weather conditions such as
flooding and storms that lead to supply
chain disruption, disruption to daily
operation and loss of property and
revenue.

BH AR (K RER) SR e
Bl BEEETE AR E RE
Bx-

Chronic

-4

Increased operating costs related to
increased need for cooling and heating
due to changing temperatures.
BRFREILEHER REABIEM:
B E R AL

Maintain a large supplier base and set
up safety measures and contingency
plans in regards to extreme climate
events.

BREANHEERHRAR 1ot EnR R
SHRUTPRIEREE S

Strengthen the environmental awareness
of employees to ensure that they

strictly adhere to the Group’s energy
conservation measures.
MERENRRED BRESERKE
FAEEME R
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It is expected that the transition and physical risks do not have
any material impact on the Group’s operations. Nevertheless,
the Group will continue to monitor the climate-related risks
and implemented relevant measures to minimise the potential
transition and physical risks.

Social
Overview

The Group strongly believes that the key to our success is our
strong team of qualified and experienced talents. We focus on
building a pleasant working environment for all employees and
providing various training opportunities to our employees so as to
attract, motivate and retain talents.

Compliance and Grievance

As a responsible employer, the Group has complied with all
relevant employment laws and regulations that have a significant
impact on us, including but not limited to “Employment
Ordinance” in Hong Kong, “Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes
Ordinance” in Hong Kong, “Minimum Wage Ordinance” in Hong
Kong, “Sex Discrimination Ordinance” in Hong Kong, “Employees’
Compensation Ordinance” in Hong Kong, and the “Labour Law
of the PRC”, the “Labour Contract Law of the PRC”, the “Law of
the PRC on Work Safety”, the “Social Insurance Law of the PRC”,
the “Law of the PRC on the Protection of Rights and Interests of
Women” and the “Law of the PRC on the Protection of Disabled
Persons”.

Employment

The Group has established internal policies in accordance with
the relevant labour laws and regulations related to compensation
and dismissal, recruitment and promotion, working hours,
holidays, equal opportunity, diversity, anti-discrimination and other
benefits and welfare. Our internal policies are to be reviewed by
the Human Resources Department on a regular basis to ensure
that they are kept in line with the latest applicable laws and
regulations.

To ensure that our key policies are clearly and consistently
communicated to our employees, the Group has established
an “Employees’ Handbook”, which details the rights of our
employees, such as working hours, leave entitlements and other
benefits and welfare. Each employee is provided with a copy of
the “Employees’ Handbook” when he/she joins the Group.
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Our Team

The Group believes that a team with diversified background and
equal opportunities is indispensable to the success of our
business. We strive to ensure that our recruitment process is fair
and without any discrimination. As of 31 March 2025, the Group
had a total of 175 (2023/24: 225) employees?®. The breakdowns of
our workforce by gender, age group, region and employment type
are as follows.

Breakdown of Workforce

% TE4

By Gender
gl

Male
S
Female
egi
By Age
RER

<25

255 AT
25-29
30-39
40-49
>50

508% MA

By Region
B’ &

PRC

a3

HK

e

By Employment Type
EREERR

Full-time
28
Part-time

o BB

2 The scope of this ESG report only covers the operations of provision of
beauty and slimming services in Hong Kong and distribution of skincare
and cosmetic products in the PRC.

BM @B

AEERE EEZAEERTSEHE 2EK
RRMEERN AT 2 - ?JHFWJT\T:E
RPEABAFLTERR - HE_SE_RHF
=B=+—8" ZF?E@%:'/\T?S(_T_:/
“FEE:225)ZEE2 - HVIRMR - Fic Al
A& RIEBBEEI D 28 TRRASININT -

For the

Year ended

31 March 2025
a:l: —_— 7 —_— £ ﬂE
=A=+—H1
FE

67

108

49
77
41

106

69

170

g AR HERELARENEEERENTER
A R BB AR S A R 5 b B 5 8 T S R bt
mEB-
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NUMBER OF EMPLOYEES BY GENDER
IN 2024/25
R-Bopm / —HFEERNEFES 2 EEHE

Female B Male

oy St

NUMBER OF EMPLOYEES BY AGE GROUP
IN 2024/25
R-Zom / —hFERFRANED 2EBERE

Below 25 25-29 M 30-39 M 40-49 I Above 50
<25BRMAT  25-29  30-39 4049 >B0BUMAL

1% 4%

SAU SAN TONG HOLDINGS LIMITED &5 = RAER AT
Annual Report 2024/25 FE k&

NUMBER OF EMPLOYEES BY REGION
IN 2024/25
R-E-M/ —HEERGEE S ZEEHE

Hong Kong B PRC
B FE

NUMBER OF EMPLOYEES BY EMPLOYMENT
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During the Reporting Period, 69 employees left the key operating M ¥R&EHE  REBUREB RN EEZTEE
units of the Group in Hong Kong and Shanghai, with a total EE{IH9LESH T EELIHTRELEA
employee voluntary turnover rate of 39%, increase from 17% in  39% & _T_-= /—MFEEM17%HE T LT
the year 2023/24. The breakdowns of employee turnover rate of AREFIZMH R - FkA5 kR EH 2 EE K

the Group by gender, age group, and region are as follows. SR BHMAME Y O o
For the
Year ended
Percentage of Employee Turnover Rate 31 March 2025
BE-Z-A8fF
ZA=+-—-HL
EERKE FE
By Gender
2 1 Bl
Male 34%
B
Female 43%
i
By Age
RER
<25 150%
253 AN
25-29 50%
30-39 43%
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>50 49%
508% A =
By Region
Rith &
PRC 42%
&
HK 36%
s
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Welfare and Benefits

The Group has established a fair and reasonable remuneration
policy with the principles of fairness, incentive and legality.
For effective personnel management, we offer rewards (e.g.
promotion) and inflict punishments (e.g. warning and dismissal)

according to the employees’ performance and conduct.

Employees are entitled to all statutory holidays, leave and welfare
as stipulated in the national and local laws and regulations,
including but not limited to, paid maternity leave, marriage leave,
compassionate leave, compensation leave and annual leave. In
addition, we offer staff discounts and medical insurance to our
employees.

Child Labour and Forced Labour

The Group does not tolerate the recruitment of child labour and the
use of forced labour, and ensures that the labour contracts signed
with its employees are on a fair, equal, voluntary, and mutually
agreed basis. Our recruitment is subject to a stringent internal
review process that includes verifying the personal information of
applicants. For instance, the staff member who is responsible for
recruitment collects the identity proof from candidates to ensure
that the age of candidates fulfills the requirements as stipulated
by the law. Any use of false documents will be deemed as
fraudulent and any related signed labour contract will be deemed
invalid by the Group.

During the Reporting Period, the Group has complied with
relevant employment laws and regulations, including but not
limited to the “Law of the Protection of Minors in the PRC”, the
“Provisions on the Prohibition of Using Child Labour” in the PRC.
All our employees were over the age 18, and had been properly
employed in accordance with the requirements of all applicable
laws and regulations. The Group does not use any unlawful or
unfair means to restrict the employee benefits and rights enjoyed
by its employees. No non-compliance incidents or grievances
were noted by the Group during the Reporting Period.
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Equal Opportunity, Diversity and Anti-discrimination

The Group always endeavors to provide a fair and impartial
working environment where the employees are treated equally
and paid due respect. For the recruitment and promotion
process, all employees and candidates are assessed based on
their competence, performance, qualification and contribution
irrespective of their nationality, race, gender, age, religion,
physical ability, sexual orientation, skin colour, marital status
or family status. The Group has enforced policies that prohibit
discrimination and harassment. The Group strives to create a
workplace free of bullying, belittling or sexual harassment.

Health and Safety

The Group is dedicated to providing a safe working environment
for all our employees. Occupational health and safety of our
employees are always our top priority and we make every effort to
minimize potential occupational hazards.

During the Reporting Period, the Group has complied with the
relevant laws and regulations, including but not limited to, the
“Occupational Safety and Health Ordinance” in Hong Kong
and the “Law of the PRC on the Prevention and Treatment of
Occupational Diseases”.

To protect our employees from all kinds of workplace hazards, a
comprehensive set of policies has been established in regard to
occupational health and safety management. Stringent control
measures are in place during our daily operations to ensure
that a high standard of hygiene is maintained throughout the
treatment process. For instance, cosmetologists are required to
put on personal protective equipment, such as surgical masks,
protective goggles and gloves, when performing medical and
beauty treatments.

Moreover, the Group has established “Safety Management
Guidelines” for the use of special equipment and tools, such as
needles, laser machine, forklift and slimming machine. The Group
ensures that its employees are certified before assigning them
to operate special equipment. The certificates of the employees
are properly retained during the service period of the respective
employees. The Human Resources Department closely monitors
the validity of these certificates.
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In order to raise the awareness of health and safety at the
workplace, the Group provides regular safety training to
employees who are responsible for operating forklifts. In case
of any work-related injuries, the Group will take all necessary
measures to make sure that proper medical care is offered to
the relevant employee. During the Reporting Period, we have
organized training sessions in respect of forklift operations for all
relevant employees, covering safety measures in operations and
maintenance of forklifts.

Furthermore, the Group has developed an emergency plan in
regard to fire accidents. We have equipped our office and stores
with sufficient fire equipment, such as fire extinguishers and fire
hydrants. The equipment is under regular checks to confirm they
are in good condition. Fire and emergency drill are organized on
a regular basis to familiarize our employees with the protocols for
emergency situations.

In the past three years including this Reporting Period, there were
three cases of work-related injuries, resulting in a total of 191 lost
days as we have pledged to provide sufficient days of sick leave
for our employees to compensate for their injuries. During the
Reporting Period, a case of work-related injury and resulted in 8
lost days was reported and recorded by the Group. Due to the
dedicated efforts was made, we maintained our record of zero
work related fatalities over the past three years.

Year ended
31 March 2025

BE-_Z_51fF

Occupational health and safety statistics

=A=t+-8

BEEERZ2H

Work-related fatalities
TEHEBETER
Work-related injuries
5

Lost days

R ) R B

SAU SAN TONG HOLDINGS LIMITED €5 E R G R A A
Annual Report 2024/25 FE k&

RESTESMZEBFEERE2EH  NEER
BERFEREZEERHERZ2HI -
BERMIE AEBESRNAE L EREG #
RAEBERRMEE BREE - N RSEHHE
BPARIEESREZMBERBREERREI
ERREBRREREMMREZIL2ER-

gEAN - AREE B K AT E R SE R BME
B ARERFIEBEFBI BN RE  OIR N
2 NOAEDIAE - R E SR E R B AR EAMNR
REF-BMEREBAXRERRS REER
ABEZBR TR

RBE=F (BRBEHHE) BLEB=RTH
EH-AREMEAxRRESREEAREBA
BONMEERE ERAKINKRRY KK
RBER[ AEERELRHE -FRTEEH
WEKBRRERE - ERMTWNE N T
PRBE=FRMERTFEBREXNIETSE
W o

For the For the For the

Year ended Year ended

31 March 2024 31 March 2023
BE-T-_NF #BE-ZT=-=

=H=+—H =H=+—H

LEFE LFE LEFE

0 0 0

1 case 0 2 cases

— R GBS

8 days 0 183 days

8K 183K



ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL & GOVERNANCE REPORT

B HEREARS

Development and Training

The Group regards employees as our most valuable assets.
Thus, we place great emphasis on personal development of our
employees. A wide range of training programmes are provided
to our employees every year to enhance their knowledge and
capabilities. Orientation training sessions are provided to newly
recruited employees by their department supervisors. The
orientation training covers an introduction of our Group, corporate
culture, code of conduct and safety regulations.

Moreover, regular training on technical skills and customer
services are provided to our employees to make sure that all
employees have sufficient knowledge and skills to provide
quality services to our customers. Upon the completion of the
aforementioned training, our staff members are equipped with
professional knowledge for performing treatments and handling
customers’ demands.

In addition, employees are encouraged to attend external training
courses and seminars that help them strengthen their knowledge
and expertise at work. Fees incurred for the courses or seminars
are sponsored by the Group upon management’s approval.
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During the Reporting Period, 48% of our total employees have
completed training. The Group has conducted 391.5 hours of
training in total, while the average training hour completed per
employee was 2.24 hours. The breakdown of employees who
took part in training and average number of training hours per
employee by gender and employment category are as follows:

Average training hours completed per employee

BERETEARIZFHIEH

By Gender
214 5Bl

Male

ol s

Female

geglid

By Employment Category
RERER

Entry Level
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&

Management Level
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Percentage of total employees trained
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Supply Chain Management

The Group recognizes the importance of supply chain
management on its sustainable development. We are committed
to establishing long-term and harmonious relationships with all
our suppliers. Hence, the Group cooperates and communicates
with our suppliers closely to maintain the high quality of products
and services provided to our customers.

The Group expects its suppliers to uphold the principles of
integrity and pragmatism, and provide products and services
in strict compliance with the applicable laws and regulations.
During the selection of potential suppliers, the Group conducts
background screening to understand the potential supplier’s
scale, professional qualification, speed of response, quality of
products and services, as well as reputation in the industry. The
Group also considers environmental protection, occupational
health and safety, labour rights and compliance with relevant
laws and regulations when selecting potential suppliers, with an
aim of bringing positive impacts to the entire supply chain. Only
suppliers who have passed the background screening and met
our products and services quality requirements were added to our
list of qualified suppliers.

Approved suppliers of the Group are evaluated at least once
annually to ensure the quality of products and services acquired
are up to standard. The Group also continuously monitor and
evaluate suppliers for their record of handling environmental and
social issues. Suppliers who fail in our supplier assessment for a
prolonged period of time are to be disqualified by the Group.

During the Reporting Period, we had 7 suppliers in total, including
6 suppliers in Hong Kong and 1 in PRC. The Group will continue
to work closely with our suppliers and strive to optimize our
supply chain capabilities in order to fulfill our responsibilities in
social and environmental protection.

HEEEE

AEERAHEREEHEAKEERIER
- BRMBNEAKREMAHRERARZIREM
MEMEE - Fi AEEEfEHET S F
FER UHFREPRHEEREREZE M
o

AEBEBRMHERSETHERKEZRA
I 1R R EE dn Ko AR 7 B BRAR B <T IE DA R JOE
R-RUBEEHERR AEEETERE
BUABMBCEHER AR EXER DE
RE ERLBRBERENANRTEABE KK
BAAREEEHEREZBIRGE BERE
Azz BTRMARBBRIARIERZEMR
FH EEAREERERTREEZE R

BREESRHREMNIERMERRRBRERE
ZHEHREINARMZEERERERE-

BRI BF-RFREAEENSRUEER
NERFAEERIRBCEENAEE-AE
ErHEEE R AHEAREREIEER
Bz AEEEFBRARERTARMAM
R HIREEZ HER-

REEHE RAEARE7TRHER BHE6%
FEEHERIBTPEERE - ASEKES
HHERETFERSE BRIERMZHE
BEH EMETRMAZEE RRARAE

SAU SAN TONG HOLDINGS LIMITED &5 Z#=RAER AT

Annual Report 2024/25 FE K&



100

ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL & GOVERNANCE REPORT

B HEREARS

Product Responsibility

The Group strictly complies with the relevant laws and regulations
relating to product responsibility that have a significant impact
on us, including but not limited to, the “PRC Product Quality
Law”, “Law of the PRC on Protection of the Rights and Interest of
Consumers”, the “Tort Law of the PRC”, the “Trade Descriptions”

in Hong Kong and “Sale of Goods Ordinance” in Hong Kong.

During the Reporting Period, the Group was not aware of any
non-compliance with the relevant laws and regulations related
to health and safety, advertising, labelling and privacy matters
relating to the products and services provided by us.

Quality Assurance

The Group aspires to continuously improve our brand reputation
by ensuring the quality of our products and services.

Sound customer service is essential in maintaining long-term
relationship with our customers. Our management closely
monitors the quality of our services through feedback of our
‘mystery customers’.

To ensure that our staff members performing treatments possess
adequate knowledge and skills, they are required to hold
relevant certifications and qualifications. These certifications
and qualifications include, but not limited to, CICA diploma
in International professional beautician, International Therapy
Examination Council (“ITEC”) Level 2 Diploma for Beauty
Specialists, ITEC Level 3 Diploma in Facial Electrical Treatments
and ITEC Level 4 Diploma in Laser and Intense Pulsed Light
Treatments.

Moreover, standard operating procedures manuals are affixed to
the machines to ensure work consistency. Regular inspections
and maintenance work are performed to ensure that all our
machines are well-functioning. Shop managers are required to
immediately report any machinery malfunctions and defects to the
head office for repair and maintenance.
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The Group offers high quality products, and we strive to minimize
our product liability risk. Before launching any new products,
we request samples from the suppliers or factories and engage
a third-party professional to perform quality control inspections
on the samples. Products are only launched if they comply with
Good Manufacturing Practice (“GMP”) Guidelines. During the
Reporting Period, no products sold or shipped were subject to
recalls for safety or health reasons.

Complaints Handling Procedures

Customers’ opinions and feedback help to drive our continuous
improvement and are vital to our pursuit of excellence. The Group
has established various communication channels (e.g. website,
customer service hotline and Customer Service Department),
aiming to better address customers’ concerns.

The Group makes every effort to promptly investigate and
resolves all disputes and complaints lodged by the customers.
All complaints received are referred to and handled by the
Sales Team. Upon the receipt of a compliant, the responsible
personnel will investigate into the matter and take appropriate
action accordingly. If a reported complaint on product quality is
confirmed and is found to be caused by the supplier/factory, the
Group will terminate the agreement with the relevant supplier or
factory and may take appropriate legal actions, if necessary.

To ensure customers’ satisfaction, we proactively seek feedback
from our customers. If our customers are not satisfied with a
particular package that they have purchased from us, we will
reach the relevant customer to offer an exchange of another
package. In the last resort, we may offer refund to our customers
upon the approval of Department Head of Sales and Operations.

During the Reporting Period, the Group received no material
complaint relating to product and service quality.
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Personal Data Privacy

During the Reporting Period, the Group has complied with the
“Personal Data (Privacy) Ordinance” in Hong Kong, “Personal
Information Protection Law of the PRC” and the “Cybersecurity
Law of the PRC” in collecting, processing and using the
customers’ personal data. In order to build customer trust and
loyalty, the Group has established measures to reduce the risk
of employees leaking confidential information. Our customer
information is properly stored in our secured information
technology system with access restrictions and in a locked
cabinet for those in hardcopy.

The Group strictly prohibits the use of customers’ private data for
any purposes other than what has been stated in the customer
contracts. Disciplinary action is to be taken against the employee
who has been discovered of misappropriating customers’ private
data.

In order to raise employees’ awareness of customer data
protection, we conduct regular training to provide clear guidance
on proper handling of customers’ personal data.

Intellectual Property Rights

During the Reporting Period, the Group has complied with laws
and regulations regarding intellectual property rights in Hong
Kong and the PRC that have a significant impact on us, including,
but not limited to, the “Copyright Ordinance” in Hong Kong,
“Trademark Law of the PRC”, “Civil Code of the PRC” and the
“Copyright Law of the PRC”.

Currently, the Group has a number of trademarks registered in
Hong Kong and the PRC. A Trademark Register is maintained
by the Chief Operating Officer to monitor the validity of the
Group’s intellectual property concerned. The Trademark Register
includes information such as trademark logo, trademark number,
registration date, validity period, and registration status, etc.

Moreover, the Group acts proactively to enforce intellectual
property rights against third-party infringers. The Chief Operating
Officer is responsible for identifying any unauthorized use of the
trademarks by third-party. Legal actions are taken in due course
upon identification of any trademark infringements.
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Anti-Corruption

During the Reporting Period, the Group has complied with all
relevant laws and regulations relating to prevention of bribery,
extortion, fraud and money laundering, including but not limited
to, the “Prevention of Bribery Ordinance” in Hong Kong, the
“Criminal Law of the PRC”, the “Anti-Unfair Competition Law of
the PRC” and the “Anti-Money Laundering Law of the PRC”.

The Group prohibits any acts of corruption and bribery committed
by our employees. Our “Anti-Bribery and Corruption Policy”
clearly sets out guidelines for the acceptance of gifts. Under
the policy, all employees are required to exercise caution and
judgment when accepting gifts. Gifts should not be accepted if
they are in value higher than HK$200.

Moreover, our whistle-blowing policy clearly sets out the
procedures and channels for reporting corruption and fraud
cases. As stipulated in the policy, all employees should
immediately report any suspected corruptions or fraud cases to
the Group. After a potential case has been reported, investigation
will be conducted with due care. For any proven corruptions
or fraud cases, management will take appropriate action
immediately.

In case of conflicts of interest, our employees must declare their
personal interests and report the matters to management of the
Group. Employees are strictly prohibited to abuse their power
and/or take advantage of their position for personal gain.

Since the Group’s business is not highly exposed to the risk of
corruption, no training of such area was held during the Reporting
Period. All directors received training on corporate governance
prior to the Group’s listing or at the time of joining the Group, so
that they are aware of their duties and responsibilities on integrity.
The Group is planning to provide and subsidize training of anti-
corruption to its employees and director in the next reporting
year. During the Reporting Period, the Group was not aware of
any violations related to corruption, bribery, extortion, fraud or
money laundering.

K&

RIEMRE - NEBEETHRRG LBE BR-
BEFRARBZAERBERIER  BFEE
TERREEZ (BT LEBER GRS AP EZ (H
EARAMBERE) (PEARKMBERT
EHTE) (R EARKMBREEZE) -

AEEZELREFEHEAESRBBETR R
Pz TR REISHR | ARSI % AR
ZHES -REZBRR 2RBEENERERR
VEABHERTERELAH - EETEREREE
HRB200/E TT 2 RERE ©

AN AP Z B mBRB M B F B RE IS R
AFERZEFRRE -BAMZBEPTRIA A
BEREEIAARNKERFEASREISTIK
FFEZ -BHAIEERR RAKFEETH
LE-BEEEMMEMNCEE RS AR
BEDEZETH-

WHBREMNRER BELARFEBAANRER
MASEEEEEREREE HMELERE
B BE KSR R EL A 1S A A A

7 B

/|

HRAKREXEBYHSERERE S ZER
RESHRALBRTZBE 2B -MBEES
RASE ETRIINMAREEREORIEE
ERBI ITEEBEZBREREE AL
BEAENTEREFEAELREREENL
EREHMEDREF ZHFI-NREHE
AEEYEIZINETMEBES BHE IR
BFHSXBECRBRER

SAU SAN TONG HOLDINGS LIMITED &5 Z#=RAER AT

Annual Report 2024/25 FE K&

103



104

ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL & GOVERNANCE REPORT

R HERERRE

Community Investment

The Group understands the importance of giving back to the
society and our social responsibilities. The Group focuses its area
of contribution in education and health of the community. We are
committed to building a better community and encouraging our
employees to take part in community services so as to contribute
to a more sustainable and harmonious society.

The Group has established a Volunteer Team since 2005.
Voluntary services are organized by the Team on a regular basis,
with an aim of showing love and care for the community, as well
as understanding the needs of the community in which the Group
operates.

The Groups understands that financial support would greatly
benefit people in need. During the Reporting Period, the Group
made donations to various charitable organisations in Hong Kong
and the PRC to provide financial aid to people with financial
difficulties.

Resources that we have contributed to the community during the
Reporting Period are detailed in the following table (KPI B8.2).

Community Indicators

HEER

KPI B8.2

HERE

AEERBEBEHEREEREETZERL -
SEZEIERMBEBEREEHRE REE - HM
BHRYEXRFHE YEEEE2ELRR
B NEBRABEZMELE -

AEBEEB _TTAFEKRIETERK - ZEK
EHENETRYE TRELR 2 EEHE
VERASEREFEHR TR

AEERAD BERXEKEEFTEALTAKX
XE-RBEHAR AEEBRXTFTEERTHE
ZEEZA REVREBENALREMB
BB

RBESHE BMMEREMRZERN TRF
5I|(KPI B8.2) o

For the
Year ended
31 March 2025

BE-Z-5fF
=R=+—-H
LEE

Resources contributed to education, environmental concerns, labour needs, health, culture,

sport (Amount in HK$)

100,000

E¥E BE S$TIFR BR - EDFTHBEMPBRER ( LB THE)
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL & GOVERNANCE REPORT

R -HERERERE

Gem Listing Rules - Appendix C2:

Environmental, Social and Governance

Reporting Guide
Part A: Environmental

ESG Aspects

BRE -HERERER

A1. Emissions

Al. HERH

Information on the policies and compliance

with relevant laws and regulations that have a
significant impact on the issuer relating to air
and greenhouse gas emissions, discharges into
water and land, and generation of hazardous
and non-hazardous waste.
FRAERIMBERBYN  MKR TS
EEREEREVNELESHBER RETHE
TABEAZENHBEERROINER -

KPI A1.1 The types of emissions and respective
emission data.

B4R 4B RUBIRAT 1 BERR Y 18 28 I A8 B R PR -
KPI A1.2 Greenhouse gas emission in total (in
tonnes) and, where appropriate, intensity (e.g.
per unit of production volume, per facility).
BAREDIEIEAI2AERBABINRE (ABEGE)
NR(m@ER)®nE (WMASESEN SERKRME

= o
Ft

KPI A1.3 Total hazardous waste produced (in
tonnes) and, where appropriate, Intensity (e.g.
per unit of production volume, per facility).
BREVIERAIIMEEEEEEMRE (VAN
AER(MER)EE (WAEBEEEN BR
RpEtE) -

KPI A1.4 Total non-hazardous waste produced
(in tonnes) and, where appropriate, intensity (e.g.
per unit of production volume, per facility).
FREBIERMATEEESREEYRE (AN
AEI)R(MER)BE (WASESEN 88
RpEtE) -

GEMLETWR Al —[fféxC2 - BB -HE
RERBERSI

Related Section Remarks

HEEH L

Environmental — Overview, Emissions,
Hazardous and Non-Hazardous Wastes, Use of
Resources

RE -5 Y AEREZTEEY BR
i35

Emissions

73,8

Emissions

3¢

Hazardous and Non-Hazardous Wastes

Hazardous and Non-Hazardous Wastes

SAU SAN TONG HOLDINGS LIMITED &5 E 2R AR AT
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RE -HERERRE

ESG Aspects Related Section Remarks

RE HEREREM HEEH B

KPI A1.5 Description of emission target(s) set Emissions

and steps take to achieve them.

B B2 4R R IR A SR LRV E BRI E /9 FE e SR P 713587

SRR -

KPI A1.6 Description of how hazardous and Hazardous and Non-Hazardous Wastes
non-hazardous wastes are handled, and a

description of reduction target(s) set and steps

taken to achieve them.

BREEFRAHEIEEAEREETER BENBEEZERED
WA RERAEI VA REEERAETEL

B RPN 2P BR

A2. Use of Resources
A2. EREHA

Policies on the efficient use of resources, Energy and Water Consumption
including energy, water and other raw materials.

ERERER (BIEER KEREMEME)H BEIR IR KB 7%

SR o

KPI A2.1 Direct and/or indirect energy Energy and Water Consumption
consumption by type. (e.g. electricity, gas or oil)

in total (kWh in ’000s) and intensity (e.g. per unit

of production volume, per facility).

BREBERAARERESHNEER &M BE IR K KOH 7

EeeR (NE - -mion) @EE (U TFETF R

BIREE(MABEESEM BHERMETHE) -

KPI A2.2 Water consumption in total and Energy and Water Consumption
intensity (e.g. per unit of production volume, per

facility).

BREBIERA2EFRKERTE (MASEE RRAKER

B -ZERMEFE) -

KPI A2.3 Description of energy use efficiency Energy and Water Consumption
target(s) set and steps taken to achieve them.

78§ 48 BUIE 1R A2. 3% L P 7T 32 RO sE IR B AR BE IR K KOH #E
EERREINESELARARRNTRE-
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL & GOVERNANCE REPORT
RE -HEREBEHRE

ESG Aspects Related Section Remarks

RE -HERERER HEEH L

KPI A2.4 Description of whether there is any Energy and Water Consumption
issue in sourcing water that is fit for purpose,

water efficiency target(s) set and steps taken to

achieve them.

B4R 4B B IRA2. 448 i SREVE KR SR B BETR R IKH R
mEE AR VHAKREERRRESSE

Lt BRI 8K -

KPI A2.5 Total packaging material used for Packaging Materials
finished products (in tonnes) and, if applicable,

with reference to per unit produced.
BREMIERASHKmATABREMBNES BEM
(AMEEtE) R (@R BEEEMGSE -

A3. The Environmental and Natural Resources
A3. RERRKRER

Policies on minimizing the issuer’s significant Emissions, Hazardous and Non-Hazardous
impact on the environment and natural Wastes, Use of Resources

resources.

WEETAHRRERNRABERERKEATEDN BnYy EERBEEEREY BREM
K o

KPI A3.1 Description of the significant impacts Emissions, Hazardous and Non-Hazardous
of activities on the environment and natural Wastes, Use of Resources

resources and the actions taken to manage

them.

BREMEEASAERESEIHWBERRAR HRY BEREZHEEY BRER
BRONBEAZENREERDNEEREULENTE -
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R HERERRE

ESG Aspects

BRE -HERERER

A4. Climate Change
A4, RIRE

Policies on identification and mitigation of
significant climate-related issues which have
impacted, and those which may impact, the

issuer.
A REHELERA RS HETAEETEN
EARGHEBSERNBUR -

KPI A4.1 Description of the significant climate-
related issues which have impacted, and those
which may impact, the issuer, and the actions
taken to manage them.
FREZIEFAAIBMBE L RATREGHETA
EERENEARGEBEEREHTH

Part B: Social

ESG Aspects

RE - HERERE@

B1. Employment
B1. &%

Information on the policies and compliance

with relevant laws and regulations that have

a significant impact on the issuer relating to
compensation and dismissal, recruitment and
promotion, working hours, rest periods, equal
opportunity, diversity, anti-discrimination, and
other benefits and welfare.
ERAFMNRE BERET TESS BRH-
FEBE b RIEE AR H A8 RET
BBOR METHETATEAZENEERRY
B & K} o

KPI B1.1 Total workforce by gender, employment
type, age group and geographical region.

R ERUEIEB R - BEEE - FE AR
M@ E o rEB BB -

KPI B1.2 Employment turnover rate by gender,
age group and geographical region.

BB BUEIEB1 .21 M Rl - FE A R R [= E 5
E’\Jﬁéuﬁitt% °©

Remarks

B

Related Section
HHEEE

Climate Change

TR

Climate Change

FIRE (L

2E e

REINENS

Lk

Related Section
B E

Compliance and Grievance

CEEED

Our Team

Az BB

Our Team

Bz BB
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RE -HEREBEHRE

ESG Aspects Related Section Remarks

RE -HERERER HEEH L

B2. Health and Safety
B2. RERE

Information on the policies and compliance Health and Safety
with relevant laws and regulations that have

a significant impact on the issuer relating to

providing a safe working environment and

protecting employees from occupational hazards.
ERARMLZE2TIHERRRREBEEEHLOBENLE BREALZ2D
ENRERETHETABEAZENHEBEE

NAR G B HY

KPI B2.1 Number and rate of work-related Health and Safety
fatalities occurred in each of the past three years

including the reporting year.

FRREMIEFEBABE=F (BERERFE)E @EFRER:E

FERAITHMASRLEEX.

KPI B2.2 Lost days due to work injury. Health and Safety
R ERIEEB22A T IGEATERA & - REEZ 2

KPI B2.3 Description of occupational health Health and Safety

and safety measures adopted, how they are
implemented and monitored.

BB EMEEB MM AR AN B ERFEE L S
i KRBT RERT A

a
pa
bz
Al
HD
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RE -HERERRE

ESG Aspects Related Section Remarks

RE HEREREM HEEH B

B3. Development and training
B3. /R K E I

Policies on improving employees’ knowledge and Development and Training
skills for discharging duties at work. Description

of training activities.

FRARAREBITILEBRENABRBRENEK . R RKEFI
L IE PR E o

KPI B3.1 The percentage of employees trained Development and Training
by gender and employee category (e.g. senior

management, middle management).
BAREMIEEB IR REERR (NERE BERE

BE - HRAEEES)HESNXIEEBDL -

KPI B3.2 The average training hours completed Development and Training
per employee by gender and employee category.

BREMIEEB2RMN REEENE S B8  BEKE

1B B A A6 T -

B4. Labour standards
B4. & T %8|

Information on the policies and compliance Child Labour and Forced Labour
with relevant laws and regulations that have

a significant impact on the issuer relating to

preventing child and forced labour.

B LETITSATSITHBRRRETHETA EIRAHST
BEAZENHEBEEZLRDINER -

KPI B4.1 Description of measures to review Child Labour and Forced Labour
employment practices to avoid child and forced

labour.

MREDEREBA AR BB NEEARE EIRAGSET
REITRIRHIZE T -

KPI B4.2 Description of steps taken to eliminate  Child Labour and Forced Labour
such practices when discovered.

FREDIEEBAIH M AR RERBAKERE EIRARGST

BA 15 00 P ER B ) 22 B8
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R -HERERERE

ESG Aspects

RE - HEREREE

B5. Supply chain management
B5. ftlEEEE

Policies on managing environmental and social
risks of the supply chain.
ERHEENRE R ERMBUR -

KPI B5.1 Number of suppliers by geographical
region.
BRENIEEBS IR RE S HEREE -
KPI B5.2 Description of practices relating to
engaging suppliers, number of suppliers where
the practices are being implemented, how they
are implemented and monitored.

BB R EBs 2 IS e 18 I
MENTEEENHERRE - ANRAEED
BITRERA A

KPI B5.3 Description of practices used to
identify environmental and social risks along the
supply chain, and how they are implemented and
monitored.

B 5245 AR 1RB5 3t L A B 3 Rl (L e 2 B (E ER 6
MERRE R GRERAED  ARERRITRES
e

KPI B5.4 Description of practices used to
promote environmentally preferable products and
services when selecting suppliers, and how they
are implemented and monitored.
FRESIEEBs A M AR B EE R RES A
BREMMBRBHEDN URHEBRITRERS
7

Related Section
HHEE

Supply Chain Management

HEEER
Supply Chain Management

HEsEER
Supply Chain Management

HERERE

Supply Chain Management

HERER

Supply Chain Management

HEEEE

Remarks

B
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RE -HERERRE

ESG Aspects Related Section Remarks

RE HEREREM HEEH B

B6. Product responsibility
B6. EmEE

Information on the policies and compliance Product Responsibility
with relevant laws and regulations that have

a significant impact on the issuer relating to

health and safety, advertising, labelling and

privacy matters relating to products and services
provided and method of redress.
ERAMREERNRBORERZ2 BES § E
BERALBEEARBRT AN BE R BT H T
ABBERTENEBERRROINER -

KPI B6.1 Percentage of total products sold or Quality Assurance

shipped subject to recalls for safety and health

reasons.

BREMIEEBCIDEXEEXERBAHTEAL ZLERE
FHEEREHMADKNB DL -

KPI B6.2 Number of products and service- Complaints Handling Procedures

So
il
g
H

related complaints received and how they are

dealt with.

BRENIEEB2EREMNER RIRBHNRFH KRHFREERF
BUAREH 5%

KPI B6.3 Description of practices relating to Intellectual Property Rights
observing and protecting intellectual property

rights.

FREMIEEBo S R E R RENBERES NHBER

BBl -

KPI B6.4 Description of quality assurance Quality Assurance

process and recall procedures.
FREMIEZB AN EERTRERERENK BHERE

B

KPI B6.5 Description of consumer data Personal Data Privacy

protection and privacy policies, how they are

implemented and monitored.

BB AEMUEIEBe S MU B E B RHMRE RALEBE  EABKILE
R ARMBBEARITRERE
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RE -HEREBEHRE

ESG Aspects Related Section Remarks

RE -HERERER HEEH L

B7. Anti-corruption
B7. RE’5

Information on the policies and compliance Anti-Corruption
with relevant laws and regulations that have

a significant impact on the issuer relating to

bribery, extortion, fraud and money laundering.
FEMLER DR HFRAEERBENBRERE RES
STHETABERZENHBER LRI ER -

KPI B7.1 Number of concluded legal cases Anti-Corruption
regarding corrupt practices brought against

the issuer or its employees during the reporting

period and the outcomes of the cases.
BAREMIEEBT AR BEMEHETAXERE RES
REVEEENESHFLARGNEE RFRER-

KPI B7.2 Description of preventive measures Anti-Corruption
and whistle-blowing procedures, how they are

implemented and monitored.
BRERIEEBT 2 SBEE R BEREF A RES
MAEBMITRERT A

KPI B7.3 Description of anti-corruption training Anti-Corruption
provided to directors and staff.
HREMEZB7TIHENEZTREIRENRE RES

EE e
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RE -HERERRE

ESG Aspects Related Section Remarks

RE HEREREM HEEH B

B8. Community investment

B8. HERE

Policies on community engagement to Community Investment
understand the needs of the communities

where the issuer operates and to ensure

that its activities take into consideration the

communities’ interests.

FRANHE2ERTREEMELEFTENRR HEREKRE
HEBEHEERLRFRAOBUR -

KPI B8.1 Focus areas of contribution (e.g. Community Investment
education, environmental concerns, labour

needs, health, culture, sport).
FARERIEIEBSIETEHEE (HME BE HEKRE
EE-BIFRK BE X -8F)-

KPI B8.2 Resources contributed (e.g. money or Community Investment
time) to the focus area.

FAREMIEEB2HE T ERMEBRMNER (11 HERE
TENER) o
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
B AR S

@ pakertilly
R Hi ] PR

Independent auditor’s report to the shareholders of
Sau San Tong Holdings Limited
BEHEEZRERDA

(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)
Opinion

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Sau
San Tong Holdings Limited and its subsidiaries (together the
“Group”) set out on pages 124 to 252, which comprise the
consolidated statement of financial position as at 31 March 2025,
the consolidated statement of profit or loss, the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income, the
consolidated statement of changes in equity and the consolidated
statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to the
consolidated financial statements, including material accounting
policy information.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a
true and fair view of the consolidated financial position of the
Group as at 31 March 2025 and of its consolidated financial
performance and its consolidated cash flows for the year then
ended in accordance with HKFRS Accounting Standards as
issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
(“HKICPA”) and have been properly prepared in compliance
with the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance.

BEEEEZRARATZBERR
ZBURBEMKRE

(REEHEZMALZ ERAF)
ER

AizgEm (A TEHEBIRMIEERE124%
F2EMBEFERRERAAREME A
Al(HEIERE] ) 2EaMBERER RS
MBRREBER _ZFE_AF=—A=1+—"BZ%&
BMBRAR BEZBLFEz2HaBRR
FeBEBRAMEARER SARAEHR
EiFARERERANGAMBHRRME B
TEREANSTRRER-

BHMRAR REMBRRBEZTEGHNAE
([BRGFMAG )M EBEYBREE
Al RREERATFHRR EXER_-F
“ThAF=ZRA=1T—BZHEEMBNRR  ARE
ERALFEZHREUBRARGARGRE
YR ERBBERAGIZHEREZ SRR -
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R R GRS

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing (“HKSASs”) issued by the HKICPA. Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described in
the “Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated
financial statements” section of our report. We are independent
of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA’s Code of Ethics for
Professional Accountants (the “Code”), and we have fulfilled our
other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We
believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Key audit matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgement, were of most significance in our audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period. These
matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the
consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our
opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on
these matters.

SAU SAN TONG HOLDINGS LIMITED {65 Z#ERAER AR
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
B AR S

How the matter was addressed in our audit

EMERENTEESE

The Key Audit Matter
HREREE

Key judgements relating to impairment testing of goodwill

FHEERERNA @R

Refer to notes 2(e), 2(k)(ii) and 15 to the consolidated financial statements

FRHEEBIREN iE2(e)  2(k)(i) R 15

As at 31 March 2025, the carrying amount of the Our audit procedures in this area included:
Group’s goodwill was mainly allocated to a cash- IR FTEZEZRERFBE:

generating unit (“CGU”) in relation to the provision
of beauty and slimming business in Hong Kong
amounting to HK$11,240,000.
WRZE_RFEF=ZA=+—-—H EBXEEBZEZE
HEFEZEOoEE-—EERARNETEEREZDT LA E
(¥ cReEFXBEL([REELAEN]) 28R
11,240,000/ T °

The assessment of the recoverable amount of
goodwill is based on the future business prospect
and forecast performance of the business. Due
to its inherent uncertainty involved in forecasting
and discounting future cash flows, which are the
basis of the assessment of the recoverable amount
of this CGU, review of impairment assessment of
goodwill is one of the key judgemental areas that
our audit focused on. There is a risk that the key
assumptions, estimates and judgements on which
the calculations are based upon are inappropriate
and that goodwill is overstated as a result.

HEZAKOSERBERREBIRLEBREARE
BELF G AR LIRSEA BN 2 A e & &
HAAEREBEARERARRERERE EFRTH
R WEEBzRETHRNSASRMAETEMEL
ZHEPF—A@ERHEGSE - RRERTEMKEZ
R RER et RHAE AT TEE  SIBBEAEE -

understanding and testing the processes and key
controls of the Group over the impairment assessment
on goodwill;

TRITASE ESEHHERENGNREREARE
il

evaluating and challenging the reasonableness on
the key assumptions and methodologies used by the
management with reference to relevant historical/
market information, in particular those relating to the
sales growth rate used in the 2026 detailed forecast,
terminal growth rate and the discount rate;
R2ZHBEL /MBERE FEREAEEEE
ArERBRERAEAZEBE LERE_ZT_NFH
MEAPAEANHEEERE RFERERERXE
FH AR RRRTE:

assessing and challenging the cash flow projections
prepared by the management, including assessing
historical accuracy of management’s estimates and
comparing historic actual results to those budgeted to
assess the quality of management’s forecasting;
AEREAEREMGR B RERA BETHE
BEATMFT2ERBE URKERBTERFXEREE
NP EREBEANCEER:

assessing the robustness of the forecasts to changes
in assumptions, including sales growth rate used
in the 2026 detailed forecast, terminal growth rate
and the discount rate used in the model to assess
appropriateness of the carrying amount of the goodwill;
and

EEANRRES CBREN BR_S D NFHMAE
B A HEE R KRk i-EY)Sﬂ;EZﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁ BRI X
LB REERGTHEE &

assessing the mathematical accuracy of the calculation
of the goodwill impairment assessment.

AR EREMN G ENREERE-
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B ZBENRE

The Key Audit Matter
HEREXREE

Valuatlon of loans and interest receivables

BRERKEFNE ZMHE

How the matter was addressed in our audit

BMELRENMEEEE

Refer to notes 2(k)(i), 2(m), 19 and 29(a) to the consolidated financial statements

BRI A BEIRANT E20K)0)  2(m) ~ 19K29(a)

The Group recognised loans and interest receivables
initially at fair value and subsequently at amortised
cost in the consolidated statement of financial
position. As at 31 March 2025, the carrying amount
(net of loss allowance) of the loans receivable and
interest receivables were HK$64,860,000 and
HK$2 709,000 respectively.

EEBNSRATEERERER &ﬂg i H 1%
ﬁﬁé%%#ﬂ%&%%ﬁmﬁ F%% &ﬂgo
wW-—ZT— £¢7ﬂ7+*E’WWEM&fWﬁ
ZBREE (B A REB) 5 5 564,860,000 7T &
2,709,000/ 7T °

77

The measurement of expected credit losses (“ECLs”)
requires the application of significant judgements
which include the identification of exposures
with a significant deterioration in credit quality,
and assumptions used in the ECL model such
as the probabilities of default, loss given default,
expected future cash flows and forward-looking
macroeconomic factors.

BHEEEBEE ([BHEEERE])ZE Mﬁﬁék
i BEESNEEERANEEZ AR - RFEMRE
EERAERXMERBRR WEH A %% EAE
BE - EHARREREREZHEERZ-
Due to the significance of loans and interest
receivables (representing approximately 9% of total
assets) and inherent uncertainty in such estimates,
we con8|dered this as a key audit matter.
HREKRERRFNEBRAN ((REERLTELNI%) XZ
Iﬁﬁ¢$§i?&$ﬁiﬂ%'&ﬁﬁﬁ%$ﬁ
REAREZEE-
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Our audit procedures in this area included:

BRI TE2EZIEFBRE:

obtaining an understanding of and evaluating the
design, implementation and operating effectiveness of
key controls over the impairment assessment of loans
and interest recewables

T BRI BTk E U B A R R B R M AT o B R 4 2 3%
ufaﬁﬁiﬁﬁﬂﬁ

obtaining and reviewing loan agreements (including
supplemental agreements and loan extension
agreements, if any), on a sample basis and agreeing
the principal amounts, interest rates, maturity dates
and other information to the Group’s accounting
records;

LA 8% = BUE Fﬁ K 1 & (Edﬁﬁﬁﬁfﬁt% ZQEE
Eﬁﬁﬁz’mﬁ(ﬁuﬁ)) A8 B E.nJruEﬁZLK
LR ﬂ%a&ﬁméﬂ

assessing the loss stages, recovery rates by reference
to financial information of the debtors and their
credit rating, if applicable, checking forward-looking

information involved;
ﬂ%1%k%%%§ﬂ&ﬁ TR AR (RRE ) ST S 1R

R BR B E - i TS R M AT A AR

assessing whether items in the loans and interest
receivables ageing report were categorised in the
appropriate ageing bracket by comparing a sample of
individual items with the loan agreements and other
relevant underlying documentatlons

ABEENBEENEREERHE &EM$%X#&
ITELEL =GB

%%FWEm&ﬂgﬁwﬁi¢m JE!
RERERERFREZS D

evaluating the Group’s ECL models and the Group’s
criteria for assessing if there has been a significant
increase in credit risk, default or credit-impaired, and
so allowances for financial assets should be measured
on a lifetime ECL basis and the qualitative assessment;
and

i EEEEHNGCEREEEEANR BEEEFEEE

EREDBERN BHOREEE ?ﬁﬁf EEY
EERBROBRXABHNCEEERELEFEREN
HEER &

re-performing the ECL of loans and interest receivables
as at 31 March 2025 based in the Group’s credit loss
allowance policies.

RiIE BEEENEEBERERR SHETHE
—_HFE=A=+—HHEKRERK ﬂEME%ET%

E°



INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

B ZBENRE

The Key Audit Matter
HREREE

Impairment of trade receivables

FHEWEZREZRE

How the matter was addressed in our audit

EMERENTEESE

Refer to notes 2(k)(i), 2(n), 18 and 29(a) to the consolidated financial statements

B2 R & B EE K iF2(k)0) - 2(n) ~ 18K29(a)

As at 31 March 2025, the Group’s trade receivables
(net of loss allowance) amounted to HK$66,986,000.
RZZE_AF=A=+—H EBEXEZEKES
IR (MR EEREE) 7 5 566,986,000/ 7T °

Loss allowance for trade receivables are based
on management’s estimate of the lifetime ECL to
be incurred respectively, which are estimated by
taking into account the credit loss experience,
ageing of overdue trade receivables, debtors’
repayment history and debtors’ financial ability and
an assessment of both the current and forecast
general economic conditions, all of which involve a
significant degree of management judgement.
RUESREA BEEBEBENREBESNEKES
ZKATEHEEBBRZMAF (ERZEREEBFER
B aHERESIREZRE BEBARKELRE
BAR R NIE L (5T ) K8 S A M TR B B A A AR
REFER 27 U EFBREZRAEBESIRER
&2 Hkh -

We identified assessing the recoverability of trade
receivables as a key audit matter because the
assessment and recognition of loss allowance
are inherently subjective and requires significant
management judgement, which increases the risk of
potential management bias.
BFEANFFAERE S FIE AL MR —TERER
B EFEH REATHLAEREBERGEFLEAN
FTHNE UEEREBFEHERAE BmEMEEE
BERRLZER-

Our audit procedures in this area included:
BRI EZEZREFEE:

° evaluating the design, implementation and operating
effectiveness for key internal controls which govern
credit control, debt collection and estimate of expected
credit losses;

e HIAEEEENEE WEBHKLAFRBEEBE ZH
BB S 2 R BT REEARL:

° assessing, on a sample basis, whether items in the
trade receivables ageing report were classified within
the appropriate ageing bracket by comparing individual
items in the ageing report with the relevant sales
invoices;

e FEBUKREWESHFIARK RS 2 ERIEAB EiEHH
ERE METERESECEEREERRKRRER

EEE D

o evaluating and challenging the reasonableness of
management’s loss allowance estimates by examining
the information used by management to form such
judgements, including testing the accuracy of the
historical default data, evaluating whether the historical
loss rates are appropriately adjusted based on current
economic conditions and forward-looking information
and examining the actual losses recorded during the
year and assessing whether there was an indication of
management bias when recognising loss allowance;

s FRBFLEREEMELZAZHEMERZEN (BFA
ABEHEREBECERY FHBEBEREETIREM
RERARBELEERERE AR REERFAES
ZEREBER URMERNERABEEERELAERE
RRZPR) HENEREEEMEZEEBEH®MA
AN

° evaluating the Group’s policy for estimating the credit
loss allowance with reference to the requirements of
the prevailing accounting standard; and

e ZERTEHEANENR FHE EKEGKFEEER
BEBOEE &

° re-calculating the ECL as at 31 March 2025 based in
the Group’s credit loss allowance policies.

. B BEENESEEBERE BHHEBE-T
—REZAST—ANESEERA
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
R R GRS

Other information

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other
information. The other information comprises the information
included in the annual report, but does not include the
consolidated financial statements and our auditor’s report

thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not
cover the other information and we do not express any form of
assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and,
in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially
inconsistent with the consolidated financial statements or our
knowledge obtained in the audit, or otherwise appears to be
materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that
there is a material misstatement of this other information, we
are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this
regard.

SAU SAN TONG HOLDINGS LIMITED {65 Z#ERAER AR
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
BN B EN R

Responsibilities of directors and those
charged with governance for the consolidated
financial statements

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation
of consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair
view in accordance with HKFRS Accounting Standards as issued
by the HKICPA and the disclosure requirements of the Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such internal control as
the directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation
of consolidated financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors
are responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a
going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless
the directors either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease
operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing
the Group'’s financial reporting process.

Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the
consolidated financial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
the consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue
an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. This report is made
solely to you, as a body, in accordance with our agreed terms
of engagement, and for no other purpose. We do not assume
responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person for
the contents of this report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs
will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered
material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably
be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken
on the basis of these consolidated financial statements.

EENERERGEMBHRRAAE
ZEBE

BERRESARERBEERGHMAGE ML
BEVBREEANGHENRFBRREN 2
BEATRESAVBRER UWSHEEHBR
REFLBEEMATFZRI U EEERRRE
REMBHRRAVEZEBAELE AL
BHMBBRTFERRNAGFRERMEBZE
R BH RR R -

REHEFAV BRI EFAENE &5
BinEKE 2z YRBEREN T HEE &R
BREBMZFR URERHBELLERES
Eft-RIESHEN E5EEBRAFLE
B AEEMERZEA AR

BEREZWHBEHRBE-

R ER GRS M BRRAREZ
BE

BMZERRARERGAMBRERESTFE
MR ERMER Z EAERBIMTEE
BEX TELPERMER ZZHEMBS-
BEZEBERI AREAENBERRER
EORBAIN ARETTAEEMBAR -
PR AREZ AR EIMEMATERTSK
EERT-

EREFBRKFCEE BYFRIFREB
BEREAMETCERRAREZRAX —EAER
BRI 2 T 7E - $8 AR BRE AT  BRRE Sk s AR T 31 B0
fid AT BE A& HE T8 HA ) ) 2k T 48 AE 2R 2 85 BR FR AL 7%
FEAEEAVBHRRERER BBV HRE
FIT1E b 2 R EORTE - RIS B KSR SR R
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
R R GRS

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgement and maintain professional skepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

- Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to
those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of
not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is
higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations,
or the override of internal control.

- Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to
the audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose
of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Group’s
internal control.

- Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used
and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related
disclosures made by the directors.

- Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the
going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast significant
doubt on the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern.
If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are
required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the
related disclosures in the consolidated financial statements
or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion.
Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained
up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events
or conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as
a going concern.

S Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content
of the consolidated financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial
statements represent the underlying transactions and events
in a manner that achieves fair presentation.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
B BN 3R S

S Plan and perform the group audit to obtain sufficient
appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial
information of the entities or business units within the
Group as a basis for forming an opinion on the Group’s
consolidated financial statements. We are responsible for
the direction, supervision and review of the audit work
performed for purposes of the group audit. We remain solely
responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding,
among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit
and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies
in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement
that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements
regarding independence, and to communicate with them all
relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought
to bear on our independence, and where applicable, actions
taken to eliminate threats or safeguards applied.

From the matters communicated with those charged with
governance, we determine those matters that were of most
significance in the audit of the consolidated financial statements
of the current period and are therefore the key audit matters.
We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or
regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when,
in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter
should not be communicated in our report because the adverse
consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to
outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

The engagement director on the audit resulting in this
independent auditor’s report is Leung Yun Wa.

Baker Tilly Hong Kong Limited
Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong, 25 June 2025

Leung Yun Wa
Practising certificate number PO8096
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS

|=| \/
I|/j_\ %E

For the year ended 31 March 2025
HE_T_AF=-A=+—RHLLFE
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(AETZ73)

Revenue

— Distribution sale of cosmetic and
skin care products

— Provision of beauty and slimming
services

— Sale of health, beauty and related
products

— Results from investments in securities

— Interest income from money lending
business

Cost of sales and services provided

Gross profit

Other revenue

Other gains or losses

Selling and distribution costs
General and administrative expenses

Loss from operations
Finance costs

Loss before taxation
Income tax expense

Loss for the year

Attributable to:
— Owners of the Company
— Non-controlling interests

Loss per share
Basic and diluted

The notes on pages 132 to 252 form part of the consolidated

financial statements.

Note
iokz3

iy 25 3
— D I IH Bk B S E o

—REEBEREBRYG
—HERR XBFREBES

—EHFRERE
—EEB ZF BWA

$HE MR AR A A AR

E5

H o Y zn 4
H e as BT R 4
& Koy SRR

— MR MATHF X

KeEBE
B &R 5(a)

BRB A 18 5]
FT S BRI X 6

FRABE
BER

—ARRAEEA
—JEE R s

BRER 9
AR R #E

— 85
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2025 2024
—E_RF —E-NF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FETT
803,747 1,015,567
60,770 57,465
2,626 6,840
(34,383) 4,769
7,265 8,094
840,025 1,092,735
(790,428) (988,167)
49,597 104,568
12,034 8,163
1,946 1,113
(37,881) (42,853)
(71,618) (81,220)
(45,922) (10,229)
(725) (809)
(46,647) (11,038)
(3,007) (3,353)
(49,654) (14,391)
(51,981) (14,297)
2,327 (94)
(49,654) (14,391)
HK cents HK cents
AL JEN
(65.93) (18.13)

F1REF22BE WK E AV BRERZ



CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

A~ = N2
,%T\/\ EJIEL

(ABTTZ25)

Loss for the year

Other comprehensive loss
for the year, net of nil tax
ltems that may be reclassified
subsequently to profit or loss:
— Exchange differences on translation
of financial statements of foreign

operations

— Cumulative exchange gain
reclassified to profit or loss upon
deregistration of subsidiaries

REAMZE K

For the year ended 31 March 2025
HE-_ZT_AF=A=+—RHILLFE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

FABE

FRAHMEEER"

BHIE 2R
HRAIEEFTHIBREREZ
BHA:
—BMEBINEB M BRE

ELZEREZR

—MEAREHERERN
DEABmZ RFTER
Y &

Other comprehensive loss for the year F A E b 2 H &1

Total comprehensive loss for the year SR 2 HEEAHE

Attributable to:

— Owners of the Company
— Non-controlling interests

The notes on pages 132 to 252 form part of the consolidated
financial statements.

BER
—ARAEEA
— FRIE AR as

— 85

2025 2024
—E-RF —EF-OF
Note HK$’000 HK$’000
ik FE T FET
(49,654) (14,391)
(673) (5,308)
4 (2,746) -
(3,419) (5,308)
(53,073) (19,699)
(55,378) (19,613)
2,305 (86)
(53,073) (19,699)

FIREF22E B GAEMBERERZ
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

= N
e BRI R
As at 31 March 2025
R-_ZE-_HFE=A=+—8H
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(RBTE5)

Non-current assets

Property, plant and equipment
Right-of-use assets
Investment property
Intangible asset

Goodwill

Loans and interest receivables

Current assets

Inventories

Financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss

Trade receivables

Prepayments, deposits and
other receivables

Loans and interest receivables

Amount due from a related party

Current tax recoverable

Cash and cash equivalents

Current liabilities

Contract liabilities

Trade payables

Other payables and accrued charges
Lease liabilities

Interest-bearing borrowings

Current tax payable

Defined benefit plan obligations

Net current assets

Total assets less current liabilities

FRBEE
VER L
EREEE
BEME
BVEE

7 =

&Y & 3R K ) B

REBEE

E

E’?@ﬁk%

[V

\

FEWE 5 FRIE

BNRE ZeREMER
;A

W & R K FB

FEU — 2 BEE A LA

A YR E B IR
RekBFED

REBEE
BHARE
e+ & 5 508
HENE
HEAR
M EEE
e E BT IR
REBANFEEME

KB N EETER

REBEEFH

EERERRBDEE
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SCERMEE

Note
k=3

11
12
13
14
15
19

16

17
18

18

19

20
25(a)

21
22
22
23
24
25(a)
26

2025 2024
—E-RHAF —E-NNF
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET FETT
85,348 91,849
11,872 8,241
15,200 15,500
14,871 14,871
11,872 14,770
37,424 29,548
176,587 174,779
7,393 5,419
75,350 102,649
66,986 56,200
69,831 73,416
30,145 40,096
3 3

529 529
344,080 390,265
594,317 668,577
9,567 11,628
71 =
56,017 64,301
7,344 5215
1,137 1,009
1,359 1,089

= 6
75,495 83,248
518,822 585,329
695,409 760,108




CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

= N
e AR R
As at 31 March 2025
RZFE-_RAF=A=+—H
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(AETE7)

Non-current liabilities
Lease liabilities
Defined benefit plan obligations

NET ASSETS

Capital and reserves
Share capital
Reserves

Total equity attributable to owners of
the Company
Non-controlling interests

TOTAL EQUITY

Note
oka
kREBEE
HEaE 23
AREBAMFEEMT 26
EEFEHE
BERRHE 28
1% 7%
&
BERAATEEARSHAE
FEE IR A 2
s

Approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors on

25 June 2025.

Mui Wai Sum
WER
Director

EF

The notes on pages 132 to 252 form part of the consolidated

financial statements.
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EEgRN T _RFRNATHAAERKE

Tl % -

FINEF2AZMEBKREAVBRERZ

— 5 -

2025 2024
—E-RF —E-NNF
HK$°000 HK$'000
FE T FETT
4,783 3,301
1,003 800
5,786 4,101
689,623 756,007
788 788
713,868 769,246
714,656 770,034
(25,033) (14,027)
689,623 756,007

Lei Nelson
THRE
Director

EF
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
GARREBHE

For the year ended 31 March 2025
BE-_ZT-_A¥=-A=+—ALLEE
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(RBTE5)

Attributable to owners of the Company

BRRELAHEEA

Share-  The PRC

based  statutory Non-
Share Share Merger  Exchange  payment surplus Revaluation Other Accumulated controlling Total
capital  premium reserve reserve reserve reserve reserve reserve losses Total interests equity
BROAR  REEE FER
BE  ROEE AHEHE EXRR RE EBEE EMEE HUHEE 2 BB ast Ex ERAE
HK$000 — HK$000  HK$000 — HK$000  HK$000  HK$000  HK$'000  HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000
FET TET TET FET FET FET FET TET FEr  FAx TET TET
At1 April 2023 R-B-=%
mA-A 788 791,928 (3,637) (2,738) 2,224 24,725 3,574 28,055 (65,272) 789,647 (13,941) 775,706
Changes in equity for —B-MEZE#H
2024 25
Loss for the year FRER - - - - - - - - (14,297) (14,297 (94 (14,391)
Other comprehensive ~ FREMZEFHE
loss for the year - - - (5,316) - - - - - (5,316) 8 (5,308)
Total comprehensive loss A2 HEBLEE
for the year S S S (5,316) = = = S (14207)  (19613) (86)  (19,699)
At 31 March 2024 RZZZmE
=ZA=t+-H 788 791,928 (3,637) (8,054) 2,224 24,725 3,574 28,055 (69,569) 770,034 (14,027) 756,007
At1 April 2024 R-Z2-m&
mA-A 788 791,928 (3,637) (8,054) 2,224 24,725 3,574 28,055 (69,569) 770,034 (14,027) 756,007
Changes inequity for —E-REZEH
2025 28
Loss for the year FAEE - - - - - - - - (51,981)  (51,981) 2,327 (49,654)
Other comprehensive ~ FREM2EBE
loss for the year - - - (3,397) - - - - - (3,397) (22) (3,419)
Total comprehensive loss FR2EFEAE
for the year - - - (3,397) - - - - (51,981)  (55,378) 2,305 (53,073)
Cancellation of share ~ #F $5ERFR 1E
options - - - - (947) - - - 947 - - -
Dividends paid tonon- B ff JEEE Ak #E25
controlling interests ZRE - - - - - - - - - - (13,311)  (13,311)
At 31 March 2025 R-Z-1§
=B=t-H 788 791,928 (3,637)  (11,451) 1,217 24,725 3,574 28,055 (120,603) 714,656 (25,033) 689,623
The notes on pages 132 to 252 form part of the consolidated Z5132F 2528 2 M A BK G A M B HRE 2

financial statements. — &b e
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CONSOLlDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
Il/j_\ Iﬁrﬁ/)lbi%

For the year ended 31 March 2025
HE-_ZT_AF=A=+—RHILLFE
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(AETE7)

Note
it

Operating activities BETEH
Loss before taxation B T Al s 1B
Adjustments for: BATHE .
— Interest income from money lending ~ — B X 2 F B Uk A

business 3
— Fair value loss/(gain) on financial assets — 2 A F Bt A8z 2 & &t

at fair value through profit or loss, net ~ BEZ AFEEE,/

(Wa ) F88

— Fair value loss on investment property — & &% 2 A FEFIE 4
- Bank interest income —RITFEWA 4
— Other interest income —H A F S U A 4
- Cumulative exchange gain reclassified — Fff B 2 &) 5% #51% 1 #E 25

from equity to profit or loss upon BN BEBER AR

deregistration of subsidiaries BE i Wz 4
— Dividend income from listed equity —EFRABHZREWA

securities 4
- (Gain)/loss on disposal of property, - ’§¢%¥ HeEREREZ

plant and equipment, net zs) /B 1B R R 4
- Gain on early termination of a lease —HE ?EEWJJ:ZJ%Z“ 4
- Finance costs — B & KR 5(a)
— Depreciation of property, plant and — M EEREBETE

equipment 5(c)
- Depreciation of right-of-use assets —FREEENE 5(c)
— (Reversal of impairment loss)/ — W E 5 FRIE K A FE UL

impairment loss on trade and FIEZ CREEIEREBR),

other receivables, net BIEE R FE 5(c)
— Impairment loss on loans and - EREFEZRE

interest receivables, net 18 TR 5(c)
— Impairment loss on goodwill *%%ZW@%E 5(c)
— Write-off of trade receivables — S U E 5 T 5(c)
— Write-off of other receivables — 88 E fth B Y 3RIE 5(c)
— Net foreign exchange gain — [ {5 F 5

Operating (loss)/profit before changes BE&ZE &2 F Al 2 & &
(E518) &R

in working capital

SAU SAN TONG HOLDINGS LIMITED &5 Z#=RAER AT
Annual Report 2024/25 FE K&

2025 2024
—E-RF —EF-OF
HK$’000 HK$’'000
F#ETT FETT
(46,647) (11,038)
(7,265) (8,094)
30,444 (4,854)
300 =
(6,423) (5,645)
(1,602) (1,397)
(2,746) =
(52) (380)
(1,240) 88
(71) (27)

725 809
7,359 8,615
7,409 8,204
(108) 3,914
8,083 8,581
2,898 1,450

= 1

7 6,824
(223) (15)
(9,152) 7,036
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
RERERER

For the year ended 31 March 2025
HE_T_AF=-A=+—RHLLFE
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(AETZ73)

FE(Em,wmd
BRAFEGFABREZER

at fair value through profit or loss BE(m,wm
(Increase)/decrease in trade receivables JEWE 5 kI8 (#hn) 5
Decrease in prepayments, deposits and TEfT B - 124 K H b fE UL
FIER D
Increase in loans and interest receivables Ji& Yg & 5k K K| B 18 AN
(Decrease)/increase in contract liabilities & #&& (R4 ), /#hn
eI B 5 IAE
H fth & 1< 30IE K FE 5T B AR A

(Increase)/decrease in inventories
(Increase)/decrease in financial assets

other receivables

Increase in trade payables

Decrease in other payables and
accrued charges

Increase in defined benefit plan AERAMET B FEEIG M

obligations

Cash used in operations ARREEK RS
PRC Enterprise Income Tax paid BEfNFRBEMEREH
Hong Kong Profits Tax refunded, net EREBEBMNEREE
Interest received 2 F B

Dividend received BB

AREEEDCREFE

Net cash used in operating activities

REED
BEDE HERRBHFK

Investing activities
Payment for the purchase of property,
plant and equipment

HEME HERERELZ

Proceeds from disposal of property,

plant and equipment Fr 1% 5018
Net cash generated from/(used in) KB,/ (AR)BREZFSH=
investing activities ReFE
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Note
ok3

2025 2024
—E-RHF —E-NF
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET FETT
(2,009) 1,640
(3,145) 9,303
(10,848) 5,496
3,284 3,550
(4,703) (13,339)
(2,061) 1,261
71 =
(7,983) (30,732)
197 806
(36,349) (14,979)
(3,266) (4,469)
533 409
13,985 13,109
52 380
(25,045) (5,550)
(1,122) (5,682)
1,500 43
378 (5,639)




CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

Il/j_\ Iﬁrﬁ/)lbi%

For the year ended 31 March 2025
HE-_ZT_AF=A=+—RHILLFE
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(AETE7)

Financing activities

Capital element of lease rentals paid

Interest element of lease rentals paid

Proceed from interest-bearing
borrowings

Repayment of interest-bearing
borrowings

Interest paid

Dividends paid to non-controlling
interests

Net cash used in financing activities

Net decrease in cash and
cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents at
the beginning of the year

Effect of foreign exchange
rate change

BMEEH

ENEEHE 2R
ENHERES 2B
M BtEE Z 1S 50R

i
Aile

S EEE

ERFE
[EERES A S F i

672
&

Note
k23

B 30
i) 30
30

30
30

RARBMEED 2REFHE

RERREEENHD FE

RENZRERRESEEY

Exgmoog

Cash and cash equivalents at the end RELKZHERBREZEY

of the year

The notes on pages 132 to 252 form part of the consolidated

financial statements.

— 85

2025 2024
—E-RF —EMFE
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET
(7,357) (8,201)
(597) (572)
190 929
(190) (1,329)
= (184)
(13,311) -
(21,265) (9,357)
(45,932) (20,546)
390,265 416,179
(253) (5,368)
344,080 390,265
F1REF22BE CMABKEASVBREZ
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A B

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(BREEEAN ABTEF)

Company information

Sau San Tong Holdings Limited (the “Company”) is a
company incorporated in the Cayman lIslands on 21
May 2002 as an exempted company with limited liability
under the Companies Law Cap. 22, (Law 3 of 1961, as
consolidated and revised) of the Cayman Islands and its
shares have been listed on GEM of The Stock Exchange
of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) since 19
November 2003.

The Company has its registered office and principal place of
business at Cricket Square, Hutchins Drive, P.O. Box 2681,
Grand Cayman KY1-1111, Cayman Islands and Room 23083,
23/F., China Insurance Group Building, 141 Des Voeux Road
Central, Central, Hong Kong, respectively.

Material accounting policies
(a) Statement of compliance

These consolidated financial statements have been
prepared in accordance with HKFRS Accounting
Standards as issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”) and the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance. These consolidated financial statements
also comply with the applicable disclosure provisions
of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on
GEM of the Stock Exchange (the “GEM Listing Rules”).
Material accounting policies adopted by the Group are
set out below.

The HKICPA has issued certain amendments to
HKFRS Accounting Standards that are first effective or
available for early adoption for the current accounting
period of the Group. Note 2(c) provides information
on any changes in accounting policies resulting from
initial application of these developments to the extent
that they are relevant to the Group for the current
accounting period reflected in these consolidated
financial statements.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(BRBHHEHIN

2

LA T 25)

Material accounting policies (Continued)

(b)

Basis of preparation of the consolidated financial
statements

The consolidated financial statements for the year
ended 31 March 2025 comprise the Company and its
subsidiaries (together the “Group”).

The measurement basis used in the preparation of
the consolidated financial statements is the historical
cost basis except that the financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss (“FVPL”) and investment property
are stated at their fair values (see notes 2(f) and 2(h)).

The preparation of consolidated financial statements
in conformity with HKFRS Accounting Standards
requires management to make judgements, estimates
and assumptions that affect the application of policies
and reported amounts of assets, liabilities, income and
expenses. The estimates and associated assumptions
are based on historical experience and various other
factors that are believed to be reasonable under the
circumstances, the results of which form the basis
of making the judgements about carrying values of
assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent from
other sources. Actual results may differ from these
estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are
reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting
estimates are recognised in the period in which the
estimate is revised if the revision affects only that
period, or in the period of the revision and future
periods if the revision affects both current and future
periods.

Judgements made by management in the application
of HKFRS Accounting Standards that have significant
effect on the consolidated financial statements and
major sources of estimation uncertainty are discussed
in note 35.

2

B AR (%)

(b)

GEMBBRRZEREE

HE T _-_RAF=A=+—HItHF
EZHREUBERERBPERALTRE
WEBAR (KB AEE]) -

REAREUBREBERBZAEE
EEFESRAEE HIZAFER
ABHE([ZAFEFABE])Z
CREERKREMEAUEQNFE
HIBE ( R M sE2(N K2(h)) »

RENABEVBRELEAGHE
AIZEEMBERAFEEEEFD
H AT KRR - Tk F A 4
AERBRREFERRZEANULE
E BE WARRAXZEZHER-
ZERREERRRBEETER
REARBATHEBAEZZ A
HRAEMEL E&ERBKYE
EREMKBEFREZTHZEER
BEREEFELHE 2 EE-BRE
RERABEEZFHFTTR -

B REEBRREFERT -ME
FHEFHERTEREZ R RMRE
LA HMER RHMERTEER
BRBERAE IRETZHER
Bz HARER -

EEENEREREMBREAEE
AREBZBEEVBRELAGHE
BB 4 1 2 # T A R {5t T BRBA A
RZ T ERFRHE35Hm i -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e SRR

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(BREEEAN ABTEF)

2 Material accounting policies (Continued)
(c) Changes in accounting policies

The HKICPA has issued the following amendments to
HKFRS Accounting Standards that are first effective
for the annual period beginning on or after 1 April
2024 for the preparation of the consolidated financial

statements:
Amendments to Presentation of financial
HKAS 1 statements — Classification of
liabilities as current or non-
current (2020 amendments”)
and amendments to HKAS
1, Presentation of financial
statements — Non-current
liabilities with covenants
(2022 amendments”)
Amendments to Leases Liability in a sale and
HKFRS 16 leaseback
Amendments to Supplier finance arrangements
HKAS 7 and
HKFRS 7

Except as described below, the application of the
amendments to HKFRS Accounting Standards in the
current year has had no material impact on the Group’s
financial positions and performance for the current and
prior years and/or on the disclosures set out in these
consolidated financial statements.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B U BHRRME

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(BEHEEBIN REBTES)

'L‘
Fn

2

Material accounting policies (Continued)

(c)

Changes in accounting policies (Continued)

The Group has not applied any new standard or
interpretation that is not yet effective for the current
accounting period (see note 36).

Impacts on application of Amendments to HKAS
1, Presentation of financial statements (the 2020
and 2022 amendments, collectively the “HKAS 1
amendments”)

The Group has applied the amendments for the first
time in the current year.

The HKAS 1 amendments impact the classification
of a liability as current or non-current, and have been
applied retrospectively as a package.

The 2020 amendments primarily clarify the
classification of a liability that can be settled in its
own equity instruments. If the terms of a liability
could, at the option of the counterparty, result in its
settlement by the transfer of the entity’s own equity
instruments and that conversion option is accounted
for as an equity instrument, these terms do not affect
the classification of the liability as current or non-
current. Otherwise, the transfer of equity instruments
would constitute settlement of the liability and impact
classification.

The 2022 amendments specify that conditions with
which an entity must comply after the reporting date
do not affect the classification of a liability as current or
non-current. However, the entity is required to disclose
information about non-current liabilities subject to such
conditions.

The amendments have no effect on the Group’s
consolidated statement of profit or loss, cash flows
and loss per share.

2

B AR (%)

B BREZ22D (#)

AEBWTAEFERBEMPRAETHME
MAEBNFEEA S BRE(RR
Mf=E36) °

Eﬁé%éﬁﬁﬂ/$1%ﬂgsﬁv
BEBEHREXZZN (—FE=-FF KL
AR -E-——Fgx #ZHEBIE
BEERFIHETE])ZE

AEERANFEEHRERZER -

BRI ENFIRETAZER
BNERBERBRE LEA—E
BREETEWER-

CE_THEBIATRERANE
B zcREETRBEZBESE-
HWAEBEZHERARIZHF T &
BUERERBES T HBE
E% BEZEnESraEa T A

J%%ﬁﬁ1$aw%EF
/\*EEI/\LEJJ‘JZ;‘F//\L@J ‘J Fg i n L

B SR R A R B R
S

—E - _HFBIAITAEBRERS
FHRUAETZHRELTEFE
BEIERARDIERS AN &
BEARBRETREFRNZERY
BEZEM-

-1,
<

ZETHAREMNE A BN B
SHERREREAEEYE.

SAU SAN TONG HOLDINGS LIMITED &5 Z#=RAER AT

Annual Report 2024/25 FE K&

135



136

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

AN
A

Ly e kR

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(BREEEAN ABTEF)

2

Material accounting policies (Continued)

(d)

Subsidiaries and non-controlling interests

Subsidiaries are entities controlled by the Group. The
Group controls an entity when it is exposed to, or has
rights to, variable returns from its involvement with the
entity and has the ability to affect those returns through
its power over the entity. The financial statements of
subsidiaries are included in the consolidated financial
statements from the date that control commences until
the date that control ceases.

Intra-group balances and transactions, and any
unrealised income and expenses (except for foreign
currency transaction gains or losses) arising from intra-
group transactions, are eliminated. Unrealised losses
resulting from intra-group transactions are eliminated
in the same way as unrealised gains but only to the
extent that there is no evidence of impairment.

For each business combination, the Group can elect
to measure any non-controlling interests either at fair
value or at the non-controlling interests’ proportionate
share of the subsidiary’s net identifiable assets. Non-
controlling interests are presented in the consolidated
statement of financial position within equity, separately
from equity attributable to owners of the Company.
Non-controlling interests in the results of the Group are
presented on the face of the consolidated statement
of profit or loss and the consolidated statement
of profit or loss and other comprehensive income
as an allocation of the total profit or loss and total
comprehensive income for the year between non-
controlling interests and owners of the Company.

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, it
derecognises the assets and liabilities of the subsidiary.
Any resulting gain or loss is recognised in profit or loss.

In the Company’s statement of financial position,
an investment in a subsidiary is stated at cost less
impairment losses (see note 2(K|(ii)).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(BEHEEBIN REBTES)

2

Material accounting policies (Continued)

(e)

)

(9)

Goodwill

Goodwill arising on acquisition of business is measured
at cost less accumulated impairment losses and is
tested annually for impairment (see note 2(k)(ii)).

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Financial assets at FVPL are recognised/derecognised
on the date the Group commits to purchase/sell the
investment and are initially stated at fair value while
transaction costs are recognised directly in profit or
loss. The explanation of how the Group determines the
fair value of financial assets is set out in note 29(f).

Changes in the fair value of the financial assets at
FVPL are subsequently recognised in profit or loss
if the investments do not meet the criteria for being
measured at amortised cost or fair value through other
comprehensive income (recycling).

Property, plant and equipment

Iltems of property, plant and equipment (including
interest in leasehold land and buildings where the
Group is the registered owner of the property interest
(see note 2(j))) are stated at cost less accumulated
depreciation and any accumulated impairment losses
(see note 2(K)(ii)).

Any gain or loss on disposal of an item of property,
plant and equipment is recognised in profit or loss.

2

EREFTTHE®)

(e)

(f)

(9)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A B

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(BREEEAN ABTEF)

2

Material accounting policies (Continued)

(9)

(h)

Property, plant and equipment (Continued)

Depreciation is calculated to write off the cost of items
of property, plant and equipment, less their estimated
residual values, if any, using the straight line method
over their estimated useful lives, and is generally
recognised in profit or loss. The estimated annual rates
for the current and comparative periods are as follows:
Land and buildings Over the unexpired

term of lease

10.0%-33.3%

10.0%-33.3%

Machinery
Furniture and fixtures
Office and computer 10.0%-33.3%
equipment

20.0% or over the
remaining terms of leases

Leasehold improvements

(whichever is shorter)

Motor vehicles 20.0%-33.3%

Depreciation methods, useful lives and residual values
are reviewed at the end of each reporting period and
adjusted if appropriate.

Investment property
Investment property is initially measured at cost,
and subsequently at fair value with changes therein

recognised in profit or loss.

Rental income from investment properties is accounted
for as described in note 2(v)(vii).

Any gain or loss on disposal of investment property is
recognised in profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

g A

N

=1

B 5 R A P RE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(BRBHHEHIN

2

LA T 25)

Material accounting policies (Continued)

(i)

)]

Intangible assets (other than goodwill)

Intangible assets are not amortised while their useful
lives are assessed to be indefinite. Any conclusion
that the useful life of an intangible asset is indefinite
is reviewed annually to determine whether events
and circumstances continue to support the indefinite
useful life assessment for that asset. If they do not,
the change in the useful life assessment from indefinite
to finite is accounted for prospectively from the date
of change and in accordance with the policy for
amortisation of intangible assets with finite lives.

Leased assets

At inception of a contract, the Group assesses whether
the contract is, or contains, a lease. This is the case
if the contract conveys the right to control the use of
an identified asset for a period of time in exchange for
consideration. Control is conveyed where the customer
has both the right to direct the use of the identified
asset and to obtain substantially all of the economic
benefits from that use.

(i) As alessee

Where the contract contains lease component(s)
and non-lease component(s), the Group has
elected not to separate non-lease components
and accounts for each lease component and any
associated non-lease components as a single
lease component for all leases.

At the lease commencement date, the Group
recognises a right-of-use asset and a lease
liability, except for leases that have a short lease
term of 12 months or less.

2
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(BREEEAN ABTEF)

Material accounting policies (Continued)

)]

Leased assets (Continued)

(i) As alessee (Continued)

Where the lease is capitalised, the lease liability
is initially recognised at the present value of the
lease payments payable over the lease term,
discounted using the interest rate implicit in the
lease or, if that rate cannot be readily determined,
using a relevant incremental borrowing rate. After
initial recognition, the lease liability is measured at
amortised cost and interest expense is recognised
using the effective interest method. Variable lease
payments that do not depend on an index or
rate are not included in the measurement of the
lease liability, and are charged to profit or loss as
incurred.

The right-of-use asset recognised when a lease
is capitalised is initially measured at cost, which
comprises the initial amount of the lease liability
adjusted for any lease payments made at or
before the commencement date, plus any initial
direct costs incurred and an estimate of costs to
dismantle and remove the underlying asset or to
restore the underlying asset or the site on which it
is located, less any lease incentives received. The
right-of-use asset is subsequently stated at cost
less accumulated depreciation and impairment
losses (see note 2(k)(ii)) except for the right-of-
use assets that meet the definition of investment
property are carried at fair value in accordance
with note 2(h).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(BEHEEBIN REBTES)

2 Material accounting policies (Continued) 2 EBEXRESTEHEm®
() Leased assets (Continued) () HEBEE(E

(i) EBEBA(E)

(i) As alessee (Continued)

The lease liability is remeasured when there is a
change in future lease payments arising from a
change in an index or rate, if there is a change in
the Group’s estimate of the amount expected to
be payable under a residual value guarantee, or if
the Group changes its assessment of whether it
will exercise a purchase, extension or termination
option. When the lease liability is remeasured in
this way, a corresponding adjustment is made to
the carrying amount of the right-of-use asset, or
is recorded in profit or loss if the carrying amount
of the right-of-use asset has been reduced to
zero.

The lease liability is also remeasured when there
is a lease modification, which means a change
in the scope of a lease or the consideration
for a lease that is not originally provided for in
the lease contract, if such modification is not
accounted for as a separate lease. In this case,
the lease liability is remeasured based on the
revised lease payments and lease term using a
revised discount rate at the effective date of the
modification.

In the consolidated statement of financial
position, the current portion of long-term lease
liabilities is determined as the present value of
contractual payments that are due to be settled
within twelve months after the reporting period.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A B

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(BREEEAN ABTEF)

2

Material accounting policies (Continued)

(i) Leased assets (Continued)

(ii) As a lessor

The Group determines at lease inception whether
each lease is a finance lease or an operating
lease. A lease is classified as a finance lease if it
transfers substantially all the risks and rewards
incidental to the ownership of an underlying
assets to the lessee. Otherwise, the lease is
classified as an operating lease.

(k) Credit losses and impairment of assets

()

Credit losses from financial assets

The Group recognises a loss allowance for
expected credit losses (“ECL”s) on the financial
assets measured at amortised cost (including
trade and other receivables, loans and interest
receivables, amount due from a related party and
cash and cash equivalents).

Measurement of ECLs

ECLs are a probability-weighted estimate of credit
losses. Generally, credit losses are measured as
the present value of all expected cash shortfalls
between the contractual and expected amounts,
discounted at the original effective interest rate,
where the effect of discounting is material.

The maximum period considered when estimating
ECLs is the maximum contractual period over
which the Group is exposed to credit risk.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(BRBHHEHIN

2

LA T 25)

Material accounting policies (Continued)

(k)

Credit losses and impairment of assets (Continued)

(i)

Credit losses from financial assets
(Continued)

Measurement of ECLs (Continued)

ECLs are measured on either of the following
bases:

- 12-month ECLs: these are the portion of
ECLs that result from default events that
are possible within the 12-months after the
reporting date (or a shorter period if the
expected life of the instrument is less than
12 months); and

- lifetime ECLs: these are the ECLs that result
from all possible default events over the
expected lives of the items to which the ECL
model applies.

Loss allowances for trade receivables are always
measured at an amount equal to lifetime ECLs
which result from all possible default events over
the expected lives of these financial assets.

Significant increases in credit risk

When determining whether the credit risk of a
financial instrument has increased significantly
since initial recognition and when measuring
ECLs, the Group considers reasonable and
supportable information that is relevant and
available without undue cost or effort. This
includes both quantitative and qualitative
information and analysis, based on the Group’s
historical experience and informed credit
assessment, that includes forward-looking
information.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A B

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(BREEEAN ABTEF)

2

Material accounting policies (Continued)

(k)

Credit losses and impairment of assets (Continued)

(i)

Credit losses from financial assets
(Continued)

Significant increases in credit risk (Continued)

The Group assumes that the credit risk on a
financial asset has increased significantly if it is
more than 30 days past due.

The Group considers a financial asset to be in
default when the debtor is unlikely to pay its
credit obligations to the Group in full, without
recourse by the Group to actions such as
realising security (if any is held).

ECLs are remeasured at the end of each reporting
period to reflect changes in the financial asset’s
credit risk since initial recognition. Any change in
the ECL amount is recognised as an impairment
gain or loss in profit or loss. The Group
recognises an impairment gain or loss for all
financial assets with a corresponding adjustment
to their carrying amount through a loss allowance
account.

Credited-impaired financial assets

At the end of each reporting period, the Group
assesses whether a financial asset is credit-
impaired. A financial asset is credit-impaired
when one or more events that have a detrimental
impact on the estimated future cash flows of the
financial asset have occurred.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(BRBHHEHIN

LA T 25)

2 Material accounting policies (Continued)

(k) Credit losses and impairment of assets (Continued)

(i)

Credit losses from financial assets
(Continued)

Credited-impaired financial assets (Continued)

Evidence that a financial asset is credit-impaired
includes the following observable events:

- significant financial difficulties of the debtor;

- a breach of contract, such as a default or
being more than 90 days past due;

- the restructuring of a loan or advance by the
Group on terms that the Group would not
consider otherwise;

- it is probable that the debtor will enter
bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation;
or

- the disappearance of an active market for
a security because of financial difficulties of
the issuer.

Write-off policy

The gross carrying amount of a financial asset is
written off to the extent that there is no realistic
prospect of recovery. This is generally the case
when the Group determines that the debtor
does not have assets or sources of income that
could generate sufficient cash flows to repay the
amounts subject to the write-off.

Subsequent recoveries of an asset that was
previously written off are recognised as a reversal
of impairment in profit or loss in the period in
which the recovery occurs.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A B

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(BREEEAN ABTEF)

2

Material accounting policies (Continued)

(k)

Credit losses and impairment of assets (Continued)

(i)

Impairment of other non-current assets

At the end of each reporting period, the Group
reviews the carrying amounts of its non-financial
assets (other than investment property) to
determine whether there is any indication of
impairment. If any such indication exists, then
the asset’s recoverable amount is estimated.
Goodwill is tested annually for impairment.

For impairment testing, assets are grouped
together into the smallest group of assets that
generates cash inflows from continuing use that
are largely independent of the cash inflows of
other assets or cash-generating units (“CGU”s).
Goodwill arising from a business combination is
allocated to CGUs or groups of CGUs that are
expected to benefit from the synergies of the
combination.

The recoverable amount of an asset or CGU is
the greater of its value-in-use and its fair value
less costs of disposal. Value-in-use based on the
estimated future cash flows, discounted to their
present value using a pre-tax discount rate that
reflects current market assessments of the time
value of money and the risks specific to the asset
or CGU.

An impairment loss is recognised if the carrying
amount of an asset or CGU exceeds its
recoverable amount.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

AN
,%/T\DE

U e

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(BRBHHEHIN

LA T 25)

2 Material accounting policies (Continued)

(k)

U]

Credit losses and impairment of assets (Continued)

(ii)

Impairment of other non-current assets
(Continued)

Impairment losses are recognised in profit or loss.
They are allocated first to reduce the carrying
amount of any goodwill allocated to the CGU,
and then to reduce the carrying amounts of the
other assets in the CGU on a pro rata basis.

An impairment loss in respect of goodwill is not
reversed. For other assets, an impairment loss
is reversed only to the extent that the resulting
carrying amount does not exceed the carrying
amount that would have been determined, net
of depreciation or amortisation, if no impairment
loss had been recognised.

Inventories

Inventories are measured at the lower of cost and net

realisable value.

Cost is calculated using the first-in-first-out method

and comprises all costs of purchase, costs of

conversion and other costs incurred in bringing the

inventories to their present location and condition.

Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the

ordinary course of business less the estimated costs

of completion and the estimated costs necessary to

make the sale.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A B

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(BREEEAN ABTEF)

2

Material accounting policies (Continued)

(m) Loans and interest receivables

(n)

(o)

Loans receivable are loans granted to customers
in the ordinary course of business. If collection of
loans receivable is expected in one year or less, they
are classified as current assets, or if not, they are
presented as non-current assets.

Interest receivables are interests derived from loans
granted to borrowers in the ordinary course of
business.

Loans and interest receivables are recognised initially
at fair value and subsequently measured at amortised
cost using the effective interest method, less allowance
for ECLs (see note 2(k)(i)).

Trade and other receivables

A receivable is recognised when the Group has an
unconditional right to receive consideration and only
the passage of time is required before payment of that
consideration is due.

Receivables that do not contain a significant financing
component are initially measured at their transaction
price and are subsequently stated at amortised cost,
including an allowance for ECLs (see note 2(k)(i)).

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at bank
and on hand, demand deposits with banks and
other financial institutions, and short-term, highly
liguid investments that are readily convertible into
known amounts of cash and which are subject to an
insignificant risk of changes in value, having been
within three months of maturity at acquisition. Cash
and cash equivalents are assessed for ECLs (see note

2(K)(@)).-
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(BEHEEBIN REBTES)

2

Material accounting policies (Continued)

(p)

(a)

()

(s)

Contract liabilities

A contract liability is recognised when the customer
pays non-refundable consideration before the Group
recognises the related revenue (see note 2(v)). A
contract liability is also recognised if the Group
has unconditional right to receive non-refundable
consideration before the Group recognises the related
revenue. In such cases, a corresponding receivable is
also recognised (see note 2(n)).

Trade and other payables

Trade and other payables are initially recognised at fair
value and are subsequently stated at amortised cost
unless the effect of discounting would be immaterial, in
which case they are stated at invoice amounts.

Interest-bearing borrowings

Interest-bearing borrowings are measured initially
at fair value less transaction costs. Subsequently,
these borrowings are stated at amortised cost using
the effective interest method. Interest expense is
recognised in profit and loss, which are expensed in
the period in which they are incurred.

Employee benefits

(i) Short term employee benefits and
contributions to defined contribution
retirement plans

Salaries, annual bonuses, paid annual leave,
contributions to defined contribution retirement
plans and the cost of non-monetary benefits
are accrued in the year in which the associated
services are rendered by employees. Where
payment or settlement is deferred and the effect
would be material, these amounts are stated at
their present values.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

g A

N

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)
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B

W

%5 R 2 M AL

(BREEEAN ABTEF)

2

Material accounting policies (Continued)

(s)

Employee benefits (Continued)

(i)  Short term employee benefits and
contributions to defined contribution
retirement plans (Continued)

The Group operates a mandatory provident fund
scheme in Hong Kong and defined contribution
government pension schemes in the People’s
Republic of China (the “PRC").

Contributions to mandatory provident fund
as required under the Hong Kong Mandatory
Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance, are
recognised as an expense in profit or loss as

incurred.

The employees in the PRC are members of the
retirement benefit scheme organised by the
government in the PRC. The Group is required
to contribute, based on a certain percentage of
payroll, to the retirement benefit scheme to fund
the benefits. The only obligation of the Group
with respect to the retirement benefit scheme
is to make the required contributions under the
scheme. Contributions to this retirement benefit
scheme are recognised as an expense in profit or
loss as incurred except to the extent that they are
included in the cost of inventories sold at the end

of the reporting period.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

LA T 25)

Material accounting policies (Continued)

(s)

Employee benefits (Continued)

(ii) Defined benefit plan obligations

The Group has the defined benefit plans in
relation to long service payment (‘LSP”) under the
Hong Kong Employment Ordinance.

The Group’s net obligation in respect of defined
benefit plans is calculated separately for each
plan by estimating the amount of future benefit
that employees have earned in the current and
prior periods and discounting that amount. The
estimated amount of future benefit is determined
after deducting the negative service cost
arising from the accrued benefits derived from
the Group’s MPF contributions that have been
vested with employees, which are deemed to be
contributions from the relevant employees.

The calculation of defined benefit obligation is
performed by the management. Net interest
expense for the period is determined by applying
the discount rate used to measure the defined
benefit obligation at the beginning of the
reporting period to the then net defined benefit
liability, taking into account any changes in the
net defined benefit liability during the period. Net
interest expense and other expenses related to
defined benefit plans are recognised in profit or
loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(BREEEAN ABTEF)

2

Material accounting policies (Continued)

(s)

®)

Employee benefits (Continued)

(iii) Share-based payments

The grant-date fair value of equity-settled share-
based payments granted to employees is
measured using the binomial lattice model. The
amount is generally recognised as an expense,
with a corresponding increase in equity, over
the vesting period of the awards. The amount
recognised as an expense is adjusted to reflect
the number of awards for which the related
service conditions are expected to be met, such
that the amount ultimately recognised is based
on the number of awards that meet the related
service conditions at the vesting date.

Income tax

Income tax expense comprises current tax and
deferred tax. It is recognised in profit or loss except to
the extent that it relates to items recognised directly in
equity or other comprehensive income (“OCI”).

Current tax comprises the estimated tax payable or
receivable on the taxable income or loss for the year
and any adjustments to the tax payable or receivable
in respect of previous years. The amount of current tax
payable or receivable is the best estimate of the tax
amount expected to be paid or received that reflects
any uncertainty related to income taxes. It is measured
using tax rates enacted or substantively enacted at the
end of the reporting period. Current tax also includes
any tax arising from dividends.

Current tax assets and liabilities are offset only if
certain criteria are met.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(BRBHHEHIN

2

LA T 25)

Material accounting policies (Continued)

®)

Income tax (Continued)

Deferred tax is recognised in respect of temporary
differences between the carrying amounts of assets
and liabilities for financial reporting purposes and the
amounts used for taxation purposes. Deferred tax is
not recognised for:

- temporary differences on the initial recognition
of assets or liabilities in a transaction that is not
a business combination and that affects neither
accounting nor taxable profit or loss and does
not give rise to equal taxable and deductible
temporary differences;

- temporary differences related to investment
in subsidiaries to the extent that the Group is
able to control the timing of the reversal of the
temporary differences and it is probable that they
will not reverse in the foreseeable future; and

- taxable temporary differences arising on the initial
recognition of goodwill.

The Group recognised deferred tax assets and
deferred tax liabilities separately in relation to its lease
liabilities and right-of-use assets.

Deferred tax assets are recognised for unused tax
losses, unused tax credits and deductible temporary
differences to the extent that it is probable that future
taxable profits will be available against which they
can be used. Future taxable profits are determined
based on the reversal of relevant taxable temporary
differences. If the amount of taxable temporary
differences is insufficient to recognise a deferred
tax asset in full, then future taxable profits, adjusted
for reversals of existing temporary differences, are
considered, based on the business plans for individual
subsidiaries in the Group. Deferred tax assets are
reviewed at the end of each reporting period and are
reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that
the related tax benefit will be realised; such reductions
are reversed when the probability of future taxable
profits improves.
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(BREEEAN ABTEF)

2

Material accounting policies (Continued)

®)

(u)

Income tax (Continued)

Where investment properties are carried at their fair
value in accordance with note 2(h), the amount of
deferred tax recognised is measured using the tax
rates that would apply on sale of those assets at
their carrying value at the end of the reporting period,
unless the property is depreciable and is held within
a business model whose objective is to consume
substantially all of the economic benefits embodied in
the property over time, rather than through sale. In all
other cases, the measurement of deferred tax reflects
the tax consequences that would follow from the
manner in which the Group expects, at the reporting
date, to recover or settle the carrying amount of its
assets and liabilities.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset only if
certain criteria are met.

Provisions and contingent liabilities

Generally provisions are determined by discounting
the expected future cash flows at a pre-tax rate that
reflects current market assessment of the time value of
money and the risks specific to the liability.

Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic
benefits will be required, or the amount cannot be
estimated reliably, the obligation is disclosed as a
contingent liability, unless the probability of outflow
of economic benefits is remote. Possible obligations,
whose existence will only be confirmed by the
occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more future
events are also disclosed as contingent liabilities
unless the probability of outflow of economic benefits
is remote.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(BEHEEBIN REBTES)

2 Material accounting policies (Continued)

(v)

Revenue and other income

Income is classified by the Group as revenue when it
arises from the sale of goods and provision of services
in the ordinary course of the Group’s business.

Further details of the Group’s revenue and other
income recognition policies are as follows:

Revenue from contracts with customers

The Group is the principal for its revenue transactions
and recognises revenue on a gross basis, including
the sale of goods that are sourced externally. In
determining whether the Group acts as a principal or
as an agent, it considers whether it obtains control of
the products or services before they are transferred
to the customers. Control refers to the Group’s ability
to direct the use of and obtain substantially all of the
remaining benefits from the products.

Revenue is recognised when control over a product
or a service is transferred to the customer at the
amount of promised consideration to which the Group
is expected to be entitled, excluding those amounts
collected on behalf of third parties such as value
added tax or other sales taxes. Revenue is also after
deduction of any trade discounts.

(i) Sale of goods

Revenue from distribution sale of cosmetic and
skin care products and the sale of health, beauty
and related products are recognised at a point in
time when the customer takes possession of and
accepts the products.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A B

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(BREEEAN ABTEF)

2 Material accounting policies (Continued) 2 EBEXRETEE®
(v) Revenue and other income (Continued) (v) WEREMKA(E)
Revenue from contracts with customers EFEHUA (&)
(Continued)
(i) Provision of beauty and slimming services (i) FEHEBRRBEIRE

Revenue from provision of beauty and slimming
services is recognised over time when the
services have been rendered to customers.

Prepaid beauty services not yet rendered, which
are non-refundable, are deferred and reported as
contract liabilities in the consolidated statement
of financial position. Customers who did not
exercise all the contractual rights of the prepaid
packages upon expiry of service period, and such
unutilised portion are fully recognised in profit or
loss.

Provision of franchise services

Initial franchise income is recognised over
time upon the grant of rights, completion of
the designated phases of the franchise set-
up and transfer of know-how to the franchisee
in accordance with the terms stated in the
franchise agreement. Recurring franchise income
is recognised on a pre-determined amount in
accordance with the terms as stated in the
franchise agreements.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(BEHEEBIN REBTES)

2 Material accounting policies (Continued) 2 EBEXRESTEHEm®
(v) WmRHEMYA(E)

(v) Revenue and other income (Continued)

A g KR 49 W 75 K B Ay ] A

Revenue from other sources and other income

(iv)  Interest income )  FLEHA

Interest income is recognised using the effective
interest method. The effective interest rate is the
rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash
receipts through the expected life of the financial
asset to the gross carrying amount of the financial
asset.

In calculating interest income, the effective
interest rate is applied to the gross carrying
amount of the asset (when the asset is not
credit-impaired). However, for financial assets
that have become credit-impaired subsequent to
initial recognition, interest income is calculated
by applying the effective interest rate to the
amortised cost of the financial asset. If the asset
is no longer credit-impaired, then the calculation
of interest income reverts to the gross basis.

Dividend income

Dividend income is recognised in profit or loss
on the date on which the Group’s right to receive
payment is established.

Government grants

Government grants are recognised in the
consolidated statement of financial position
initially when there is reasonable assurance that
they will be received and that the Group will
comply with the conditions attaching to them.
Grants that compensate the Group for expenses
incurred are recognised as other revenue in profit
or loss on a systematic basis in the same periods
in which the expenses are incurred. Grants that
compensate the Group for the cost of an asset
are deducted from the carrying amount of the
asset and consequently are effectively recognised
in profit or loss over the useful life of the asset by
way of reduced depreciation expense.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A B

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(BREEEAN ABTEF)

2 Material accounting policies (Continued)

(v)

(w)

Revenue and other income (Continued)

Revenue from other sources and other income
(Continued)

(vii)  Rental income from operating leases

Rental income from operating leases is
recognised profit or loss on the straight-line
basis over the term of the lease. Lease incentives
granted are recognised in profit or loss as an
integral part of the total rental income, over the
term of the lease.

Translation of foreign currencies

Transactions in foreign currencies are translated
into the respective functional currencies of group
companies at the exchange rates at the dates of the
transactions.

Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign
currencies are translated into the functional currency at
the exchange rate at the end of the reporting period.
Non-monetary assets and liabilities that are measured
at fair value in a foreign currency are translated into
the functional currency at the exchange rate when the
fair value was determined. Non-monetary assets and
liabilities that are measured based on historical cost
in a foreign currency are translated at the exchange
rate at the date of the transaction. Foreign currency
differences are generally recognised in profit or loss.

The assets and liabilities of foreign operations,
including goodwill and fair value adjustments arising on
acquisition, are translated into Hong Kong dollars at
the exchange rates at the end of the reporting period.
The income and expenses of foreign operations are
translated into Hong Kong dollars at the exchange
rates at the dates of the transactions.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(BEHEEBIN REBTES)

2 Material accounting policies (Continued)

(w) Translation of foreign currencies (Continued)

(x)

Foreign currency differences are recognised in OCI
and accumulated in the exchange reserve, except to
the extent that the translation difference is allocated to
NCI.

Segment reporting

Operating segments, and the amounts of each
segment item reported in the consolidated financial
statements, are identified from the financial information
provided regularly to the Group’s most senior executive
management for the purposes of allocating resources
to, and assessing the performance of, the Group’s
various lines of business and geographical locations.

Individually material operating segments are not
aggregated for financial reporting purposes unless
the segments have similar economic characteristics
and are similar in respect of the nature of products
and services, the type or class of customers, the
methods used to distribute the products or provide the
services, and the nature of the regulatory environment.
Operating segments which are not individually material
may be aggregated if they share a majority of these
criteria.

3 Revenue

The principal activities of the Group are the distribution sale

of cosmetic and skin care products, provision of beauty

and slimming services, sale of health, beauty and related

products, investments in securities and money lending

business.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e SRR

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(BREEEAN ABTEF)

3 Revenue (Continuead)

Revenue represents the invoiced value of goods supplied
to customers, net of discounts, returns, value added tax or
other sales taxes; service income from provision of beauty
and slimming services, net of discounts; and interest income
earned from the money lending business and investment
income. The amount of each significant category of revenue
recognised in revenue during the year is as follows:

Wi (#)

WaREREPAE®#ERRETN R
B WERIEMHEER cEEE: KB
REZAREERBE A ETNZRB K
N ARBEXBHRRZFBBMAREZE
WA-FR RREERZESETEREE
RleREMAT

2025 2024
—E-HEF —T_MmF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET
Revenue within the scope of ERM K REERE155
HKFRS 15 “Revenue from Contracts [BEFEHWE]EEBRZ
with Customers” W &=
Distribution sale of cosmetic and DIEEEM R EEE®D
skin care products 803,747 1,015,567
Provision of beauty and slimming services REER R ERS 60,770 57,465
Sale of health, beauty and related products &R =X MHBEE R 2,626 6,840
867143 1,079872
Revenue from other sources H fth 38R K &=
Interest income from money lending business (& % 7% 2 | B WA 7,265 8,094
Fair value (loss)/gain on financial assets ERAFEFAEBERZSHM
at FVPL, net BEZ2ATE(ER)/
W &5 7% 58 (28,633) 3,680
Realised (loss)/gain on financial assets ERFEFAERZSHM
at FVPL, net EEZEZR (F1E)/
W &5 7% 58 (5,750) 1,089
I (27,18) - 12,863 _
840,025 1,092,735

The Group has applied the practical expedient in paragraph
121 of HKFRS 15 to its revenue contracts such that the
above information does not include information about
revenue that the Group will be entitled to when it satisfies
the remaining performance obligations under those revenue
contracts that had an original expected duration of one year
or less.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MR IR AR M R

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(BEHEEBIN REBTES)

3 Revenue (continued)

Disaggregation of revenue from contracts with customers
by the timing of revenue recognition and by geographic
markets is disclosed in notes 10(a) and 10(b) respectively.

4 Other revenue and other gains or losses 4

Other revenue

Bank interest income

Other interest income

Government grants (Note)

Dividend income from listed equity securities
Rental income

Others

Other gains or losses
Fair value (loss)/gain on financial assets
at FVPL

Fair value loss on investment property
Gain on early termination of a lease
Gain/(loss) on disposal of property,
plant and equipment, net
Cumulative exchange gain reclassified
from equity to profit or loss upon
deregistration of subsidiaries

Note:

Included in the government grants received for both years were funds
and subsidies from local government authorities for the Group’s
development and business activities. There are no unfulfilled conditions

3 Wz e)

H e 28

RITH B WA

H Al F B A

BT RE (A iz )
EHBRARE S 2B EWA
HaBA

H Al

Hit s A E
BAFEFABRGEZE®
BEZNTE(EBE)/
Y 28
BREMEZ N HERE
REERILEEZ K
HEME HERREBZ
Wz (ER)FHE
B S P B & B R 1
BEENOBEEERLZ
REHIE 5 Wt

Hiat -

NEZMEFE TR RERAEEZER R
EBEHREE 2 ES RAEBTAD KBTS -
YR % 55 70 BR 00 SR I S RS AR R R B s AR ==

and other contingencies attached to the receipts of those subsidies. g o

SR oTs
B

Ho s & H Wi s s 18

ERAREFEREZHETSEE 2T
=8l 9 5 7 ME 5E10(a) 2 10(b)

2025 2024
—E_RE —E-F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FE T FET
6,423 5,645
1,602 1,397
2,919 277

52 380

420 202

618 262
12,034 8,163
(1,811) 1,174
(300) -

71 27

1,240 (88)
2,746 -
1,946 1,113
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e SRR

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(BREEEAN ABTEF)

5 Loss before taxation

Loss before taxation is arrived after charging/(crediting):

(a) Finance costs: (a)
Interest on lease liabilities
Interest on borrowings

(b) Staff costs (including directors’ (b)
remuneration (note 7)):
Salaries, allowances and other benefits
Contributions to defined contribution
retirement plans
Long service payments recognised in
respect of defined benefit plans

(c) Other items: (c)
Cost of inventories sold
Auditors’ remuneration
Depreciation of:
— property, plant and equipment
— right-of-use assets
Impairment losses/(reversal of
impairment losses) on:
— trade receivables
— other receivables
— loans and interest receivables, net

— goodwill
Write-off of trade receivables
Write-off of other receivables
Expenses relating to short-term leases
Rental income from investment
properties less direct outgoings of
HK$104,000 (2024: HK$101,000)
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ERAEHPEE HAX
REWERS KA
H#% X 104,000 7T
—T-MF:
101,000 7))

BREABEE R (GFA) THSE

2025 2024
—E_-RE —EE
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET
597 572
128 237

725 809
47,395 48,009
6,512 7,802
197 806
54,104 56,617
761,213 961,769
1,250 1,300
7,359 8,615
7,409 8,204
(319) 1,960
211 1,954
8,083 8,581
2,898 1,450

— 1

7 6,824

1,794 3,844
(316) (101)




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(BEHEEBIN REBTES)

6 Income tax in the consolidated statement 6 #HEEERRAZHAEHR
of profit or loss

(a) Taxation in the consolidated statement of profit or (a) HEeBmXRAZBE
loss
2025 2024
—E-RE —E-NEF
HK$’000 HK$ 000
FET FHET

Current tax - Hong Kong Profits Tax E#HH1E -&EFBH
(Over)/under provision in respect of BAEFE (BEEE)

prior years BETR (555) 83
Current tax - PRC Enterprise EHHE-FECERER
Income Tax
Provision for the year (note 25(a)) FRREE (BiE25()) 3,562 3,270
Income tax expense FriS i X 3,007 3,353
(i)  Hong Kong Profits Tax (i) EEBFEH
No provision for Hong Kong Profits Tax has BHE_T-_RAFR-FT_MF
been made for the years ended 31 March 2025 “A=t+—RLEFE TEHM
and 2024 as the Company and its subsidiaries EBFESHETIRES AR
incorporated in Hong Kong have either no KRB KRB BT M LA H
assessable profits for the years or have sufficient B~ &) F A A E R s A
tax losses brought forward to set off against LB RHBIEEEEEIEE
current year's estimated assessable profits for the FAMGETERBURF
year.

SAU SAN TONG HOLDINGS LIMITED &5 Z#=RAER AT

163
Annual Report 2024/25 FE K&



164

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

4= ANH
I =
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(BmEEAN

6

B 75 R 2 P RE

LAETT251)

Income tax in the consolidated statement
of profit or loss (Continuead)

(a)

Taxation in the consolidated statement of profit or
loss (Continued)

(ii)  PRC Enterprise Income Tax

The subsidiaries incorporated in the PRC are
subject to the PRC Enterprise Income Tax rate of
25% (2024: 25%) for the year.

Under the PRC tax law, profits of the Group’s
subsidiaries in the PRC (the “PRC subsidiaries”)
derived since 1 January 2008 is subject to
withholding income tax at rates of 5% or 10%
upon the distribution of such profits to foreign
investors or companies incorporated in Hong
Kong or for other foreign investors, respectively.
Pursuant to the grandfathering arrangements
of the PRC tax law, dividends receivable by the
Group from the PRC subsidiaries in respect
of the undistributed profits derived prior to 31
December 2007 are exempt from the withholding
income tax.

As at 31 March 2025 and 2024, no deferred
tax liabilities have been recognised in respect
of tax that would be payable on the unremitted
profits of the PRC subsidiaries derived since 1
January 2008 as the directors of the Company
is in a position to control the dividend policies of
the PRC subsidiaries and no distribution of such
profits is expected to be declared from the PRC
subsidiaries in the foreseeable future.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

= ACH
:%T\I:l/

U175 ¥R 3k B

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(BEHEEBIN REBTES)

6

Income tax in the consolidated statement

of profit or loss (Continuead)

(b)

Reconciliation between income tax expense and

accounting loss at applicable tax rates:

Loss before taxation

Notional tax on loss before taxation,
calculated at Hong Kong Profits
Tax rates of 16.5% (2024: 16.5%)

Tax effect of non-deductible expenses

Tax effect of non-taxable income

Tax effect of temporary differences not
recognised

Tax effect of unused tax losses not
recognised

Tax effect of utilisation of tax losses
previously not recognised

Tax effect of different tax rates of
subsidiaries in other jurisdictions

(Over)/under provision in respect of
prior years

Income tax expense

6 HEBHERAZMEH 2
(b) FIEHMAHEREANETEZS
BB ZHE
2025 2024
—E_RE —E-F
HK$°000 HK$ 000
FET FET
B T4 Al &5 18 (46,647) (11,038)
BREBAEEcEERIE
BREBMNEHHE16.5%
ZEZIYF 16.5%)
E (7,697) (1,821)
T‘Hﬂﬁﬁaﬁizm%’z%; 6,937 5,592
ARBBMA R 2 (5,757) (8,269)
iﬁwah%ﬁzm%%”
1,334 523
RERKRBAMIEEE 2
MBEE 7,415 6,561
AR ARBERAMEBEZ
HwE (2,470) (1,961)
REMBNEER OB R
TRMEZMBTE 3,800 2,645
BAFE (BERE)
BiETRE (555) 83
P15 B 5 X 3,007 3,353
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e SRR

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(BREEEAN ABTEF)

7 Directors’ and chief executive’s 7 EERFETHAEZHM

remunerations

(a) Directors’ remuneration disclosed pursuant to section (a)
383(1) of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, Part
2 of the Companies (Disclosure of Information about
Benefits of Directors) Regulation and the GEM Listing
Rules are as follows:

Salaries, allowances and

BEE B R FGHE383(1)E A
AI(BRBRESMNZER) RO E25
K GEM L1 #8 B # 8 2 2 == % B a0
T

Directors’ fees benefits in kind Discretionary bonuses  Retirement benefits Total

Ezhe B RERENNE BELa BIRER &t

2025 2024 2025 2024 2025
“E-Rf -“ZI-NF -B-EfF TN -ECEf
HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000
FET FET FAT FAT FAT

2024 2025 2024 2025 2024
RN ZB-EE TN -“BDEE CICOQF
HK$'000 — HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HK$ 000
FET FAT T FET FET

Executive directors HES
Mr. Mui Wai Sum BERLE - - 389 360 - - 12 38 401 398
Mr. Lei Nelson TRERE
(aopointed on 3 July 2023) (R-F==%
+tAZHEZF) - - 486 360 - - 18 14 504 374
Mr. Chan Ka Kin BRELE
(resigned on 3 July 2023) (R-F-z%
+tHZAEE) - S - 90 - - - 4 - 94
Non-executive director FUTES
Mr. Takashi Togo RpztEE
(retired on 22 September 2025)  (R=F==%
NAZ1+=AR
£) - 115 - - - - - - - 115
Independent non-executive ~ BIUFHTEE
directors
Ms. Tsang Tsz Nok, Aleen N . 120 120 - - - - - - 120 120
Mr. Lau Wai Leung, Alfred BRiE 120 120 - - - - - - 120 120
Mr. Au Siu Lun BXRLE 120 120 - - - - - - 120 120
360 475 875 810 - - 30 56 1,265 1,341

During the years ended 31 March 2025 and 2024, no
directors waived or agreed to waive any emoluments.
No emoluments were paid by the Group to the
directors and chief operating decision maker as an
inducement to join or upon joining the Group or as
compensation for loss of office.

(o) The remuneration of the chief executive officer, Ms. (b)
Kwan Fei Ying, is disclosed in note 32(a).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MR IR AR M R

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(BEHEEBIN REBTES)

8 Individuals with highest emoluments

Of the five individuals with the highest emoluments, none
of the five highest emoluments are directors (2024: none)
whose emolument is disclosed in note 7(a). The aggregate
of the emoluments in respect of these five (2024: five)

individuals are as follows:

Salaries and other emoluments
Retirement benefits

o MEMRE
RIRAEF

The emoluments of the five (2024: five) individuals with the
highest emoluments are within the following bands:

HK$Nil-HK$ 1,000,000
HK$1,000,001-HK$1,500,000

HK$1,500,001-HK$2,000,000
HK$2,000,001-HK$2,500,000
HK$2,500,001-HK$3,000,000
HK$3,000,001-HK$3,500,000

HK$3,500,001-HK$4,000,000

REFAL

hEs&RFALT BETHALAME
HBERME7@EENES (Z T -HF:
B/) o ZAZ(ZTE_MF - AR)ATZ

Be@EmT -
2025 2024
=R=EF —E-UF
HK$’000 HK$ 000
FHET FHET
7,438 7.095
210 205
7,648 7,320

ER(ZE-_OmF - BER)&aHFALZ

B ToIsEE :

2025 2024

—E_RE —E-E

Number of Number of

individuals individuals

AZ A&

=& 7L 21,000,000/ 7T 2 3
1,000,001 L&

1,500,000 7T 2 1
1,500,001 L&

2,000,000/% 7T = =
2,000,001 8 L&

2,500,000/% 7T - S
2,500,001 T2

3,000,000/ 7T - S
3,000,001 8 L&

3,500,000/% 7T = =
3,500,001 L E

4,000,0007% 7T 1 1

5 5
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Individuals with highest emoluments
(Continued)

During the years ended 31 March 2025 and 2024, no
emoluments were paid by the Group to any of the individuals
with highest emoluments of the Group as an inducement to
join or upon joining the Group or as compensation for loss
of office.

Loss per share

The calculation of basic loss per share is based on the loss
attributable to owners of the Company of HK$51,981,000
(2024: HK$14,297,000) and the weighted average of
78,842,000 ordinary shares (2024: 78,842,000 ordinary
shares) in issue during the year.

The assumed exercise of the outstanding share options for
the years ended 31 March 2025 and 2024 have anti-dilutive
effect and have therefore been excluded from the above
calculation.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MR IR AR M R

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(BEHEEBIN REBTES)

10 Segment reporting

Management has determined the operating segments based
on the reports reviewed by the directors that are used to
make strategic decisions. The directors review the Group’s
financial information mainly from business lines prospective.
Accordingly, the Group’s operating segments are:

()  Distribution sale of cosmetic and skin care products
(i) Provision of beauty and slimming services

(i)  Franchise operations (including sale of health, beauty
and related products to franchised shops)

(iv) Sale of health, beauty and related products
(v) Investments in securities
(vi)  Money lending

The directors assess the performance of the operating
segments based on a measure of reportable segment
results. This measurement basis excludes certain
other revenue, other gains or losses, finance costs and
unallocated expenses.

Segment assets mainly exclude certain property, plant and
equipment, right-of-use assets, investment property, current
tax recoverable and other assets that are managed on a
central basis. Segment liabilities mainly exclude current tax
payable and other liabilities that are managed on a central
basis.

10

i)

okk

Bk &

EEECBREBEESENANEL REE
RELBREEEKLED L - EFETENRE
BRAEEMNASEZHBER At
REBZIEEDI A

() EEEMNEEER

(i) REXBTREBRS

(i) MBEEEK (BERMNEEES
HEERE EARBEER)

(iv) #HERRE XBREHEER
v BHERE
(vi) E

EERNE2RDAXEEEEFRLELED
MRE-FEEETBEETHEMEK
moHlamskER BmEXA KRS
P

DHMEETETERBETYE KEER
B ERAREE REVE YA KM
MAREMERERZEE- DR BRET
ETERENERHBAREMEHERE
ZBafE-
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR RA M

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(BREEEAN ABTEF)

10 Segment reporting (Continued) 10 2EW|E (@)
(a) Segment results, assets and liabilities (a) "HEE - BEREE
2025
ZECERE
Distribution Sale of
sale of Provision health,
cosmetic of beauty beauty and
and skin care and slimming Franchise related  Investments Money
products services  operations products  in securities lending Total
DHHEE HERR
fREE REXER nE&%E S
ER SRRY £% RRER RERE HE @it

HK$'000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HKS'000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$'000
FE7T FEx FEx FE7T FEx FEx FE7

Disaggregated by timing of BREIRERBED
revenue recognition

A point in time RE-BEZ 803,747 - - 2,626 (5,750) - 800,623
Qver time FeZ R - 60,770 - - (28,633) 7,265 39,402
Reportable segment revenue TEFNPUE 803,747 60,770 - 2,626 (34,383) 7,265 840,025
Reportable segment results UERHBEE 8,566 (11,894) 2 (181) (30,952) (4,795) (39,258)
Unallocated corporate expenses £ BAAHX (6,664)
Loss from operations meER (45,922)
Finance costs BEKK (725)
Loss before taxation BRAESE (46,647)
Income tax expense ERAY (3,007)
Loss for the year FRER (49,654)
Impairment losses/(reversal of RESE/ (REBRER):

impairment losses) on:

- trade recelvables, net -BWE HFBETE (242) (30) - (7 - - (319)

- other receivables, net - Bt MGUR TR - 61 - - 150 - 211

- loans and interest receivables, — —EMERRFIEFE

net - - - - - 8,083 8,083

- goodwil -HE - 2,898 - - - - 2,898
Depreciation of: HE:

- property, plant and equipment  — %% BERXE 832 3,174 - - - - 4,006

- right-of-use assets -RREEE 1,842 4,408 - - - 1,159 7,409
Write-off of other receivables M E YR - 7 - - - - 7
Interest on lease liabilities HEARZME 156 305 - - - 136 597
Interest on borrowings BEZFE - - - - 128 - 128
Bank interest income ROFBMA (536) (15) - @ (2,880) (2,990) (6,423)
Other interest income Ef RS MA - - - - (1,602) - (1,602)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)
(BEHEEBIN REBTES)

10 Segment reporting (Continued) 10 2#WE (@)
(@) Segment results, assets and liabilities (Continued) (a) PPEE -BEREE(£)
2024
“TomE
Distribution Sale of
sale of Provision health,
cosmetic of beauty beauty and
and skin care  and slimming Franchise related  Investments Money
products services operations products  in securities lending Total
AEHE HERE
fhREE REXER MBRE N
Em ERRB £% HEER E5RE & &5t

HK$ 000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$ 000 HK$'000 HK$ 000 HK$'000
TET TET TET TET TET TET TET

Disaggregated by timing of REINEREED
revenue recognition

A point in time RE-BHE 1,015,567 - - 6,840 1,089 - 1,023,496
Over time RERH - 57,465 - - 3,680 8,004 69,239
Reportable segment revenue PEE VRS 1,015,567 57,465 - 6,840 4,769 8,094 1,092,735
Reportable segment results 2R PEE 10,556 (26,398) 6,960 1,971 7,139 (299) (1)
Unallocated corporate expenses A/ B2 AR % (10,158)
Loss from operations BEER (10,229)
Finance costs BEKK (809)
Loss before taxation BRAER (11,038)
Income tax expense FEREY (3,353)
Loss for the year FRER (14,391)

Impairment losses/(reversal of REER/ (REEREE)

impairment losses) on:

— trade receivables, net -EREFTEFE 1,912 50 - @ - - 1,960
- other receivables, net - Bt RFUE SR - 1,752 - - 202 - 1,954
- loans and interest receivables,  —EWEF RF EFE
net S = = S = 8,581 8,681
~ goodwil g - 1,450 - - - - 1,450
Depreciation of: FE:
- property, plant and equipment  —#1% - #& L R1E 949 4,313 - - 5 - 5,267
- right-of-use assets -FREEE 1,863 6,341 = = = = 8,204
Write-off of trade receivables HMEEKE 53R - 1 - - - - 1
Write-off of other receivables M E YR - 6,824 - - - - 6,824
Interest on lease liabilities BEEEZHE 233 339 - - - - 572
Interest on borrowings BEZFE - - - - 287 - 237
Bank interest income BATHBWA (903) (28) - @ (1,712) (3,000) (5,645)
Other interest income Hipf S WA - - - - (1,397) S (1,397)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A B

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(BREEEAN ABTEF)

10 Segment reporting (Continued) 10 WS
(a) Segment results, assets and liabilities (Continued) (@) PBEB - BERAEEB(£Z)
2025
ZBChf
Distribution Sale of
sale of Provision health,
cosmetic of beauty beauty and
and skin care and slimming Franchise related  Investments Money
products services  operations products in securities lending Total
AEHE HERR:
LHRER REXER mAEHE 23R
Em HRRY % HEER BERE nE &5t

HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS$'000 HK$'000
TEx FEx TEx TEx FEx TEx TEx

Segment assets PHEE

- Property, plant and equipment ~ —#1% - & R XA 1,282 5,516 - - - - 6,748

- Right-of-use assets -RREEE 1,832 2,853 - - - 7,187 11,872

- Intangible asset -BVEE - 14,871 - - - - 14,871

- Other assets ~EtEE 121,386 66,769 3 1,325 249,699 199,512 638,694
Unallocated corporate assets KRARRAIEE 98,719
Total assets EERR 770,904
Segment liabilities APHAEE (49,081) (17,221) (3,484) (85) (1,698) (7,843) (79,412)
Unallocated corporate liabilities ~ RAEATEE (1,869)
Total liabilities RERE (81,281)
Additions to segment AHERBDEERE

non-current assets 86 6,270 - - - 8,347 14,703
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(BRBEIHEBI ABITET)

(a)

10 Segment reporting (Continued) 10 2#WE (@)
Segment results, assets and liabilities (Continued) (@) PBEB - BERAEEBE(£Z)
2024
—EComE
Distribution Sale of
sale of Provision health,
cosmetic of beauty beauty and
and skin care  and slimming Franchise related  Investments Money
products services operations products i securities lending Total
DEHE HERR:
tHRkEE REXAR nBsfE  FARER
Em LI 2% Em EHRE M @t
HK$ 000 HKS$'000 HK$'000 HK$ 000 HK8'000 HK$ 000 HK$'000
FET FEr TET FET TAT TET FEr
Segment assets AHEE
- Property, plant and equipment ~ —#1% - B &R X1 2,245 7,686 - - - - 9,931
- Right-of-use assets -RRREE 3,686 4,555 - - - - 8,241
- Intangible asset -BVEE - 14,871 - - - - 14,871
- Other assets -EfEE 148,116 77,789 14 2,502 277,287 202,019 707,677
Unallocated corporate assets KARNREE 102,636
Total assets EESS 843,356
Segment liabilities AHAEE (57,155) (21,711) (3,514) (44) (1,570) (1,414) (85,408)
Unallocated corporate liabilitles ~ AAE A& E (1,941)
Total liabilities REAE (87,349)
Additions to segment PRERDEERE
non-current assets 325 5,064 - - - = 5,389
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e SRR

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(BREEEAN ABTEF)

10 Segment reporting (Continued)
(b) Geographical information
The Group’s revenue from external customers

and information regarding non-current assets by
geographical locations are as follows:

(b)

AEEINEEFZ W B BER
BEEZEMBMEMLEDWT

2025
—E-EHF
The PRC Hong Kong Total
B 5B wmat
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$°000
FET FET FET
Revenue from external IR P 2 s
customers 803,747 36,278 840,025
Non-current assets ERBEE 3,064 136,099 139,163
2024
—T-MF
The PRC Hong Kong Total
B H5B Bt
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET F#ET FET
Revenue from external IR P 2 WS
customers 1,015,567 77,168 1,092,735
Non-current assets EMBEE 5,930 139,301 145,231
() Major customers (c) XEEZEF

During the year ended 31 March 2025, none (2024: Nil)
of the customers contribute over 10% of the Group’s
revenue.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)
(BEHEEBIN REBTES)

11 Property, plant and equipment 11 Y- -HERFE
Office and
Land and Furniture computer Leasehold Motor
buildings Machinery  and fixtures equipment improvements vehicles Total
BRR FAER BENE
THRETF B AEXE EHRE %8 RE @3t

HKS'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK8'000 HKS 000 HK$'000
TET TET TET TET TET TET TET

Cost ZZ:

At 1 April 2023 RZEZ=£MmA-A 108,877 21,108 603 1,828 27,251 17,416 172,083
Exchange adjustments EHBE S S @ (44) (219) (537) (804)
Additions RE = 1,690 197 233 3,258 304 5,682
Disposals k3 = S (12) (40) (99) (311) (462)
At 31 March 2024 RZZ-ME=A=1-H 103,877 22,798 784 1,977 30,191 16,872 176,499
At 1 April 2024 RZZ-MERA—-A 108,877 22,798 784 1,977 30,191 16,872 176,499
Exchange adjustments AT = S S ) (22) (39) (64)
Additions nE - 992 - 1 45 86 1,124
Disposals e = S S (162) = (2,433) 2,595)
At 31 March 2025 RZZE-RF¥=A=1-H 108,877 23,790 784 1,813 30,214 14,486 174,964
Accumulated depreciation it E

At 1 April 2023 R-E-=f£mA-A 20,505 15,474 551 1,529 24,470 14,475 77,004
Exchange adjustments ERAE = = @ (37) (219) (378) (638)
Charge for the year FANE 3,244 2,683 66 133 1,573 916 8,615
Written back on disposals HERED = = @ (37) (13) (279) (331)
At 31 March 2024 RZE-ME=A=1+-H 23,749 18,157 611 1,588 25,811 14,734 84,650
At 1 April 2024 RZE-MEMA—A 23,749 18,157 611 1,588 25,811 14,734 84,650
Exchange adjustments R AT - = = 3 22) (33) (58)
Charge for the year FARE 3,244 1,874 47 106 1,275 813 7,359
Written back on disposals i E R E 5 S S (146) = (2,189) (2,335)
At 31 March 2025 R-E-RF=A=1-H 26,993 20,081 658 1,545 27,064 13,325 89,616
Carrying amount REE

At 31 March 2025 RZEZRE=A=1—H 76,884 3,759 126 268 3,150 1,161 85,348
At 31 March 2024 R-ZE-ME=A=1+-AH 80,128 4,641 173 389 4,380 2,138 91,849
The land and buildings are situated in Hong Kong under THREFUREBLRIEF BN
medium-term leases. FE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e SRR

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(BREEEAN ABTEF)

12 Right-of-use assets

Cost

At 1 April 2023

Exchange adjustments

Additions arising from entering into new lease
Adjustment on early termination of a lease
Lease modification

At 31 March 2024 and 1 April 2024

Exchange adjustments

Additions arising from entering into new lease
Adjustment on early termination of a lease
Derecognition

Lease modification

At 31 March 2025

Accumulated depreciation

At 1 April 2023

Exchange adjustments

Charge for the year

Adjustment on early termination of a lease

At 31 March 2024 and 1 April 2024
Exchange adjustments
Charge for the year

Adjustment on early termination of a lease
Eliminated on derecognition

At 31 March 2025

Carrying amount
At 31 March 2025

At 31 March 2024
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XA
R-_E-_=F/WA—H

[ A

R UHBEHNMEEZARE
REXRIHAEZHAE
HEBXK

R-EBE-_NF=ZA=Z+—HBK
ZEMNFEMA—H

i 5 A
HETZFHAMEECARE
RERIEHEE AR

B TERR

HEE N

R-ZZE-_RFE=R=+—8H

Rt E
N-ZTE-_=FMA—H
b 5 A
FRITE
REKRTHEZAE

R-ZE-_MWE=/F=+—HK
ZEMNEMA—H

b i P

FAFE
RERIEBE AR

#2 | SR B Y 8

R-ZZE-_RFE=R=+—8H

FREE
R-E-_RAF=A=+—H

R-ZE-_WF=HA=+—H

Leased
properties
HEWE
HK$'000
T

22,089
(61)
2,958
(2,958)
11,714

33,742
(33)
8,347
(6,125)
(5,989)
5,267

35,209

18,303
(20)
8,204
(986)

25,501
(22)
7,409
(3,562)
(5,989)

23,337

11,872

8,241



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(BEHEEBIN REBTES)

12

13

Right-of-use assets (Continuead)

The Group has obtained the right to use certain leased
properties as its factory complex and office premises
through tenancy agreements. The leases run for a period of
2 to 3 years (2024: 2 to 3 years), at the end of which period
all terms are renegotiated. None of the leases includes
variable lease payments.

Amounts included in the consolidated statement of
cash flows comprise of cash outflows for leases of
HK$1,794,000 and HK$7,954,000 (2024: HK$3,844,000
and HK$8,773,000) in operating and financing activities
respectively.

Investment property

At the beginning of the reporting period REHmEBA
Fair value loss recognised in profit or loss REBEFER
At the end of the reporting period REWMAR

The investment property is situated in Hong Kong and are
held under a medium-term lease.

The fair value of the Group’s investment property is
measured at the end of the reporting period on a recurring
basis, categorised into Level 2 fair value measurement within
the three-level fair value hierarchy as defined in HKFRS 13
“Fair Value Measurement”.

During the years ended 31 March 2025 and 2024, there was
no transfer between Level 1 and Level 2, or transfer into or
out of Level 3. The Group’s policy is to recognise transfers
between level of fair value hierarchy as at the end of the
reporting period in which they occur.

12 FRHEEE &)

AEEEZEZHAMERZNSERS
THEVEREIBEGEAARBREBRAE
ME-ZEHERP2E3F (ZF M
F2E3F) BRI RNBHEBKREN
BE REHEALTEEAZEENK

REAREREREN ZAREBBREL
ZhBmEEH2HAER SR L D 7
1,794,000/ 7T }27,954,0008 5t (=&
— P94 : 3,844,000/ T }8,773,000/8
JT) e

13 REW=

2025 2024

—E_RE —E -

HK$’000 HK$000

FE T FET

15,500 15,500

NEEEER (300) -
15,200 15,500

BREYWEUREBR ARETHEES
ﬁo

ARERENE L AT ER 2 BHRE
EREERHE W HREEBHBRE
A1 [AFEHE]FREZ =R
ATEERAZ E-RATENE-

BHE_Z-_AFEZZFT-_NF=A
=+ HIEFE F—HEF-_HHEL
mEm e A S - RE AkE o RE
BrvBRERBEATEERER 2
WMEARER B @S-
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A B

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(BREEEAN ABTEF)

13 Investment property (Continued)

Level 2 fair value measurement is those derived from inputs
other than quoted prices within Level 1, or significant
unobservable inputs within Level 3. Unobservable inputs are
inputs for which market data are not available. The fair value
of the Group’s investment property as at 31 March 2025
and 2024 has been arrived at on the basis of valuation by
Vincorn Consulting and Appraisal Limited, an independent
qualified professional valuer not connected with the Group,
and its fair value is determined using the market approach
by reference to recent sales price of comparable properties
on a price per square foot basis using market data which is
publicly available.

The Group leases out a property under operating leases.
The leases typically run for an initial period of 1 to 2 years,
with an option to renew the lease after that date at which
time all terms are renegotiated. None of the leases includes
variable lease payments.

Minimum undiscounted lease payments under operating
leases in place as at 31 March 2025 and 2024 will be
receivable by the Group in future periods as follows:

1ER
1F1ZE2ERN

Within 1 year
After 1 year but within 2 years
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HEEREBERAMSEET
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EGR - FEEERERSAIEHEEN

Eo
A °
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AAYMEEHEE T2 xERITEM
& 1 575 7T AN & B 7 SR 2k HA R Uk ER 40
T

2025 2024
—E-_RE —E-FE
HK$’000 HK$’000
FETT FET

245 420

-~ 245

245 665




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MR IR AR M R

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(BEHEEBIN REBTES)

14 Intangible asset 14 BILEE
Club
membership
B
HK$'000
FETT
Cost AR 2
At 1 April 2023, 31 March 2024, R-E-_ZFWMA—HB —ZT-_NF=A
1 April 2024 and 31 March 2025 =—t+—B -ZZEZMmFOA—HK
—E-RF=A=+—H 15,000
Accumulated impairment ZEHRE
At 1 April 2023, 31 March 2024, RZEBEZ=FMA—AB ZT-_NWF=H
1 April 2024 and 31 March 2025 _+ A ZZZFMNA—AR
—E-RF=R=+—H 129
Carrying amount BREE
At 31 March 2025 and 2024 RZEBEZRAFERZZENMFE=A=+—H 14,871
During the year ended 31 March 2025 and 2024, the HE_ZT_AFR_ZFT_MOF=H

management carried out an assessment of the recoverable
amount of the club membership. Based on their review, no
impairment loss was recognised during both years.

In assessing the useful life of club membership, the
management considered the Group has the contractual right
to control over the asset and legal rights within an indefinite
period and therefore, the club membership has been
assessed as having an indefinite useful life.

:Jr*EiJJ:EJ*'”‘EEﬂ@%%EI’UTH&@
SRETHE - REEEENFME W
EF R EERBERIE -

EERERRE GBI LR FHE
EEERARAEEREEFZEENS
WM R ERYDEEREMN -Hit ®@X
ReeRWIRBEEERAEREN-
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MR IR AR MY R

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)
(BREEEAN ABTEF)

14 Intangible asset (Continuea) 14

The recoverable amount of the club membership is
estimated by reference to the current open market value
less cost of disposal as of the end of the reporting period.
The fair value measurement is categorised in level 2 fair
value hierarchy.

15 Goodwill 15

Goodwill is accounted for in accordance with the Group’s
accounting policies as set out in note 2(e). For the purposes
of impairment testing, goodwill has been allocated to the
Group’s CGUs identified according to country of operations
and business segment as follows:

BVEE#)

ERAREEMOTRELENELE
R H R M AT A B T8 R
RAHEGH - UM ALEN B EA
ATEBHE =&

=

I

HEZME2)MBE 2 AEESFBERA
R-BBEANAME BECREBEXHR
EWOEEAGECEHERGELE
- BEBD LT

2025 2024
—E-EHE —ZE-pNF
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET FHE T
Provision of beauty and slimming services — 1R A N 482 AR 7% —
Hong Kong (“Unit A”) B ([BARAL) 11,240 14,138
Provision of beauty and slimming services - R #t =R R4 82 IRA —
the PRC (“Unit B”) hE ([EB]) - -
Money lending business — WIE T —
Hong Kong (“Unit C”) BE(TE4LCL) 595 595
Multiple units without significant goodwill mMBEAMBZZEEN
(“Others”) (TEAb]) 37 37
11,872 14,770
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MR IR AR M R

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)
(BEHEEBIN REBTES)

15 Goodwill (Continued)

Cost R

At 1 April 2023 WZE-=FMA—H

Exchange adjustments B BE

Write-off ki

At 31 March 2024, 1 April 2024 RZZZM$=A

and 31 March 2025 =t+—H-ZZZ@F
MA—-BR-ZE-RfF
=A=+-R

Accumulated impairment 2itHE

At 1 April 2023 RZZZ=FMA—H

Exchange adjustments fE L RE

Write-off a8

Impairment loss HEEE

At 31 March 2024 and RZZ-ZWFE=H

1 April 2024 =t-BR-Z-_mE
mA—A

Impairment loss HEEE

At 31 March 2025 RZZE-RF
=A=+-H

Carrying amount REE

At 31 March 2025 RZZEZHE
“A=+—-H

At 31 March 2024 R-ZZ-WE
=A=+-R

15 B8 %)
Unit A Unit B Unit C Others Total
BuA BB BfuC Hit @t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$ 000 HK$'000
FET FET FET FET FET
16,564 8,233 595 332 25,724
= (464) = = (464)
- (7,769 - - (7,769)
16,564 - 595 332 17,491
976 8,233 - 295 9,504
- (464) - - (464)
- (7,769 - - (7,769)
1,450 - - - 1,450
2,426 - - 295 2,721
2,898 - - - 2,898
5,324 - - 295 5,619
11,240 - 595 37 11,872
14,138 - 595 37 14,770

The directors have reviewed the carrying amount of goodwill

in accordance with HKAS 36 “Impairment of Assets”.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e SRR

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(BREEEAN ABTEF)

15 Goodwill (Continued)
Unit A

The recoverable amount of Unit A is determined based
on value-in-use calculation. That calculation uses cash
flow projections based on financial budgets approved by
management covering a five-year period. Cash flows beyond
the five-year period are extrapolated using an estimated
weighted average growth rate of 1.0% (2024: 1.0%). This
growth rate does not exceed the long-term average growth
rates for the market in which Unit A operates. The cash
flows are discounted using a discount rate of 16.5% (2024
16.5%). The discount rate used is pre-tax and reflects
specific risks relating to Unit A. Other key assumptions
for the value-in-use calculation relates to the estimation
of cash inflows/outflows which included budgeted sales
and gross margin, such estimation is based on the Unit
A’s past performance and management’s expectations for
the market development including the fluctuation in beauty
and slimming service business in the current economic
environment in Hong Kong.

The impairment testing resulted in an impairment of
HK$2,898,000 (2024: HK$1,450,000) recognised in
consolidated statement of profit or loss for the year ended
31 March 2025. The impairment arose in view of the
deterioration in revenue level and operating results of the
CGU in the current year.

16 Inventories

Inventories in the consolidated statement of financial
position comprise:

SLRK ah

Merchandise
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16

(%)

EA

BUAZ KRB BEIRFEAEBENE A
Br UWitEFEARBRBEEEE &
B2 AFHYBBREELE 2R RETE
Al AFHNB RS REEAMEME
FHERELI.0% (ZTZMF 1.0%) i
Hot MEERW M BBAENMALEMISE 2
RETHRERE-BERMEU65% (=
THF:16.5%) BB KB - T A
MR ANMBHRENRRBEEHAENAZ
EERR -EBEMEFAZEMEERE
HEEREEAHERENERRAZRASRA
TG BREMAEREMABT
¥ENEREBHEMSEERPREEE AR
HEERENEDRBERBEL LD
ZTEHRo

B BRI 5 %8 82,898,000/ L (ZE =Y
#F 11,450,000 L) BEEREBEE_ZT
ZHFE-A-t+—RLEFEZHRAER
RPAER - BENHAFEREEEEN
Was KT REEEER(LATR -

FE

GEMBRARAZFERRE:

2025 2024
—E-RF —E-OF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET FET
7,393 5,419




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)
(BEHEEBIN REBTES)

17 Financial assets at fair value through 17 BAFEFAERZZESEE
profit or loss

2025 2024
—E-ERE —E_F
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET FHET
Listed equity securities in Hong Kong REBZ ERAF S
(note a) (Htita) 72,072 97,560
Unlisted equity fund in Hong Kong REBZIELTRAES 3,278 5,089
75,350 102,649
(a) Listed equity securities in Hong Kong (@ REBZLTREAZS
As at 31 March 2025, the Group had financial R-ZE-_RAF=ZA=1+—H &%
assets at FVPL representing equity securities listed EBEZAFEFABSZEREE "
in HK$72,072,000 (2024: HK$97,560,000). The fair ¥ EMRARFE 572,072,000 7T (=
values of listed equity securities are determined based T — P4 : 97,560,000 7T) o £
on the quoted market closing price available on the BAZES 2 A ETIRERATER
Main Board and GEM of the Stock Exchange at the NGEMR E2WMAARMB 2 WM EE
end of the reporting period. JE °
As at 31 March 2025, the Group had pledged certain RZE-_RF=ZA=+—H "&&
listed equity securities in Hong Kong with carrying B st E T R HE{E6,603,000/%8 7T
amount of HK$6,603,000 (2024: HK$23,430,000) to Z T U4 128,430,000 L) 2
secure credit facilities granted to the Group (note 24). BEELTRAFHFEER UER
BRYRAEEEERE 2 ER (T

24) o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR RA M

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(BRBHIEHIN

17

LAETT251)

profit or loss (Continuead)

Financial assets at fair value through

17 AV EFTARERZ

(a) Listed equity securities in Hong Kong (Continued) (@) REBZLTRAEAZS: (£)
Details of significant investments are as follows: BEAREFBMOT
2025
Z2-EE
Percentage
of total Fair value
issued share at the end Percentage
capital of the tothe  Fair value Dividend
Stock Name of Number of  owned by reporting Group’s  gain/(loss) Loss on received for
code investee company Principal activities shares held  the Group Cost period total assets for the year disposal the year
r5E A58 FALTE
55 (hBERf RERAX  EELE W/ FRERER
RORE HRELAELH TEXE RAHE BRAMLAH RE  2AYE ] (BR) HERRA B
‘000 % HK$'000  HK$'000 % HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000
& FET FET FET FET TET
1082 Bradaverse Education Engaged in the provision 14,592 2.40% 13,616 22,764 2.95% (584) - -
(Int’l) Investments Group of private educational (note) (note)
Limited services, investment (H2) (Hit)
in securities, money
lending business and
trading of VR and
gaming products and
provision of related
services.
1082 RFEEAE (AR REEE HRERULAZBRB R
BERAR &5 BEXHURR
AEBEREIREMA
Bk
0627 Japan Kyosei Group Engaged in the property 14,200 1.00% 1,825 6,603 0.86% (16,827) - -
Company Limited development and (note) (note)
property investment (Hz) (H#)
business.
0627 AAHEREERAR RBNXBRRNFRER
%o
1406 Clarity Medical Group Engaged in the provision 16,300 3.08% 9,848 6,276 0.81% (4,062) (27) -
Holding Limited of private ophthalmic (note) (note)
healthcare services. (Hit) (#it)
1406 BBRSEERARAR HERELABRDERR
o
0622 Oshidori International Engaged in the strategical 13,050 0.21% 3,327 6,264 0.81% 3,785 - -
Holdings Limited investments, provision (note) (note)
of financial services (Hit) (i)
and credit and lending
services.
0622 REEERARLH HEERRE RUSHR
BREERK-
1597 China Nature Energy Engaged in the research 1,000 0.40% 2,014 3,460 0.45% (3,690) - -
Technology Holdings and development, (note) (note)
Limited integration, manufacture (Hit) (H#)
and sales of pitch
control systems and
related components,
wind power generation,
wind farm operation and
maintenance business
and energy storage
business.
1597 FEAREENEERER REWERRE EA B
e EREESREHRAR
RBEE# -RHRE R
ESEERERERRR
£ T
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(B =B IEASN -

AT 25)

17 Financial assets at fair value through

17 RAVEFABSZEZEHMEE

profit or loss (Continuead) (&)
(a) Listed equity securities in Hong Kong (Continued) (@) REBZLTREAES (£
2024
—ZopmE
Percentage
of total Fair value
issued share attheend  Percentage
capital of the to the Fair value Dividend
Stock  Name of Number of ~ owned by reporting Group’s  gain/(loss)  Gain/(loss)  received for
code investee company Principal activities shares held  the Group Cost period  total assets ~ for the year  on disposal the year
F5E EAEE FRRTE
BE  REEERf RERARX  AEHE W&/ HEWE/ FAEUR
RORY BRREAAFEH EX:3 37 RABE  RAMLA KA 2ATE il (B#8) (B#8) R
‘000 % HK$000  HK$O00 % HK$000  HK$000  HK$'000
i TAT TR Féx  FET  TET
0627 Japan Kyosei Group Engaged in the property 14,200 0.10% 1,825 23,430 2.78% 21,605 - -
Company Limited development and property
investment business.
0627  BARLEEEARAT RENFBRRIERERK
1082 Bradaverse Education Engaged in the provision of 14,592 2.45% 14,824 23,347 2.77% (4,978) 1,651 S
(Int’l) Investments private educational services, (note) (note)
Group Limited investment in securities, (Hi#) (Wit)
money lending business and
trading of VR and gaming
products and provision of
related services.
1082 RTEHEHE (BAR)RASE RERELAZERE KE
BRAR FH BEEBARVRAR
BEREHRRHIEER
e
1597 China Nature Energy Engaged in the research and 1,000 0.40% 2,025 7,150 0.85% 3,880 = S
Technology Holdings development, integration, (note) (note)
Limited manufacture and sales of (His) (H##)
pitch control systems and
related components, wind
power generation, wind farm
operation and maintenance
business and energy
storage business.
1597 REARERRAER HERARER BE HER
BRAR HESREHAGRABA
HENEE BBHES
REEZBREEER.
8112 Cornerstone Financial Engaged in the businesses 10,512 4.58% 3,995 4,573 0.54% 420 o S
Holdings Limited of financial services and (note) (note)
advertising and media (Hi#) (Hi#)
services.
8112 ERGBARERAA HEERRBUARES RES
R#% %%
1406 Clarity Medical Group Engaged in the provision 6,300 1.19% 3,794 4,284 0.51% 490 @) -
Holding Limited of private ophthalmic
healthcare services.
1406 EWEREEERARAF RERELARMEBRRS-

Note: Investment costs in these investee companies represented Bat: RZEWHBRERTZREKRIEND
the initial acquisition cost for the investee companies. The B EE X SR E R A Z KA o K
investments in these investee companies were made by EERNBAFEMZEWIREDRR
the Group in prior years. For that part of investments in EHRE R BAEFEMZEH
these investee companies which were made in prior years, BERRIEL ZZ DI EMS »
it was subject to fair value gain/(loss) and recognised at ESEBRAFEKE (FIE) -
the financial year end of the respective years. The fair value WREFEVREEEEB MR-
gain/(loss) of these investee companies for the years ended BE_T_RAFR_FT_NF=
31 March 2025 and 2024 excluded fair value gain/(loss) B=+—HBLFE ZEHERER
being recognised in prior years. AZATFEKZ(BBR)TEE

‘;@?IEJEEEE@Z”A¥1EH&%/( &
=l

~
o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A B

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)
(BREEEAN ABTEF)

17 Financial assets at fair value through 17 BAFEFAERZEMEE
profit or loss (Continuead) (%)

(a) Listed equity securities in Hong Kong (Continued) (@ MREBZLTRAEAERS (&)
Assuming the portfolio of the Group’s equity BEASE s REREAGHTT
investments remained unchanged, the market values B oRREReMEmAER
of the Group’s listed equity securities in Hong Kong as REBREBZLETRAZSLST
at the date of approval of these consolidated financial B #) 585,120,000 7T © 1R #& #H 3
statements were approximately HK$85,120,000. In SHERR ATFEEDBERFEL
accordance with the respective accounting policy, the BEREBENERER-

changes in fair value will be recognised in profit or loss
subsequent to the year end.

18 Trade and other receivables 18 BIWE ZRERHMWERKIE
2025 2024
—E_RE —E_NF
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET FET
Trade receivables EWE 5% IE 73,296 62,865
Less: Loss allowance W EBERE (6,310) (6,665)
66,986 56,200
Deposits birdca 11,655 12,486
Prepayments A B 9,987 7,761
Other receivables E b pE 5K IE 57,998 62,773
Less: Loss allowance B B (9,809) (9,604)
69,831 73,416
Included in the Group’s other receivables, prepayments AR E 2 B AW IR TN R
and deposits were rental, utilities and other deposits e hAEe PEREEREMIZS
amounting to HK$8,331,000 (2024: HK$9,174,000), which 8,331,000/ 7t ( =& — M4 : 9,174,000
are expected to be recovered or recognised as expenses BIT)  TEERNEBEB —FRIKENERE
after more than one year. All of the other trade and other o FTEEMEWE I8 R E A EK
receivables are expected to be recovered or recognised as REEAR —FAKE S BERAERAX -

expenses within one year.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(BRBHHEHIN

LA T 25)

18 Trade and other receivables (Continuead)

Included in the Group’s other receivables were amounts
due from slimming business partners and consultants of
HK$37,905,000 (2024: HK$42,302,000) and advances to
staff of HK$42,000 (2024: HK$32,000).

The other receivables are unsecured, interest-free and
repayable on demand, except for the other receivable of
HK$5,679,000 (2024: HK$4,700,000) as at 31 March 2025
which bears interest at 24% per annum (2024: 24% per
annum).

(a) Ageing analysis
As at the end of the reporting period, the ageing

analysis of trade receivables, based on the invoice
date and net of loss allowance, is as follows:

18

~
;L=

(R /

PR & 2 FRTE I H RO

/43 )

ETAREE 2 E e W R TE A R AR R
%% M & B 2 30IE37,905,0007% 7T

ZE U4 42,302,000 T) kA &
T84 2 5KIH42,0008 70 (—ZZT — P4
32,0005 7T) °

Hib R B AEER 2 ERAREXR
BE WR_ZE_AF=A=+—H0H
H b e U FRIE5,679,0008 T (— & — 1M
F 14,700,000/ TR F M E24F (= F
TP 24E) B

(a) FREQDAT
REHMMAR BREZFAE (AR

ZHHERMBREERRER) ZER
DT

2025 2024

—E_-RE —E_NF

HK$’000 HK$ 000

FET FHET

Less than 1 month L11E A 59,306 51,048

1 to 2 months 1E21E A 201 137

More than 2 months but less than Z 2@ A 1B L R41E A

4 months 7,211 4,966
More than 4 months but less than Z 4@ BB R12(8 B

12 months 268 49

66,986 56,200

Trade receivables are usually due within O to 90 days
from the date of billing. Further details on the Group’s
credit policy are set out in note 29(a).

FEWE ZFFE—MABEBEH e
OZQHFH AEBEFZERK 2#
— BN E29(a) ©
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

AL =+ an
e IR EE
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(BREEEAN ABTEF)

19 Loans and interest receivables 19 BWERKEFE
The Group’s loans and interest receivables arise from the AEBEVREREFNEEREBRHEE
money lending business of providing loans in Hong Kong RFARR2ENBRRIZHREELE
by a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company. The Group - AREBBMNBEELEERERERKE
seeks to maintain strict control over its outstanding loans REFBUEZEREEERRKR -EEET
and interest receivables to minimise credit risk. Overdue ik bl
balances are reviewed regularly by management.
2025 2024
—E_RE —E-mF
Loan Interest Loan Interest
portion portion Total portion portion Total
ExRfs FEDS @ BERfHfs  MEHH B
HK$’000  HK$'000  HK$'000 HK$000  HK$'000  HK$ 000
FAET FAET FAET FET FET FETL
Secured loans by mortgage KB EEMER 10,492 806 11,298 8,206 90 8,296
Personal guaranteed loans BAERER 14,775 230 15,005 17,466 252 17,718
Unsecured loans BEREN 66,248 2,764 69,012 61,139 2,154 63,293
91,515 3,800 95,315 86,811 2,496 89,307
Less: Loss allowance B ERRE (26,655) (1,091)  (27,746)  (18,391) (1,272) (19,663
64,860 2709 67,569 68,420 1224 69,644
Less: Current portion included & : BNERER % 51 A
under current assets MBEE (27,436) (2,709) (30,145) (38,872) (1,224) (40,096)
Amounts due after 1 year 1ERIAEETA
included under non-current  JERBHEE
assets 37,424 - 37,424 29,548 - 29,548
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MR IR AR M R

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)
(BEHEEBIN REBTES)

19 Loans and interest receivables (Continuea) 19

The exposure of the Group’s loans and interest receivables
to their contractual maturity dates are as follows:

BRERRRE 2

AEBEFRABLEEASHEH B EKF
BT

2025 2024
—ECRE ZTImE
Loan Interest Loan Interest
portion portion Total portion portion Total
ExREo HMNEH2 #xr  EREs  FMEEH st

HK$'000  HKS$'000

HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$ 000

FET FET FET FAT FET FET

Within 1 year 1ER 27,436 2,709 30,145 38,872 1,224 40,096
More than 1 year but within ~ ZR1EE2ER

2 years 24,945 - 24,945 29,548 - 29,548
More than 2 years but within -~ % R2F 5 R

5 years 12,479 - 12,479 - - -

64,860 2,709 67,569 68,420 1,224 69,644

Loans receivable are interest-bearing at rates ranging from
7% to 48% (2024: 7% to 48%) per annum and repayable on
maturity under the terms of contractual agreements or on
demand in writing by the Group.

EREFANFMNENTIERI8E (=T
ZHF: TEZR48E)FE - BAREAS
é@ﬁ%% BEROBNHAREAEBMERE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A B

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(BREEEAN ABTEF)

19 Loans and interest receivables (Continued) 19 EWERRFNE &)
(a) Ageing analysis (@) BRERDW
Ageing analysis is prepared based on contractual due ERENINHBEZRESTOT
dates:
2025 2024

—E_RE —E-mF

Loan Interest Loan Interest
portion portion Total portion portion Total

Ex¥2 AEH2 A EXHS  NEHS st
HKS$'000  HK$'000  HKS'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000
TET TET FET TEL TEL TEL

Current BN 41,516 2,326 43,842 53,891 841 54,732
Less than 1 month past due i 2 %118 7 - - - 4,000 45 4,045
1 to 3 months past due BE1ESME A 8,000 - 8,000 11,042 399 11,441
3 to 6 months past due A HSZE6ME A 6,316 195 6,511 = = =
6to 12 months past due B HEI6ZE 128 A 4,302 280 4,582 3,726 - 3,726
More than 12 months wEtER12(8 A

past due 31,381 999 32,380 14,152 1,211 15,363
Less: Loss allowance W BBEEES (26,655) (1,091)  (27,746)  (18,391) (1,272)  (19,663)

64,860 2709 67,569 68,420 1204 69,644

The credit quality of loans and interest receivables has FREZREMEBEZEEZLEE2R
been assessed by reference to historical information BREEFENERELEREITHG -
about counterparty default rates. Further details on the FHASEEEBRRNESFHEE
Group’s credit policy are set out in note 29(a). R EE29(a) °
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MR IR AR M R

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(BEHEEBIN REBTES)

19 Loans and interest receivables (continued)

(b) Analysed by credit quality

Loans receivables that
are not credit-impaired
Current
Less than 1 month past due
1 to 3 months past due
3 to 6 months past due
6 to 12 months past due
More than 12 months
past due
Less: Loss allowance

Loans receivables that
are credit-impaired
Current
Less than 1 month past due
1 to 3 months past due
3 to 6 months past due
6 to 12 months past due
More than 12 months
past due
Less: Loss allowance

AEREEHEN
EWE R

B
BHLIREA
BE1E3E A
BH3E6ME A
aHeE12/ A
BHEB12(E A

W B RRME

HREEHEN
EHER
b
BHLMER
BEH1ESME A
BH3E6EA
BHe=12/A
BHBER12EA

R BRRE

19

BWRERRFE #)

(b) BREEEBEZSHWT

2025 2024
—E-RF —T-INF
Loan Interest Loan Interest

portion portion Total portion portion Total
%8S MEHA gy ER¥S  AeEs it
HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$000  HK$'000  HK$'000
FET FET FET FET FET FET
38,651 2,117 40,768 53,496 841 54,337
- - - 4,000 45 4,045

8,000 - 8,000 11,042 399 11,441
6,316 195 6,511 - - -
3,907 280 4,187 3,726 - 3,726
11,162 223 11,385 1,524 - 1,624
(4,176) (106) (4,282) (5,376) (61) (5,437)
63,860 2,709 66,569 68,412 1,224 69,636
2,865 210 3,075 395 = 395
395 - 395 - - -
20,219 775 20,994 12,628 1,211 13,839
(22,479) (985) (283,464) (13,015) (1,211) (14,226)
1,000 - 1,000 8 - 8
64,860 2,709 67,569 68,420 1,224 69,644
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A B

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)
(BEEERAN ABTEF)

20 Amount due from a related party 20 ER—ABBEEALTRIE
2025 2024
—E-REF ZEUF
HK$°000 HK$ 000
FET FET

Amount due from a holder of non-controlling fEU — & FEERREEIFA A

interest IB 3 3
The amount due from a related party is unsecured, interest B —2BEEALTREBEAEER 28K
free and repayable on demand. BIRERKER-

21 Contract liabilities 21 GHEE
2025 2024
—E-RE —TZmFE
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET
Receipts from sales of prepaid beauty KREHERNERTEEN

packages WA 9,567 11,628
When the Group receives a deposit before the service BRI F 16 AT AR 2 - & 4) Hf
commences, this will give rise to contract liabilities at the MEEAHNABEELEERHEREFA
start of a contract until revenue recognised when services BRAOKEEBBIZECNEEAILL - AEE
rendered exceeds the amount of the deposits. The Group BERDRETES WHERFDRIHE
typically receives certain deposits, which is negotiated B ESEGRBELHNERE -

on case by case basis with customers, on acceptance of
slimming service contracts.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MR IR AR M R

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)
(BEHEEBIN REBTES)

21 Contract liabilities (continued)

The movements in contract liabilities are summarised as

follows:

At the beginning of the year

Decrease in contract liabilities as a result of
recognising revenue during the year that
was included in the contract liabilities at
the beginning of the year

Increase in contract liabilities as a result of
sales of prepaid beauty packages

Decrease in contract liabilities as a result of
recognising revenue during the year that
was included in new contract liabilities
entered during the year

Exchange adjustments

At the end of the year

22 Trade and other payables

Trade payables
Other payables and accrued charges

All of the trade and other payables are expected to be
settled within one year or are repayable on demand.

21 EHE8E#»)

=

BRABZEHHALT

2025 2024
—E_RE —ZT_F
HK$’000 HK$ 000
FHET FET
REH 11,628 10,385
FRAEBRRZMEEZ
BHEBBEZRLTIREY]
FAEHEE
(11,628) (10,367)
HEBNEREEMELEZ
B HEEIE N 58,709 58,746
FRAEBRRZMEEZ
BHBEZRD TIEA
FRELZHEHNEE
(49,142) (47,118)
bE 3 - (18)
RER 9,567 11,628

22 BNEZRERAMENKIA

2025 2024

—E-RF —E-NNF

HK$’000 HK$'000

FAETT FETT

FEHE 5 FUB 71 =
HEMtEMRIERETER 56,017 64,301
56,088 64,301

T B e & 5 FRIR S E 8 A FRIR 1R 1
BR—FRBERAREREE-
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MR IR AR MY R

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)
(RBEHEAN ABTEF])
22 Trade and other payables (Continuea)
Included in trade and other payables are trade creditors with

the following ageing analysis, based on the invoice date, as
of the end of the reporting period:

Within 1 month 1EA R

23 Lease liabilities

As at 31 March 2025, the lease liabilities were repayable as

follows:

Within 1 year 1ER

After 1 year but within 2 years 1FBB2FERN
After 2 years but within 5 years 2F % B5F R

The weighted average incremental borrowing rates applied
to lease liabilities range from 5.000% to 5.625% (2024:
5.000% to 5.625%).

24 Interest-bearing borrowings

Margin financing RESHE
As at 31 March 2025, margin financing bear interest at fixed
rates of 12% (2024: 12%) per annum, repayable on demand
and is secured by certain equity securities held in a margin
securities account as set out in note 17.
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23

24

ERESREREMENSTE &)
T AT ARNE SHRIE & E &R
HyRENESREBE(ERBEZRAHH)RE
WMEAR Z BRER D AT
2025 2024
—E_RE —E-F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FETT FET
71 -
HEAE
R-ZE-_RF=ZA=+—H HEAEZA
R T EIfEEE
2025 2024
—E-RF —E - F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET
7,344 5,215
3,063 3,301
1,720 —
12,127 8,516

FEREHEHER G MEREBRNE
T F5.000%6%F5.625% (=T — M £ -

5.000%%5.625% ) °

M EEE
2025 2024
—EC-RE —ZT - uE
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET
1,137 1,009
RZE-_RAF=ZA=Z+—H RELH

EWBETEFNEE12% (Z T - MF:
12%) B EREE BREH PN F17
RRBEEBEFERPEBZETRAEAERS

TR A -



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)
(BEHEEBIN REBTES)

25 Income tax in the consolidated statement 25 #ZZREMBRTRAZFAEH
of financial position

(a) Current taxation in the consolidated statement of (a) REEHBRRERAZEHBIEE:
financial position represents:

2025 2024
—E-ERE —E-NEF
HK$’000 HK$ 000
FET FET
Hong Kong Profits Tax BAERGH
- Tax paid — B 40 85
— Balance of profit tax provision —EB@BEFENGEH
relating to prior years, net BEERFE (182) (168)
(142) (83)
PRC Enterprise Income Tax PRI RS
- Provision for the year (note 6(a)) —FENEE (HiE6aE) (3,562) (3,270)
— Tax paid —BEfHE 2,861 2,788
- Exchange realignment —[EH AR 13 5
(688) 477)
(830) (560)
Represented by: IATFIER KRR
Current tax recoverable AT Uk [21 B AR 5 18
- Hong Kong Profits Tax —BENER 529 529
Current tax payable FE A BN EAEL IE
- Hong Kong Profits Tax —BAMNER (671) (612)
- PRC Enterprise Income Tax —HFBEEREH (688) (477)
(1,359) (1,089)
(830) (560)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A B

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)
(BEEERAN ABTEF)

25

Income tax in the consolidated statement 25

of financial position (Continuea)

REPBRRRAZFAER (@)

(b) Deferred tax (b) EEFBIE
(i)  Deferred tax (assets)/liabilities recognised: () ERRZEEHE(LE)
BE:

The components of deferred tax (assets)/liabilities

recognised in the consolidated statement of

financial position and the movements during the

year are as follows:

Deferred tax arising from:

At 1 April 2023

Charged/(credited) to
profit or loss
Exchange adjustments

At 31 March 2024 and
1 April 2024

(Credited) /charged to
profit or loss
Exchange adjustments

At 31 March 2025

RERB M HARRRFER ZIELT

RE(BEE) /AEH» AR
FAZEESHWNT
Right-of- Lease
use assets liabilities Total
FERAEEE HEEE wmat
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FHET FHET
UTREREEZ

B FE B ¢
AT =4

mA—H 624 (624) -
ik Erlack 11

(st A) 1,059 (1,059) =
b WP (10) 10 =
R-_T_M%F

ZA=+—HK

—ZE_uFE

MmA—A 1,673 (1,673) -
RiEmR (fFA)

Mk (742) 742 =
ME 5 A B ) 3 -
RZE-RF

=A=+—H 928 (928) =
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(BRBHHEHIN

25

LA T 25)

Income tax in the consolidated statement
of financial position (Continued)

(b)

Deferred tax (Continued)

(ii) Deferred tax assets/liabilities not

recognised:

As at 31 March 2025, the Group has not
recognised deferred tax assets in respect of
cumulative tax losses of HK$339,087,000
(2024: HK$308,304,000) and deductible
temporary differences of HK$22,767,000 (2024:
HK$68,859,000) as it is not probable that future
taxable profits, against which the assets can
be utilised, will be available in any relevant tax
jurisdiction or entity. Of the total tax losses,
HK$5,885,000 (2024: HK$11,663,000) will expire
within 5 years and the remaining tax losses of
HK$333,202,000 (2024: HK$296,641,000) have
no expiry date under the current tax legislation.
Other temporary differences are not material.

As at 31 March 2025, the Group has
unrecognised deferred tax liabilities of
HK$441,000 (2024: HK$1,535,000) in relation
to withholding tax on undistributed profits of
HK$8,819,000 (2024: HK$30,705,000) of the
Group’s subsidiaries in the PRC as the Group
is in a position to control the dividend policy of
these subsidiaries and no distribution of such
profits is expected to be declared by them in the
foreseeable future.

25

REMBRRRAZHER (@)

(b)

EREBIE (&)

(i) FEZELHEELE BE

R-_ZE-_RF=A=+—8"
BB TEfE (1] 4B BA Bt 7% R X 4
EEETAAEARKE
AR EMNABAEE - BA
EEYERBEFHIEERE
339,087,000 L (ZF =Y
% : 308,304,000/ 7t ) & AT 0
T E B = 5822,767,0008 7T

— T ~ P94 : 68,859,000/
T)BEREEHBEEE - IE
E B AT+ - 5,885,0008 7T
—E ZHF 11,663,000/
TOSRAEFAE R MHT
118 /E518333,202,000%8 7T ( —
= — P4 : 296,641,000/ 7T )
BERTHETEERB - E
b ZREAWNE K -

R-_ZE-_RAF=A=+—8"
REBERAEBRFEANE
RNAIH R DK & F BN
8,819,000/ L (=T U4 :
30,705,000/ 7t ) & F R &
JERLTE B {5441,0008 T (=
= — P04 : 1,535,000 7T) -
FREAASEBELZSENER
AAR BB RTEEN A AR
ARZEMBRABTEEIRZ

% 57 o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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I =

W

%5 R 2 M AL

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(BREEEAN ABTEF)

26 Post-employment benefits

(a)

Retirement benefits scheme

The Group operates the Mandatory Provident Fund
Scheme (the “MPF Scheme”) under the Hong Kong
Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance for
employees employed under the jurisdiction of the
Hong Kong Employment Ordinance (the “Ordinance”).
The MPF Scheme is a defined contribution retirement
plan administered by independent trustees. Under
the MPF Scheme, certain subsidiaries of the Group
and the eligible employees are each required to make
monthly mandatory contributions to the plan at 5% of
the employees’ relevant income subject to a cap of
monthly relevant income of HK$30,000. Contributions
to the scheme vest immediately, there is no forfeited
contribution that may be used by the Group to reduce
the existing level of contribution.

The Group’s subsidiaries in the PRC also participate
in defined contribution retirement schemes covering
its full-time PRC employees. The schemes are
administered by the relevant government authorities
in the PRC. The Group and the PRC employees are
required to make contributions based on certain
percentages of the applicable payroll costs as
stipulated under the requirements in the PRC and the
relevant government authorities undertake to assume
the retirement benefit obligations of all existing and
future retired employees of the Group’s subsidiaries
in the PRC. Contributions to the scheme vest
immediately, there is no forfeited contribution that may
be used by the Group to reduce the existing level of
contribution.
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BERREN

(a)

BRABRE

AEBERBEEBRVNMELTE TS
PSRBT B RMBEN ([Z G
Fll)ENEAEERER ZEBERLR
HIERTESEE ([REEFE]) -
BELFAAABUIAAERZ
EREFRKGETE - RIFBRE
g AEBETHBERRRAGER
BEESBAREEAMARZ5%
AEtEELEARBIERR -7
ZRHMERKER ST ABBERA
30,0007% 7T ° A 5t & th Z 3K AD
HEBE MESREK ZHKAHRAR
SERARRDRAEH-FKF -

AEBRTFEZMBARTAES
H2BREE 2 EEHRFRKRGE -
ZEFTEmTE AT HEEE -
AEERTEEBBRSBEREM
AIEZERFERAZETED L
1 A 5K T A8 B8 AT % B A S
EAEETENBLARZ2BREA
KAKBREKEBE ZRABHNEME-
AEAERAERE AMELAEHE
A]BE B ARRE IR B HFUKF Z #0R
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(BEHEEBIN REBTES)

26 Post-employment benefits (Continuea)

(b)

Provision for LSP

Hong Kong employees that have been employed
continuously for at least five years are entitled to long
service payments in accordance with the Hong Kong
Employment Ordinance under certain circumstances.
These circumstances include where an employee is
dismissed for reasons other than serious misconduct
or redundancy, that employee resigns at the age of
65 or above, or the employment contract is of fixed
term and expires without renewal. The amount of LSP
payable is determined with reference to the employee’s
final salary (capped at HK$22,500) and the years
of service, reduced by the amount of any accrued
benefits derived from the Group’s contributions to
MPF scheme (see note 26(a)), with an overall cap of
HK$390,000 per employee. Currently, the Group does
not have any separate funding arrangement in place to
meet its LSP obligation.

In June 2022, the Hong Kong SAR Government
(the “Government”) gazetted the Hong Kong
Employment and Retirement Schemes Legislation
(Offsetting Arrangement) (Amendment) Ordinance
2022 (“Amendment Ordinance”), which will eventually
abolish the statutory right of an employer to reduce
its LSP payable to a Hong Kong employee by drawing
on its mandatory contributions to the MPF scheme.
The Government has subsequently announced that
the Amendment Ordinance will come into effect from
1 May 2025 (the “Transition Date”). Separately, the
Government is also expected to introduce a subsidy
scheme to assist employers after the abolition.

26

BERRERN )

(b)

|

REBREEE

BEEB(ERGD) RETIE
AN BEEXEELRAFHNES
EEERESRIARBS %FB
ABEEEEBEFBREITATE XK
HEMBEHE EEFHBFHRED
G55 A LS EBE N ARE T H
REFSHTATBEN - ENFERERESH
CHEDORBEEENGLRET 2 (LR
#22,5008 ) R IR F I E
IR AR B W oR T & & &l E
ZEHRFEENEMN R (R
MizX26(a)) BHEEMB LR A
390,000/ 7T © 38 B » 7N & [ I M (F
MBIHNESLHINBTERRS
ET-

RZBEZZF XA - BEBRITH
EBRR(BR)EERAE=-F
ZZFEARERBERENRGEEH
(EEHZHE) (BT EBI ( [{EFT 15
Bll)  BEEEREZNEMBE
©EFEI W 2 98 Bl MR FORE D E
BRHTFEEREZRERESAEATR
Fl - TR E M ST RBIE R =
T_REFRA—AB([@ERH])
AR b AN - BRAT IR TE B M A AL
el ABEBEERERETHKRB
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A B

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)
(BREEEAN ABTEF)

26 Post-employment benefits (Continuea)

(b)

Provision for LSP (Continued)

Among other things, once the abolition of the
offsetting mechanism takes effect, an employer can
no longer use any of the accrued benefits derived
from its mandatory contributions under MPF scheme
(irrespective of the contributions made before, on
or after the Transition Date) to reduce the LSP in
respect of an employee’s service from the Transition
Date. However, where an employee’s employment
commenced before the Transition Date, the employer
can continue to use the above accrued benefits to
reduce the LSP in respect of the employee’s service
up to that date; in addition, the LSP in respect of the
service before the Transition Date will be calculated
based on the employee’s monthly salary immediately
before the Transition Date and the years of service up
to that date.

The Group has accounted for the offsetting mechanism
and its abolition as disclosed in note 2(s)(ii).

SAU SAN TONG HOLDINGS LIMITED {65 Z#ERAER AR
Annual Report 2024/25 FE k&

26 BEBAER &)

(b)

RIRESBE (B

R E A E RSN — B BUE 8 #
R REBTEBEREMES
HREEr 8 TRasEfRn R
o (TweEEBEAMZA &8
2 B AEH B SR HOR 2B IE A
HREERBORRSE A HE
BREBRE I ER B AR -
BERIABEER L RFERER
MOZEEBEZBEMNERSE
goN BEE B HAMRENE - &
REBRERERENBEBHATNA
HFREEZAMORBFEGAE-
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MR IR AR M R

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(BEHEEBIN REBTES)

26 Post-employment benefits (Continuea)

(b) Provision for LSP (Continued)

The present value of unfunded obligations and its

movements are as follows:

At the beginning of the reporting period 1 £ ¥ #f #]

Service cost

At the end of the reporting period

Represented by:
Current portion
Non-current portion

AR 75 A AN

INEIEIEN

ATHEE KRR

BN HA &R 2
FEENEREL

The weighted average duration of the defined benefit

obligation at the end of the reporting period is 19.98

years (2024: 20.05 years). The above expense is

recognised in general and administrative expenses.

Significant actuarial assumptions (expressed as

weighted averages) and sensitivity analysis are as

follows:

Discount rate

Future salary increases

Expected investment return on
offsettable MPF accrued benefits

B3 K
RRFH W E

26

BERRERN )

(b)

A HBRES RET S

T8 B I% & Bl

RERESBE (F

ABBECZREEEREESN

T
2025 2024
—E-_RE —E-FE
HK$’000 HK$’000
FETT FET
806 -
197 806
1,003 806
- 6
1,003 800
1,003 806

REFBR RTEMEELHIMNHE
FHFEEHA19.98F (T _MFE
F:20.05%) LAY HR —MK

TR > AP RERR o

BEE2RERKR (ANMEFHRT) R

B2
GURREDTMT

2025
—E-RE

3.78%
2.50%

3.00%

2024
—E-NF

3.75%
2.50%

2.50%
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A B

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)
(BEEERAN ABTEF)

26 Post-employment benefits (continued) 26 BBERERN 2
(b) Provision for LSP (Continued) (b) REBSEBE (&)
The below analysis shows how the defined benefit WToHMERPBHEERERSE
obligation would have increased/decreased as a result 1% R &R FE A5, &
of 1% change in the significant actuarial assumptions: A
Increase Decrease
in1% in1%
# H01 % BWA1%
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FHE T
2025 —E-HE
Discount rate AR 35 & (173) 217
Future salary increases/(decreases) KERFEEE,/CRd) 23 (54)
2024 —E-MEF
Discount rate 8538 = (138) 174
Future salary increases/(decreases) ARFEHEECRD) 26 (48)
The above sensitivity analysis is based on the P RESTREBERENE
assumption that changes in actuarial assumptions bt ~HEE B TERBEERR
are not correlated and therefore it does not take Z FEa e -

into account the correlations between the actuarial
assumptions.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(BEHEEBIN REBTES)

27 Equity-settled share-based transactions

(a)

Share option scheme adopted on 24 February 2016

On 24 February 2016, the Company has adopted a
share option scheme (the “Share Option Scheme”).
The purpose of the Share Option Scheme is to enable
the Company to grant options to eligible participants
as incentives or rewards for their contribution or
potential contribution to the Company and/or any of its
subsidiaries. Eligible participants of the Share Option
Scheme include full-time or part-time employees,
executives or officers (including executive, non-
executive directors and independent non-executive
directors) of the Company and/or any of its subsidiaries
and any consultants, agents or advisers who, in the
sole opinion of the Board, have contributed to the
Company and/or such subsidiaries.

Share options are granted to the eligible participants
at a consideration of HK$1. Each option gives the
holder the right to subscribe for one ordinary share
in the Company. The period during which an option
may be exercised will be determined by the Board
at its absolute discretion, save that no option may
be exercised more than five years after it has been
granted. No option may be granted more than 10 years
after the date of approval of the Share Option Scheme.

The maximum number of shares which may be issued
upon exercise of all outstanding options granted and
yet to be exercised under the Share Option Scheme
and any other share option plans of the Company at
any time shall not exceed 30% of the shares in issue
from time to time.

27 BmEEROARRS

(a)

RZE—XR"RFZAZ+HBAHEHZ
BRETE

ARABR-_FT—-R"F_A-+WEAH
R —EBRESE ([BAES
g) BEREMIEEELAQFN
RERSHEERTERE FAK
SUARARKEEAKERA
HREBSEEER 2 SR AR -
BREABZAERZAERER
RAR/ZEERHBAR 2B
IRBEE THRAEXSHEE
(BREAT FATEERBIIFAR
TESE) UREZE2ER/E X
RAR/HZEH B R BEL R
ZIEER REBAXREERZ
AL

BREZREIBEIRTAERZ
BE-BOBRESTHEAER
AR —IRA A E R E
ZITERROAETE2ERTE
BRERRLBBRFRIGITE-
BB S E R R BE Tt
FRIBRHOBRE-

RAR BB 8 R ARBHEA H A
EAE SR REBERITEZAR
BERETEBREETERAJEE
TZEh&SHE THREBETE
E BTN 230% °
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A B

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(BREEEAN ABTEF)

27 Equity-settled share-based transactions
(Continued)

(a)

Share option scheme adopted on 24 February 2016
(Continued)

The total number of shares issued and which may fall
to be issued upon exercise of the options granted
under the Share Option Scheme and any other share
option plans of the Company (including exercised,
cancelled and outstanding options) to each eligible
participant in any 12-month period up to the date of
grant in excess of 1% of the number of shares in issue
as at the date of grant, are subject to the Company
issuing a circular and the approval from the Company’s
shareholders in a general meeting.

The exercise price for a share in respect of any
particular option granted under the Share Option
Scheme (which shall be payable upon exercise of the
option) shall be such price as the Board in its absolute
discretion shall determine, save that such price will not
be less than the highest of (i) the official closing price
of the shares as stated in the daily quotation sheets
of the Stock Exchange on the date of grant, which
must be a business day; (i) the average closing price
of the shares as stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily
quotations sheet for the five business days immediately
preceding the date of grant; and (iii) the nominal value
of a share.
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FETTE R AT BE B 1T 2 B0 AR B 1
REBEREBHIEEA+ @A
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(BEHEEBIN REBTES)

27 Equity-settled share-based transactions 27 BEGEERODNERRE (&)

(Continued)
(b) The terms and conditions of the grants are as (b) BHGREREHGWOT:
follows:
Number Contractual
of options  Vesting conditions life of options Tranche
BRiEz
BREHE BEBEGRH EHER #X
Options to directors:
BRTESZERE:
— granted on 10 February 2021 750,494  Immediate from the 5.0 years 1
date of grant
-RZE_—F-_ATHARH ZHERE BB 5.0F
Options to employees:
BRFEIZERE:
— granted on 10 February 2021 750,494  Immediate from the 5.0 years 1
date of grant
-RZE_—F-_ATHARH gk unl =l 5.0
— granted on 10 February 2021 750,494  Immediate from the 5.0 years 2
date of grant
-RZEZ—FZA+HERY KEEF L A AR 5.0%F
Options to a consultant:
ETHEEAZBRE:
— granted on 10 February 2021 750,494  Immediate from the 5.0 years 2
date of grant
—-RZZBEZ_—F-_A+HEH KEER L A AR 5.0%F
Options to other participants:*
RFHEMBEEZBRE: *
— granted on 10 February 2021 750,494  Immediate from the 5.0 years 1
date of grant
—-RZZBEZ_-—F-_A+HBEH KEER L A AR 5.0%F
— granted on 10 February 2021 1,500,988 Immediate from the 5.0 years 2
date of grant
-RZEZ—FZA+ARY g anl =l 5.0
Total share options granted 5,253,458
FT#% ) B A i 4B 2
* The options granted to certain former employees will * BEATAEEE BRI ENKR ER
be still exercisable notwithstanding their resignations or BEEMAEREHRERE BTHSE
grtci)rfgwents given that they had provided services to the ZEREN A TAT{E
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e SRR

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(BREEEAN ABTEF)

27 Equity-settled share-based transactions
(Continued)

(c) The number and weighted average exercise prices
of share options are as follows:

Outstanding at the beginning of ~ REFHKTE

the year
Cancellation of share options FRFHERE
during the year

Outstanding at the end of the year RER K KITHE

Exercisable at the end of the year ~ A F R A[{7{§

The options outstanding as at 31 March 2025 had an
exercise price of HK$0.8700 (2024: HK$0.8700) and
a weighted average remaining contractual life of 0.87
years (2024: 1.87 years).

SAU SAN TONG HOLDINGS LIMITED {65 Z#ERAER AR
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27 BEEERONRRS (&)
(c) BREHERMEFLITEEDNT:
2025 2024
—E_RE —E-@mE
Weighted Weighted
average average
exercise Number exercise Number
price of options price of options
mEFEg T
TEE  BREHE 1B BREHE
HK$ HKS
BT iy
0.8700 5,253,458 0.8700 5,253,458
0.8700 (2,251,482) N/AT 3 F =
0.8700 3,001,976 0.8700 5,253,458
0.8700 3,001,976 0.8700 5,253,458

R-ZZE-_RFEF=ZA=+—BE KT
{FREAR#E 2 17 {8 £0.8700/8 7T (=
T [O4:0.87008 L)  hitEF
FABHOFHASTF (T =
F:1.87%F) -



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(BEHEEBIN REBTES)

27 Equity-settled share-based transactions 27 BEGEERODNERRE (&)

(Continued)

(d) Fair value of share options and assumptions (d) BEREZAFERER
The fair value of services received in return for share AEEEREMEESIRE 2 AT
options granted was measured by reference to the fair BN2EZMBELERE 2 AFEER
value of share options granted. The estimate of the B HFRIZE_—F-_AT+HEE
fair value of the share options granted on 10 February HrEREs ATFEAZ2ZERRE
2021 was measured by reference to valuations EWEEE B EEGEMEY
performed by CHFT Advisory And Appraisal Limited, BANEAERARMAEL 2 HER
independent professional valuer not connected to THEHAREETERIGE - BRE
the Group, based on the binomial lattice model. The CEHNTFHEREZER 2B AR
contractual life of the share option was used as an i

input into this model.

Share options granted
on 10 February 2021
R=2=—-%=AtH

Significant assumptions BEARBE R ZBRE
Tranche #ox 1 2
Fair value at measurement date RETEAHZAFE 0.440 0.411
Share price P (& HK$0.87 HK$0.87
0.87% 7T 0.87%8 7T
Exercise price TE(E HK$0.87 HK$0.87
0.87% 7T 0.87/8 7T
Expected volatility (expressed as TEERE (RZIEX BT
historical volatility used in the BEATHERLIKIE)
modelling under binominal lattice
model) 67.56% 67.56%
Option life (expressed as historical EREFSH (RoENEEE
volatility used in the modelling of BETHERLIKE)
binominal lattice model) 5.0 years 5.0 years
5.06F 5.0%
Expected dividends TEHIAR B Nil Nil
Risk free interest rate (based on ERBREBE (RE—REE
Generic Hong Kong Government BREHFEE 2558
Yield - 5Y) ) 0.42% 0.42%
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A B

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)
(BREEEAN ABTEF)

27 Equity-settled share-based transactions 27 BREEROARRZ (@)

(Continued)

(d) Fair value of share options and assumptions d BREZLAFEREBR(Z)
(Continued)
Share options were granted under a service condition. R TDIRE —BRBHERT -
This condition has not been taken into account in SRS s BEEBHATETE
the grant date fair value measurement of the services WARFRZGEHE TREZEFD R
received. There were no market conditions associated oL B I e I A 0 o

with these share options granted.

The fair value of the share options granted to the BETHEBEZEREZ 2 TFEIRAEK
consultant was measured at fair value of option LEREzATFEFE DEZH
granted as the participant was providing services that EiRM IR E R B FTIR AR -
are similar to those rendered by employees.
28 Capital, reserves and dividends 28 BEXR-#FERERE
(a) Share capital (@) B
(i)  Authorised and issued share capital () ZEREZTEKRA
Number
of shares
R & B
‘000 HK$ 000
T FET
Authorised: ETE
Ordinary shares: LA

At 1 April 2023, 31 March 2024, WKR-_Z-_=ZFMA—H-
1 April 2024 and 31 March 2025 —Z-pPFE=ZA=+—H"

of HK$0.01 each “E-NFENA—B X
—E-RAF=ZA=+—H
S MEE0.01E T 40,000,000 400,000
Issued and fully paid: BEEITREE
Ordinary shares: TmE

At 1 April 2023, 31 March 2024, RZ-ZT-_=FmMA—A-
1 April 2024 and 31 March 2025 —Z-p{FE=ZA=+—H"

of HK$0.01 each —E-NFWNA—B K
—E-hRFE=ZA=+—H
SRR EEO0.01E T 78,842 788
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(BRBHHEHIN

LA T 25)

28 Capital, reserves and dividends (Continuea)

(a)

(b)

(c)

Share capital (Continued)

(i) Authorised and issued share capital
(Continued)
The holders of ordinary shares are entitled to
receive dividends as declared from time to time
and are entitled to one vote per share at meetings
of the Company. All ordinary shares rank equally
with regard to the Company’s residual assets.

Dividend

The directors do not recommend the payment of a
dividend for the year ended 31 March 2025 (2024:
HK$Ni).

Nature and purpose of reserves

()

Share premium

Under the Companies Laws of the Cayman
Islands where a company issues shares at a
premium, whether for cash or otherwise, a sum
equal to the aggregate amount of the value of
the premiums on their shares shall be transferred
to share premium account. The application of
the share premium account is governed by the
Companies Laws of the Cayman Islands.

No distribution or dividend may be paid to
shareholders of the Company out of the share
premium account unless immediately following
the date on which the distribution or the dividend
is proposed to be paid, the Company will be in a
position to pay its debts as when they fall due in
the ordinary course of business.

(a)

(b)

(c)

28 WA HBRIRE (4

AR

A (&

(i)

@S}

BERBRITRA (&)

LERBAEABRKBTEE
&2 B S 3B B BRI 4D
RARAARE LR —F-FH
EBERARBZRBREET
B RZEHAL -

BEEVWTERENEEZE=ZE-_8F
ZAZ+—BLEFEZRE(=ZZ
ZHFRET) o

REMEREW

(i)

BRGEE

REASHSABE LAF
g BT T AR E
ReREMRRA HAK—F
HERERN Z)aEEEAR
ZHRBBEABRNEER -
RiaBERXFASHERTE
ME -

B IF BB 2 7% 0 R SO 1 LR
BH& AR #A REBE
BEEBBRETIHNKERS
B BATEERMDEERD
AR B BRI IR B E

SAU SAN TONG HOLDINGS LIMITED &5 Z#=RAER AT

Annual Report 2024/25 FE K&

209



210

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A B

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(BREEEAN ABTEF)

28 Capital, reserves and dividends (Continued)

(c)

Nature and purpose of reserves (Continued)

(i)

(iii)

(iv)

Merger reserve

The merger reserve represents the difference
between the nominal value of the ordinary shares
issued by the Company and the aggregate of
the share capital and share premium of the
subsidiaries acquired by the Company through
exchange of shares under a group reorganisation
scheme on 4 November 2003. Further details are
set out in the Company’s prospectus dated 10
November 2003.

Exchange reserve

The exchange reserve comprises all foreign
exchange differences arising from the translation
of the financial statements of foreign operations.
The reserve is dealt with in accordance with
accounting policy set out in note 2(w).

Share-based payment reserve

The share-based payment reserve represents
the fair value of the actual or estimated number
of unexercised share options granted to the
eligible participants of the Share Option Scheme
recognised in accordance with the accounting
policy adopted for share-based payments in note
2(s)(iii).

SAU SAN TONG HOLDINGS LIMITED {65 Z#ERAER AR
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28 BEX-RERRE (&)

(c)

RETEEREH (F)

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

B oA e

EHREEEARRBTERR
ZEEEARARER_-FF
=Ft+—-ANBZEEEHEGT
BEBMBEOAEANEB QA
BAREBO®REREREZE
B-E—THFBARLARAA
HAR-ZTT=F+—-A+RHZ
BEER-

EX#E

IE L BRI E RN RS
BHRRMEEZMBERE
BoBERBWME2WMEZ
G BUREHE

IR 111 5% 1

B o 1 5K 6 R 48 AR B MY &E
2(s) (i) Bt B 9 1 SR ER 2 & 5
BERAERE TRRETE S
B2 EE 2 BR LA RIT
EEEEHBE 2 TE.



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(BRBHHEHIN

LA T 25)

28 Capital, reserves and dividends (Continuea)

(c) Nature and purpose of reserves (Continued)

(v) PRC statutory surplus reserve

Pursuant to the laws and regulations governing
the PRC enterprises, a PRC subsidiary of the
Group, which is a sino-foreign joint-venture
enterprise, is required to allocate at least 10% of
its after-tax profit but before dividend distribution
to the general reserve until the reserve has
reached 50% of their registered capital. The
general reserve can only be used, upon approval
by the relevant authority, to offset accumulated
losses or increase capital. The appropriation
for the year ended 31 March 2025 amounted to
HK$NIl (2024: HKSNIl).

The enterprise expansion fund can only be
used to increase capital upon approval by the
relevant authority. Appropriation to enterprise
expansion fund is at the discretion of the board of
directors of the PRC subsidiaries. There was no
appropriation during the year (2024: HK$NIl).

The staff welfare and bonus fund can only be
used for the welfare of the PRC subsidiaries’
employees. Appropriation to the staff welfare and
bonus fund is at the discretion of the board of
directors of the PRC subsidiaries. For Hong Kong
reporting purposes, this appropriation is charged
to profit or loss and included in other payables
and accrued charges in the consolidated
statement of financial position.

28 EXR--#HERKRE (&)

(c)

BREMERBW (&)

(v)

o B % E B A R

BEEEREGEZERR
ERCAEE—HEPENBEA
Al (ARINEERE)ESE
HED10%KRBIE B DIRRK
BRI ZE —REB EEZ
HEESETMEARZ50%5
te—RFEEETRBEBER
18 VB S8 R AT BT 1B 2 38
MER-BE-T-_HAF=A
ST BLEFEZHRETE
T(ZZE-_E - ZTHEL) °

TEERESETREBER
HAEERBEEMER - DEE
rEEREASCKEFEMRBER
AEEFECMEREL -FR
WEASB(ZZE_ME - ZF
JT) °

BTREMEEMESEME
TEMERAREEZRAN D
EEBETENIRERESET
BB ARESS 2 MIBEE
He-mEFEBRRMS ok
BERSHEG Yt AKS 8K
AR TR 2 B A 3R IR K AT
EM-

SAU SAN TONG HOLDINGS LIMITED &5 Z#=RAER AT

Annual Report 2024/25 FE K&

211



212

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR RA M

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(BmEEAN

LAETT251)

28 Capital, reserves and dividends (Continued)

(c)

(d)

Nature and purpose of reserves (Continued)

(vi)

(vii)

Revaluation reserve

The revaluation reserve has been set up and is
dealt with in accordance with the accounting
policies adopted for land and buildings held for
own use. The revaluation reserve of the Group
is distributable to the extent of HK$3,574,000
(2024: HK$3,574,000).

Other reserve

Other reserve represents (i) the difference
between the fair value of the consideration
received and the carrying amount of the net
assets of Beauty University Management Limited
(“BUML") attributable to the non-controlling
interest amounted to HK$16,492,000 (2024:
HK$16,492,000); and (ii) the excess of the fair
value of consideration received for the disposal of
25% (2024: 25%) equity interest in a non-wholly
owned subsidiary over the increase in the carrying
amount of the non-controlling interest amounted
to HK$11,563,000 (2024: HK$11,563,000).

Distributability of reserves

As at 31 March 2025, the Company'’s reserves available

for distribution to owners of the Company amounted to
HK$479,598,000 (2024: HK$481,999,000).
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28 ﬁZ’K ﬁ1ﬁ&gx«u\ (#)

(c)

(d)

HENERBEN (£)
(i) EiZHE

ERZEMBE URERES
EFERITHEEFHEANZE
ARERETEHREE-ASE
EEdREHASE2EER
3,574,000 7L (ZFE =M% :
3,574,0008 7T ) °

(vii) Bt

HtEEEOEWRRERF
Tﬁéﬁi FERIEERER 2 E
BAEERARAF([EE
REBEEFHEEAEMSE
2 Z=%616,492,0008 L (= Z
— P94 16,492,000 T) i &
(it HE—FEE2EWB QA
25% (ZZEZF: 25% )R]
AT EZ AT AR
HR IR ERREAE 2R
2 #=%11,563,0008 T (=&
— P94 : 11,563,000/ 7T ) °

& ™ 2K

RZE-_RF=ZA=+—8 &2
AR MR TARARER A2 HEE
479,598,000 70 (=& — & :
481,999,000/ 7T ) °



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(BEHEEBIN REBTES)

28 Capital, reserves and dividends (Continuea)

(e)

Capital management

The Group’s primary objectives when managing
capital are to safeguard the Group’s ability to
continue as a going concern, so that it can continue
to provide returns for shareholders and benefits for
other stakeholders, by pricing products and services
commensurately with the level of risk and by securing
access to finance at a reasonable cost.

The Group actively and regularly reviews and manages
its capital structure to maintain a balance between
the higher shareholder returns that might be possible
with higher levels of borrowings and the advantages
and security afforded by a sound capital position, and
makes judgements to the capital structure in light of
changes in economic conditions.

The capital structure of the Group consists of trade
payables, other payables and accrued charges, lease
liabilities, defined benefit plan obligations and interest-
bearing borrowings net of cash and cash equivalents
(i.e. net debt) and capital, which comprises all
components of equity.

The directors review the capital structure on an
annual basis. As part of this review, the directors
consider the cost of debt and cost of capital. Based
on the recommendation of the directors, the Group
will balance its overall capital structure through the
payment of dividends, new share issues as well as the
issue of new debt.

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries are
subject to externally imposed capital requirements.

28 WA HBRIRE (4

(e)

AR

EXEH

AEEEREAZTZABERRE
AEBEBFBREZRS UEAE
3B % an B AR 75 E B X B R B K
MR Z K AR A AR S R
B emMBEESBRREHEDBLS
HAF DB A 2% -

AEEREBEREHRSLEERE
KRB AETRMTRSEEK
FzE SRR ERERRE RN
A Mz MR 2 RS T &
I BN E BB EARREAE
th I -

AEBERRBEHENEHHIA
HitENKELESER HER
B - REBMFAEERABEER
(MR RREFEY (AHEBRF
BINRERN (BREMEERED))
AERK ©

EEEFRIBEARBE -FRREF
Z—Ho BEEEEREBRARE
KRR -REBEBEZHBER A&
BB RRNRE BITHRORK
BOIHEGTHEEREBEARE -

ARBAEEEANBEARNLESE
A ShEB A AN B AR TEFTIR
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e SRR

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(BREEEAN ABTEF)

29 Financial risk management and fair values
of financial instruments

Exposure to credit, liquidity, interest rate and foreign
currency risks arises in the normal course of the Group’s
business. The Group is also exposed to equity price risk
arising from its equity investments in other entities.

The Group’s exposure to these risks and the financial risk
management policies and practices used by the Group to
manage these risks are described below.

(@) Creditrisk

Credit risk refers to the risk that a counterparty will
default on its contractual obligations resulting in a
financial loss to the Group. The Group’s credit risk is
primarily attributable to trade receivables, deposits
and other receivables, loans and interest receivables,
amount due from a related party and cash and cash
equivalents.

The maximum exposure to credit risk is represented
by the carrying amount of each financial asset in
the consolidated statement of financial position.
Management has a credit policy in place and the
exposures to these credit risks are monitored on an
ongoing basis.

Trade receivables

The Group’s exposure to credit risk is influenced mainly
by the individual characteristics of each customer.
At the end of the reporting period, the Group had a
concentration of credit risk as 5% (2024: 4%) and
19% (2024: 9%) of total trade receivables due from
the largest customer and five largest customers
respectively.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(B =B IEASN -

AT 25)

29 Financial risk management and fair values
of financial instruments (Continuea)

(a)

Credit risk (Continued)

Trade receivables (Continued)

Individual credit evaluations are performed on all
customers requiring credit over a certain amount.
These take into account the customer’s past
repayment history, financial position and other factors.
Trade receivables are usually due within O to 90 days
from the date of billing. Normally, the Group does not
obtain collateral from customers.

The Group measures loss allowances for trade
receivables at an amount equal to lifetime ECLs,
which is calculated using a provision matrix. As the
Group’s historical credit loss experience does not
indicate significantly different loss patterns for different
customer segments, the loss allowance based on past
due status is not further distinguished between the
Group’s different customer bases.

29

SMIAZSMAREERAT

(a)

(42 )

(A5 /

FERR (&)

EWES7E (&)

EERBHETERZEERL
EFPeETENGEENE -ZFF
HEEEPZBERHERTE .
MHEMRAREMAR - ERE 5K
H-—RREERROEIORRNE
He-—KMms ARETERAETPK
HROE o

A% B ISR A B EEE
2 & BHBEKE B B R
6 E T R IE R £ 8 o R
B2 B E B RERT KT
REFHBBREATAMAMRL
ER B BRRET R —
SRARETRAZE EW 2 HiE—

FED
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MR IR AR MY R

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)
(BREEEAN ABTEF)

29 Financial risk management and fair values 29
of financial instruments (Continuea)
(a) Credit risk (Continued)
Trade receivables (Continued)
The following tables provide information about the
Group’s exposure to credit risk and ECLs for trade
receivables:
Expected
loss rate
RHEEE
%
%
Current (not past due) BN (R i) 6.67%
Less than 1 month past due A DRE A 6.84%
1 to 2 months past due w2 A 6.94%
More than 2 but less than AEBBRMEAE
4 months past due SR4AE R 7.55%
More than 4 but less than BEIERARE A E
12 months past due SHM21E A 7.59%
More than 12 months past due aEItER12(E A 100.00%

SAU SAN TONG HOLDINGS LIMITED &5 = RAER AT
Annual Report 2024/25 FE k&

TRITAZERMEREER QT
{8 )

(a)

EERME (&)
EWES7E (&)
TR EAAREEEWE 5K

SRR O R SR
ZER

2025
“E-hRE
Gross Net
carrying Loss carrying
amount allowance amount

REAE BRRE RERE
HK$000 HK$000 HK$000

FET FET FET
69,933 (4,665) 65,268
1,432 (98) 1,334
72 5) 67

53 @) 49

290 (22) 268
1,516 (1,516) -
73,296 (6,310) 66,986




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(BEHEEBIN REBTES)

29 Financial risk management and fair values 29 £ TEACESREAKREER AT

of financial instruments (Continued) 8@
(@) Credit risk (Continued) () FEERK(E)
Trade receivables (Continued) FEREZE (&)
2024
—T-mE
Gross Net
Expected carrying Loss carrying
loss rate amount allowance amount
HHERX EREE BEEE REFE
% HK$ 000 HK$'000 HK$'000
% FET FET FETL
Current (not past due) AE (R@H) 8.37% 59,994 (5,021) 54,973
Less than 1 month past due >R E A 8.92% 1,099 (98) 1,001
1 to 2 months past due w1 =2 A 9.38% 192 (18) 174
More than 2 but less than AEEBR{IAE
4 months past due D41 A N/A i 5 - 5
More than 4 but less than AR RARE A E
12 months past due PiM2M@ R 9.62% 52 (5) 47
More than 12 months past due aHBER12[A 100.00% 1,523 (1,523) -
62,865 (6,665) 56,200
Expected loss rates are based on actual loss FEHEBEEEERBERI2EA ZER
experience over the past 12 months. These rates are EIERETE ZELEREERAE
adjusted to reflect differences between economic VA ML 2 BRIR (S (EHAR 2 18 B8
conditions during the period over which the historic ARG B AT AR S DA B 7R & [ UK
data has been collected, current conditions and HRBEEHAERFHALERRLE
the Group’s view of economic conditions over the EZEEER

expected lives of the receivables.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e SRR

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(BBEHEBI UBT27)
29 Financial risk management and fair values
of financial instruments (Continued)
(a) Credit risk (Continued)
Trade receivables (Continued)

Movement in the loss allowance account in respect of
trade receivables during the year is as follows:

At the beginning of the year RET)
Impairment loss (reversed)/recognised B (& @) /#R
Write-off 3
Exchange adjustments ME 5 38 B

At the end of the year RER

Other financial assets

The Group considers the probability of default upon
initial recognition of asset and whether there has been
a significant increase in credit risk on an ongoing basis
throughout each reporting period. To assess whether
there is a significant increase in credit risk, the Group
compares the risk of a default occurring on the asset
as at the end of the reporting period with the risk of
default as at the date of initial recognition. It considers
available, reasonable and supportive forwarding-
looking information. Especially the following indicators
are incorporated:

- internal credit rating;

- external credit rating (as far as available); and

- actual or expected significant adverse changes
in business, financial or economic conditions that
are expected to cause a significant change to the
counterparties’ ability to meet its obligations.
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2025 2024

—E-RE —ENF

HK$°000 HK$'000

FET FAETT

6,665 9,405

(319) 1,960

= (4,405)

(36) (295)

6,310 6,665
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ZAREM YR EREBAZRYA
EERBRGHEREZEN BT
EEERREEBREZEM A&H
BEERZEMRBLERNZAR
HER G R E ML ENNEAR
ETHER AKTEENERSZA
BRERBZABELEEN -FHZ
BENUNTHER:

- REEEFA:

- SNEBEEFA (WER) Rk

- EB BHEIKBERANER
HIEHEBBA TN E S M EE
ﬁlﬁﬁ@ﬁﬁ&ﬂ%uﬁﬂjiﬁi
j< ,,,,,,,



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MR IR AR M R

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(BEHEEBIN REBTES)

29 Financial risk management and fair values
of financial instruments (Continuea)

(a) Credit risk (Continued)
Other financial assets (Continued)

A summary of the assumptions underpinning the
Group’s ECL model is as follows:

Category Definition of category

&5l BRZER

Stage 1 Exposures where there has not been a
significant increase in credit risk since
initial recognition and that are not
credit-impaired upon origination.

F MR BRERAREERRBRRAKEIE M BE
AR AHBREERENRER-

Stage 2 Exposures where there has been a
significant increase in credit risk since
initial recognition but are not credit-
impaired.

BB BRERAREERRE REE M BR
H IR BRE & & B -

Stage 3 Exposures are assessed as credit-
impaired when one or more events
that have a detrimental impact on the
estimated future cash flows of that
asset have occurred.

ERE-HERSEEMH HEENMR
RREeREABEBELER  AIERY
HREERE-

it
[
i
o

20 SHIAZSHAREERAT
E (%)

() FERR(E)
Atz MEE (&)

AEERHEEERREAERZR
At an s

Basis for recognition of ECL provision

BRAANFEERRBEZEE

Portion of the lifetime ECL associated with the
probability of default events occurring within
the next 12 months is recognised.

EREAKI2EARNEERHEHE A sE1EAE
BN KAEREEBEBED

Lifetime expected losses (i.e. reflecting the
remaining lifetime of the financial asset) is
recognised.

HRAKARHEBR (AIRREBEERTF
H) e

Lifetime expected losses is recognised and
interest income is calculated by applying
the effective interest rate to the amortised
cost (net of provision) rather than the gross
carrying amount.

FREEEKAR (NBRER) (MERERE)
J& PR E B 2R i B R OK A TR HA B 48 5T & A
BHA -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A B

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)
(BEEERAN ABTEF)

29 Financial risk management and fair values
of financial instruments (Continued)

(a)

Credit risk (Continued)

Other financial assets (Continued)

Loans and interest receivables

Loans to the top borrower and top five borrowers
constituted 10% and 36% (2024: 9% and 33%) of
the Group’s loans and interest receivables balance
respectively as at 31 March 2025.

The directors consider that the credit risk arising
from the loans receivable is significantly mitigated by
the collaterals held, if required. The Group does not
provide any guarantees which would expose the Group
to credit risk.

The Group rebutted the presumption of default under
ECL model for loans and interest receivables over 90
days past due based on good repayment records for
those loan borrowers having continuous business with
the Group. They are assessed individually based on
their probability of default and exposure of default with
reference to historical credit loss experience, adjusted
by current and forward-looking factors.

SAU SAN TONG HOLDINGS LIMITED &5 = RAER AT
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)
(BEHEEBIN REBTES)

29 Financial risk management and fair values 29 £ TEACESREAKREER AT

of financial instruments (Continuea) (%)
(@) Credit risk (Continued) (@ EERK(£Z)
Other financial assets (Continued) B MEE (&)
Loans and interest receivables (Continued) JEWEZRFE (&)
Movements in the gross amount of loans and interest BRERERMNEZBSEEBMOT

receivables are as follows:

Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total
F-BE FRE ER @t
HK$ 000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET FET FET
At 1 April 2023 R-ZZB-=FMA—H 48,559 15,001 10,678 74,238
New loans originated MEEER 55,802 945 470 57,217
Transfer EE B (19,212) 15,515 3,697 =
Repaid during the year FARAEER (33,887) (7,650) 611) (42,148)
At 31 March 2024 and 1 April 2024 R=Z-ME=A
=+-BRZZ-F
mA—H 51,262 23,811 14,234 89,307
New loans originated MEEER 40,735 957 39 41,731
Transfer EE R (30,559) 18,797 11,762 =
Repaid during the year FREER (32,531) (1,621) (1,571) (35,723)
At 31 March 2025 R-E-RE=A
=+—-A 28,907 41,944 24,464 95,315
By class at 31 March 2025 R-ZBE-RF=A
=t+-ARENED
- Loans receivables ~EWEX 27,660 40,376 23,479 91,515
- Interest receivables —EUWF 2 1,247 1,568 985 3,800
28,907 41,944 24,464 95,315
By class at 31 March 2024 R-E-MF=A
=t+-ARENED
- Loans receivables -EWER 50,631 23,157 13,023 86,811
- Interest receivables — Y FI 2 631 654 1,211 2,496
51,262 23,811 14,234 89,307
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A B

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(BREEEAN ABTEF)

29 Financial risk management and fair values 29 €RTESREREERAQYF

of financial instruments (Continued) =R€ ),
(@) Credit risk (Continued) (@ EERK(£)
Other financial assets (Continued) Bt @mEE (/&)
Loans and interest receivables (Continued) JEREHRFE (&)
An analysis of changes in the corresponding ECL EHEEEHREESEREZS
allowances is as follows: DT
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total
E-KR ERBR F=RR @t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET FET FET
At 1 April 2023 R-ZE-=FNAE—H 264 140 10,678 11,082
New originated MEX 1,849 - - 1,849
Impairment loss recognised ERARNESE 193 5,250 294 5,737
Repaid during the year FREER (77) (34) (435) (546)
Transfer R (135) (3,554) 3,689 -

Impact on year ended ECLs of FRERBE AEE2
exposures transferred between FRBHEEEBERR

stages during the year ZHE - 1,541 - 1,541
At 31 March 2024 and 1 April 2024 R-Z-NF=A
=+-BR-Z-MmE
MA—H 2,094 3,343 14,226 19,663
New originated MEHX 378 - - 378
Impairment loss recognised ERAREEE 154 8,191 8 8,353
Repaid during the year FREER (175) 411) (1,532) 2,118)
Transfer B (1,697) (9,085) 10,762 =
Impact on year ended ECLs of FRERBE HEE Y
exposures transferred between FREHEEFBRR
stages during the year LHE - 1,470 - 1,470
At 31 March 2025 R-Z_1%=R
=1+—H 754 3,528 23,464 27,746
By class at 31 March 2025 R-ZBE-RF=A
=t-HERERNES
- Loans receivables -ERER 751 3,425 22,479 26,655
- Interest receivables — YA & 3 103 985 1,091
754 3,528 23,464 27,746
By class at 31 March 2024 R-ZZE-MF=A
=+-HRRERNES
- Loans receivables -ERER 2,092 3,284 13,015 18,391
- Interest receivables — YT B 2 59 1,211 1,272
2,094 3,343 14,226 19,663
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)
(BEHEEBIN REBTES)

29 Financial risk management and fair values
of financial instruments (Continuea)

(a)

Credit risk (Continued)

Other financial assets (Continued)

Other financial assets at amortised cost

Other financial assets at amortised cost include
deposits and other receivables, amount due from a
related party and cash and cash equivalents. The
Group’s other receivables as at 31 March 2025
comprise mainly amounts due from business partners
and consultants, advances to staff and trade deposits
amounting to HK$38,491,000 (2024: HK$42,878,000)
in total.

The Group accounts for its credit risk by appropriately
providing for ECLs on a timely basis. In calculating the
ECL rates, the Group considers historical loss rates for
each category of receivables and adjusts for forward
looking macroeconomic data.

An analysis of changes in the corresponding ECL

TMITAZERMAREERQYF
ﬁ (/;ﬁ‘/::;? /\‘

(a)

FERR (&)

Atz MEE (&)

KEHKATEZ R T HEE

REBEKATECEMEREE
BERe REMEWKKIE Bl —
FHEEALTRBURBE SRR S
EEBM- R-_TE_RAF=AR=+—
H AEEZHEMERREBEZES
FRRESZHERER 2 RE
MEIRNZAREREZERSR
538,491,000t (Z T =W 4 ¢
42,878,000 7T ) °

AEEBRARKILRBEHREEER
BERBERGAEEERR -
R ERMUEEBERXE A&E
SEERHRRERBRAZELBRE
WHEATHE M 2 ZE L EBUREL S
o

ERF —RRETHERREES

allowances under stage 1 is as follows: BRESH 2 HOWNOT:
HK$'000
FHET
At 1 April 2023 R-_ZE-_=FMA—H 7,728
Impairment loss recognised ERRREEE 1,954
Write-off 3 (14)
Exchange adjustments ME 3, 8 B (64)

At 31 March 2024 and 1 April 2024 RZZE-_WFE=ZA=+—HK

—EZOFEmMA—H 9,604
Impairment loss recognised ERAREEE 211
Exchange adjustments ME A & (6)
At 31 March 2025 R-_ZE_hA¥=A=+—H 9,809
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A B

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)
(BREEEAN ABTEF)

29 Financial risk management and fair values
of financial instruments (Continued)

(a)

(b)

Credit risk (Continued)

Other financial assets (Continued)

Other financial assets at amortised cost (Continued)

Except for the abovementioned receivables, the Group
has assessed that the expected credit losses rate for
other financial assets at amortised costs is immaterial
under 12-month ECL method. Thus, no loss allowance
for other financial assets at amortised costs at the end
of the reporting period.

Liquidity risk

Individual operating entities within the Group are
responsible for their own cash management, including
the short term investment of cash surpluses and the
raising of loans to cover expected cash demands,
subject to approval by the Company’s board when
borrowings exceed certain predetermined levels of
authority. The Group’s policy is to regularly monitor
its liquidity requirements to ensure that it maintains
sufficient reserves of cash and readily realisable
marketable securities and adequate committed lines
of funding from major financial institutions to meet its
liquidity requirements in the short and longer term.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(BRBHHEHIN

(b)

LA T 25)

29 Financial risk management and fair values 29 ﬁmﬂIE\Z%lﬂﬂlﬁ% EERAF
of financial instruments (Continuea) (&)
Liquidity risk (Continued) by RBELERR (£Z)
The following tables show the remaining contractual TRETAESESHAGNE W
maturities at the end of the reporting period of the RZBTAHNIEBE BEAHREM
Group’s financial liabilities which are based on the EReRE(BEEBADOF RN
contractual undiscounted cash flows (including interest (WEHIERERBR BT =
payments computed using contractual rates or, if FTEZFEMNF) RAEEA A
floating, based on rates current at the end of the TR z&FABRR:
reporting period) and the earliest date the Group can
be required to pay:
2025
ZE-hE
Total Within More than More than
contractual 1 year 1yearbut 2 years but
Carrying undiscounted or on less than less than
amount cash flow demand 2 years 5 years
BUAKR 1¥R%  BE1FE  BB2FQA
FEE RERELH EZX DPR2E D R5E
HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS$000 HK$ 000 HKS$'000
FET FE7 FET FE7 FET
Trade payables ENESHIE 7 7 7 - -
Other payables and HitERREREHER
accrued charges 56,017 56,017 56,017 - -
Lease liabilities HEAR 12,127 12,786 7,800 3,236 1,750
Interest-bearing borrowings i 815 & 1,137 1,274 1,274 = =
69,352 70,148 65,162 3,236 1,750
2024
“E-NF
Total Within More than More than
contractual 1 year 1yearbut 2 years but
Carrying  undiscounted oron less than less than
amount cash flow demand 2 years 5 years
MARBER 1ERy BBIFR  BEER
EmE Iﬁui/miﬂg%ﬁ fEE kK Uik DRE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET T T FET TET
Other payables and HiENRERETER
accrued charges 64,301 64,301 64,301 - -
Lease liabilities HEAR 8,516 8,923 5,546 3,377 -
Interest-bearing borrowings i B E 1,009 1,131 1,131 S -
73,826 74,355 70,978 3,377 -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MR IR AR MY R

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)
(BREEEAN ABTEF)

29 Financial risk management and fair values 29 €RTEACEREAREER QT
of financial instruments (Continuea) 8@
(c) Interest rate risk (c) F=mEbs
The Group’s interest rate risk arises primarily from bank RAEBZFERBREIERBERTE
deposits, loans receivable, lease liabilities and interest- o ERER HEABEERWEE
bearing borrowings. Deposits placed issued at variable B mFEBRTE ZEFEMZ2FHMN
rates and loans receivable, bank deposits, lease RETBELZERER RITH
liabilities and interest-bearing borrowings at fixed rates FHEEBERMEEEDSAE
expose the Group to cash flow interest rate risk and SEAZBERENERREREKAF
fair value interest rate risk respectively. The Group’s BENEXRBR AEEEEEEER
interest rate profile as monitored by management is ZHEHEENRTXHRo
shown below.
Interest rate profile FIFEHE
The following table details the interest rate profile of TRFMLAEERERARZEX
the Group’s net deposits (being bank deposits less FEE (BRI FRRM B eREasE
interest-bearing financial liabilities or vice versa) at the RZINR) 2RI =B E -
end of the reporting period.
2025 2024
—E-HF —E-ME
Effective Effective

interest rate

BBRF=E
%
%
Variable rate deposits: FERER:
Bank deposits and cash at banks H#TERRERITHES 0.9%
Net fixed rate deposits/(borrowings): EEFH /(&) FHE:
Loans receivable EUE 7.0%-48.0%
Lease liabilities HEBRE 5.6%
Interest-bearing borrowings MEEE 12.0%

Total net deposits BREFBSE

SAU SAN TONG HOLDINGS LIMITED {65 Z#ERAER AR

226
Annual Report 2024/25 FE k&

interest rate

EHRAE

HK$'000 % HK$'000
FET % FAET
40,132 1.0% 82,455
64,860  7.0%-48.0% 68,420
(12,127) 5.6% (8,516)
(1,137) 12.0% (1,009)
51,596 58,895
91,728 141,350



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(BEHEEBIN REBTES)

29 Financial risk management and fair values
of financial instruments (Continuea)

(c)

(d)

Interest rate risk (Continued)

Sensitivity analysis

As at 31 March 2025,
increase/decrease of 100 basis points in interest

it is estimated that a general

rates, with all other variables held constant, would
have decreased/increased the Group’s loss after tax
and its accumulated losses by HK$301,000 (2024:
HK$618,000). Other components of equity would not
be affected (2024: HK$NIl) by the changes in interest
rates.

The sensitivity analysis above indicates the
instantaneous change in the Group’s loss after tax
and accumulated losses assuming that the change in
interest rates had occurred at the end of the reporting
period and had been applied to re-measure those
financial instruments held by the Group which expose
the Group to fair value interest rate risk for at the end
of the reporting period. The 100 basis point increase
or decrease represents management’s assessment
of a reasonably possible change in interest rates over
the period until the next annual reporting period. The
analysis is performed on the same basis for 2024.

Foreign currency risk

The Group is not exposed to significant currency risk
as most of sales, income, purchases and expenses
are denominated in the functional currency of the

operations to which they relate.

The Group currently does not have a foreign currency
hedging policy. However, the management monitors
foreign exchange exposure and will consider hedging
significant foreign currency exposure should the need
arise.

29

SRMIAZSRAREERAY
%)

(c)

(d)

MEE (&)

BB E D

R-_ZE-_RE=RA=+—H" f4&t

M EE R LA T B100ME &
PRERMEBHTIE AEE 2K

REeEBELREZRFBEEERD
#HN301,0008 L (ZF — /9 F
618,000 7T) c Hih#E S 2 o 15 T~
eXANEEHFE (T _NF: T
BIr) e

THRBRESTBE TR AN EE 2R
BEBEEZAFEECNKES 2
FREFNEXEHERERAREE
REERARENGFERAEEMEE
JHZEeRIE BEAEERE
WMARFAEAFENERR 100
EAERABKEEEEBEHEET —@
iﬁ%i&ﬁﬁﬁﬁzﬁﬁfﬁﬂ%—fﬁﬁéfi
““““ @JZ e E - MFIRARE
EITPHo

S R B
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(BREEEAN ABTEF)

29 Financial risk management and fair values
of financial instruments (continuea)

(e)

Equity price risk

The Group is exposed to equity price changes arising
from equity investments held for trading and classified
as financial assets at FVPL (see note 17).

The Group’s listed investments are listed on both
the Main Board and GEM of the Stock Exchange.
Decisions to buy or sell trading securities are based
on daily monitoring of the performance of individual
securities and other industry indicators, as well as the
Group'’s liquidity needs. The portfolio is diversified in
terms of industry distribution, in accordance with the

limits set by the Group.

As at 31 March 2025,
decrease of 5% in equity price, with all other variables

it is estimated that an increase/

held constant, would have decreased/increased the
Group’s loss after tax and its accumulated losses
by HK$3,009,000 (2024: HK$4,073,000). Other
components of consolidated equity would not be
affected (2024: HK$NIl).

The sensitivity analysis indicates the instantaneous
change in the Group’s results after tax (and
accumulated losses) and other components of
consolidated equity that would arise assuming that the
changes in the stock market index had occurred at
the end of the reporting period and had been applied
to re-measure those financial instruments held by the
Group which expose the Group to equity price risk at
the end of the reporting period. It is also assumed that
the fair values of the Group’s equity investments would
change in accordance with the historical correlation
with the relevant stock market index and that all other
variables remain constant. The analysis is performed
on the same basis for 2024.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(BRBEIHEBI ABITET)

29 Financial risk management and fair values 29 £ TEACESREAKREER AT
of financial instruments (Continuea) =XE )

(f)  Fair value measurement

) 2AFEFE

(i)  Financial assets measured at fair value () BAFEIFEZZHBEE

Fair value hierarchy nFEER

The following table presents the fair value of TREVNARERER 2 WEARA
the Group’s financial assets at the end of the KEMEERB BV BHREE
reporting period on a recurring basis, categorised B8R A FEFEIMA
into the three-level fair value hierarchy as defined EZ=BAAFEEBRETHE
in HKFRS 13 “Fair Value Measurement”. The level ZEMEEATFE DEQYF
into which a fair value measurement is classified B ECERB2EUNTHES
is determined with reference to the observability ERBMABE 2 TBRERE
and significance of the inputs used in the EREEZEHEMEE:

valuation technique as follows:

Level 1 valuations:

E—RfhE:

Level 2 valuations:

FE_RHE:

Level 3 valuations:

FZHEE:

Fair value measured using only Level 1 inputs i.e. unadjusted quoted
prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities at the
measurement date.

EEAZE— R AGE (ARFEEEERTS LHREESBEIRK
ARRE)HEZATE:

Fair value measured using Level 2 inputs i.e. observable inputs which
fail to meet Level 1, and not using significant unobservable inputs.
Unobservable inputs are inputs for which market data are not available.
EAE_RBASEE (MREF-R2AUBZGAHB) BEVYERAEKX
PABREABBFECATE TAHSEGABBERRTSEHE &
ANBIE -

Fair value measured using significant unobservable inputs.

EREATABRGABRBAEZAFE
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)
(BREEEAN ABTEF)

29 Financial risk management and fair values 29 €RTEACEREAREER QT

of financial instruments (Continuea) 8@
(f)  Fair value measurement (Continued) ) DFEFEE)
(i)  Financial assets measured at fair value () BRAFEIFEZZHEE
(Continued) (#&)
Fair value hierarchy (Continued) NFEER (E)
The following table illustrates the fair value TRENMAEEBSREECR
measurement hierarchy of the Group’s financial FHEEAZER:
assets:
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
E-® -t EE st
HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000
FET FET FET FET

Fair value measurementat R=E=-R&=H

31 March 2025 =t-BRAVERNE
Financial assets at FVPL: R AFEFABHRY
SREE !
- Listed equity securities -REBZ LTRAES
in Hong Kong 72,072 - - 72,072
- Unlisted equity fund -REEZELT
in Hong Kong BARES - 3,278 - 3,278
72,072 3,278 - 75,350
Fair value measurementat R=ZE_-M&E=fA
31 March 2024 Zt-BZAVEHE
Financial assets at FVPL: ~ RATEFABHZ
TREE:
- Listed equity securities ~~ —REBZ EWRAES
in Hong Kong 97,560 - - 97,560
- Unlisted equity fund -REBEBZFELT
in Hong Kong RAEE - 5,089 - 5,089
97,560 5,089 - 102,649
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(BRBHHEHIN

LA T 25)

29 Financial risk management and fair values
of financial instruments (Continuea)

(f)  Fair value measurement (Continued)

(i)

(i)

Financial assets measured at fair value
(Continued)

Fair value hierarchy (Continued)

There were no transfers between Level 1 and
Level 2, or transfers into or out of Level 3 during
the year ended 31 March 2025.

The Group’s policy is to recognise transfers
between levels of fair value hierarchy as at the
end of the reporting period in which they occur.

Information about Level 2 fair value measurements

The fair values of the unlisted equity fund as at
31 March 2025 and 2024 are determined with
reference to the net asset value of the fund which
are provided by the broker.

Fair value of financial instruments carried at
other than fair value

The carrying amounts of the Group’s financial
instruments carried at amortised cost are not
materially different from their fair values as at 31
March 2025 and 2024.

29 $WMIAZSHAREERAT

fE(2)
(m82/

() 2DFEEGE)

()

(ii)

BAFHEHISBZEHEE
(%)

AFEER (&)

BHE-_ZTZ-_AF=A=+—H
TFE F-REE_QR2HE
WEmER TEEE=MRBEA
FEH -

AEBZBRENELERFE
BREns 2 RPRERE A
Bk

BHE R FEFEZEH

FETRAREESR =T -_AF
FZE-_NFE=ZA=+—HZ
ATESELLEEMEERES
CEEFHET-

EHEAFEIEZLBT
AAFHE

7R 52 B 4% Ak 7K Bk 8 £ Ak AN 71 BR
ZEMIAERBMERER =
E_HFLR-_TE-_NNF=A
—t+—HZAFETEERE
Bo
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)
(BREEEAN ABTEF)

30 Reconciliation of liabilities arising from
financing activities

The table below details changes in the Group’s liabilities
arising from financing activities, including both cash and
non-cash changes. Liabilities arising from financing activities
are those for which cash flows were, or future cash flows
will be, classified in the Group’s consolidated statement of
cash flows as cash flows from financing activities.

30 TREFBELCEBYER

TERFRAEEcREDELCREE
B ERASKFACE -SREDE
EZBENEERSREGHARKR
TREFNAKEZGEERASRERT
DHEAETRMEDELEZAERE

Interest-

Lease bearing
liabilities borrowings Total
HESE MEEE -y
HK$000 HK$000 HK$000
FET TFET FET

(note 23) (note 24)

(K1:£23) (Ktit24)

At 1 April 2023 R-ZEBE-_=5MA—H 4,085 1,356 5,441
Changes from financing RMERSRESLE:

cash flows:
Capital element of lease EfNfHEEREzAE 5

rentals paid (8,201) = (8,201)
Interest element of lease ENEERSZFEE S

rentals paid (672) - (572)
Proceed from interest-bearing W B & E Z 1§58

borrowings - 929 929
Repayment of interest-bearing &M 8 EE

borrowings - (1,329) (1,329)
Interest paid EATFE - (184) (184)
Total changes from financing HER S REZHBAHE

cash flows (8,773) (584) (9,357)
Exchange adjustments [E 5 & (41) = (41)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)
(BEHEEBIN REBTES)

30 Reconciliation of liabilities arising from 30 TRMEHEEZEBHERE®
financing activities (Continued)

Interest-
Lease bearing

liabilities borrowings Total

HESE Mt 25 E mat

HK$000 HK$000 HK$000

TET TFET TET
(note 23) (note 24)

(K1:£23) (Ktit24)

Other changes: Hih %8 :
Interest on lease liabilities HEBBZHE
(note 5(a)) (Htats(a)) 572 = 572

Interest on borrowings

EE 2B (Kit5(a))

(note 5(2)) - 237 237
Adjustment on early REKRIEHEZHAE

termination of a lease (1,999) - (1,999)
Lease modifications HEBH 11,714 = 11,714
New lease entered MEIEE 2,958 - 2,958
Total changes BEREE 13,245 237 13,482
At 31 March 2024 and R-ZF-DF

1 April 2024 =A=t+—-HK

“E-NFEWNA—H 8,516 1,009 9,525

Changes from financing MERERESE:

cash flows:
Capital element of lease BENHAERSZ AT

rentals paid (7,357) - (7,357)
Interest element of lease ENHEERE 2 EEF D

rentals paid (597) - (597)
Proceed from interest-bearing W B & & Z Fr 15 318

borrowings - 190 190
Repayment of interest-bearing EEH BEE

borrowings = (190) (190)
Total changes from financing BER S REE BB

cash flows (7,954) - (7,954)
Exchange adjustments EHAE (12) = (12)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

N

AR RAN S

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)
(BEEERAN ABTEF)

30 Reconciliation of liabilities arising from
financing activities (Continueq)

31

Other changes:

Interest on lease liabilities
(note 5(a))

Interest on borrowings
(note 5(a))

Adjustment on early
termination of a lease

Lease modifications

New lease entered

Total changes

At 31 March 2025

Commitments

Commitments outstanding at the end of the reporting period
not provided for in the consolidated financial statements are

as follows:

Contracted for acquisition of property,

plant and equipment

30 EREBIEE cEEHER &)
Interest-
Lease bearing
liabilities borrowings Total
HEEE EEE et
HK$000 HK$000 HK$000
FAET FET FAETT
(note 23) (note 24)
(fta223) (HtiE24)
Hiheg.
HEBBEZFE
(Htit5(a)) 597 = 597
BEZHME (Hitsa)
= 128 128
REKRIHAEZAE
(2,634) = (2,634)
HEEBN 5,267 = 5,267
FEIvHAE 8,347 = 8,347
HEBEE 11,577 128 11,705
R-ZBE-EREF
=A=+-—H 12,127 1,137 13,264
31 EiE
RMER RETMARRERE P HERE
B AENT
2025 2024
—E-_RE —E-FE
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET
BRI WEDE -
25 K 5% 417 417
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

AN
%/T\D,H\

U e

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(BRBHHEHIN

32 Material related party transactions and

LA T 25)

balances

(a)

(b)

Key management personnel remuneration

Remuneration for key management personnel of the
Group, including amounts paid to the Company’s
directors as disclosed in note 7 and chief executive

officer, is as follows:

Directors

Directors’ fees

Discretionary bonuses

Salaries, allowances and other benefits

Contributions to defined contribution
retirement plan

Long service payments recognised in
respect of defined benefit plans

Chief executive officer

Salaries, allowances and other benefits

Discretionary bonuses

Contributions to defined contribution
retirement plan

Long service payments recognised in
respect of defined benefit plans

32
E=x
By FE4T
o R REMLET

ERBEALIRE REER

(a) FEEEAEMS

AEBFTEERABZHE (B
METMERBEENTARAESEZ
REREN FITRAR ZFKIE) WM
T

FEHFRINET 8 2 1R

h 5T TE 48 F 5T B HE R
EHR% €

ITHAR
Fra o R REAMET
By 1B FE4T

FEHRFRNET & 2 HR

L 5T TE 48 K 5T B fE R A
RHRB S

Total remuneration is included in “staff costs” (see note

5(b)).

Other related party transactions

Details of balances with related parties are disclosed in
the consolidated statement of financial position and in

note 20.

2025 2024
—E-EHF —E_WF
HK$°000 HK$ 000
FET FHET
360 475

84; 81(;

30 36

29 20

1,265 1,341
3,600 3,600

18 18

29 25

3,647 3,643
4,912 4,984

FMaEAATE IRA] (R
5(b)) °

(b) HMBEEALXS

MEAEAL ZABEBNGEAUH
AR & B Bt 5209 & o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A B

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(BREEEAN ABTEF)

33 Financial information of the Company 33 ANEHEER
(a) Statement of financial position (@) BHERRE
2025 2024
—E-RE —E-E
HK$’000 HK$ 000
FET FETT
Non-current asset ERBEE
Investments in subsidiaries BB AR ZIRE 4 4
Current assets REEE
Amounts due from subsidiaries JE Y Bt /&8~ B 5K I8 488,903 492,291
Prepayments, deposits and ENRE -ZE K
other receivables H Ath e Wy 5k IE 1,231 1,216
Cash and cash equivalents RekBE&EE 147 241
490,281 493,748
Current liabilities REEE
Amounts due to subsidiaries AL ENGIE ] 6,052 6,090
Other payables and accrued charges  EfENZKEREER 2,541 2,631
8,593 8,721
Net current assets REBEERE 481,688 485,027
Total assets less current liabilities EEHAERARBERS 481,692 485,031
Non-current liabilities kRBEE
Defined benefit plan obligations AEBMEELE 29 20
NET ASSETS EEFH 481,663 485,011
Capital and reserves EXR#E
Share capital fi& A& 788 788
Reserves ] 480,875 484,223
TOTAL EQUITY A 481,663 485,011
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)
(BEHEEBIN REBTES)

33 Financial information of the Company 33 ERTRHMKEER &2
(Continued)
(b) Movements in components of equity (b) HEZBIZEH
Details of the changes in the Company’s individual RAFERR R 2 &7 #2526 5o &
components of equity during the year are as follows: B oHBAT
Share-
based
Share Share payment Accumulated Total
capital premium reserve losses equity
[ BRAEE BROESHHEE ZiER ERARE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET FAET FET FET
At 1 April 2023 R-ZE-=fWNA-H 788 791,928 2,224 (309,911) 485,029

Changes in equity for 2024: —Z-MFEZEZEH .
Loss and total comprehensive FREERZHEEBERE

loss for the year - - > (18) (18)
At 31 March 2024 and R-B-ME=A=+-HR
1 April 2024 “E-_MEMA-A 788 791,928 2,224 (309,929) 485,011

Changes in equity for 2025: —Z-RFZEZEH .
Loss and total comprehensive FREERZHEEBESE

loss for the year - - - (3,348) (3,348)
Cancellation of share options & § 8 % ## - - (947) 947 =
At 31 March 2025 R-E-H5F=A=+-H 788 791,928 1,277 (312,330) 481,663
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A B

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(BREEEAN ABTEF)

34 Subsidiaries’ information 34 MEARER
As at 31 March 2025, the Company had direct or indirect R-ZE-_RAE=A=+—H AR HE
interests in the following subsidiaries, which are private FHEERTIWNBRA (BRABRAF
limited companies or, if established/incorporated outside MR BB AINK L sk BIAS
Hong Kong, have substantially the same characteristics as HEBLMABRAFTARBMERZEER
a Hong Kong private limited company. The class of shares BOMEEEZ - BREATHIN FIFERG
held is ordinary unless otherwise stated. The particulars of HAAE B ZEMBARKR-_ZE A
these subsidiaries as at 31 March 2025 are set out below: FZA=t+—BzZ#HBOT:
Place of Particulars of issued Proportion of effective
Name of company operations and paid up capital ownership interest Principal activity
AREE EES BRTRBERARES ERFERESLA IEBEER
Direct Indirect
¢ &

Incorporated in the British Virgin Islands:

REBEXHESITMAT -
Sau San Tong Holdings Inc. Hong Kong 1,000 shares of US$1 each 100% - Investment holding
N 1,000 8REBIETZ REZR
)
Sau San Tong China Holdings Limited Hong Kong 1 share of US$1 each 100% - Investment holding
BB 1REREEIE T KR REER
Smartime International Investment Hong Kong 1 share of US$1 each 100% - Investment holding
Limited
EE IREREBBIZTZRG REER
Sau San Tong China Investment Ltd. Hong Kong 100 shares of US$1 each 100% - Investment holding
£ 100k BREEIETZ KRR REER
Wise Fortune Holdings Corp. Hong Kong 10 shares of US$1 each 100% - Investment holding
B 10 EREEIET 2RO REER
Sau San Tong China Development Hong Kong 10 shares of US$1 each 100% - Investment in
Limited securities and
investment
holding
£ 10 EREE1ET 2RO REZBFRREER
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MR IR AR M R

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(BRBEIHEBI ABITET)

34 Subsidiaries’ information (continued)

Name of company
NAEW

Place of
operations

EEBH

Incorporated in the British Virgin Islands: (Continued)

REBELHEAMAL: (&)

Gold Lane International Holdings Ltd.

Victory Assets Holdings Ltd.

Concept de beauté Limited

L'institut Sau San Tong de la recherche
scientifique de beauté (en France) a
Limited

Bravo Media Limited

Gold Platform Holdings Limited

Creative Time Investments Limited

Brilliant Concept Co. Ltd.

Bright Rainbow Investments Ltd.

Hong Kong
Bk

Hong Kong
B

Hong Kong
B

Hong Kong

B

Hong Kong
Bt

Hong Kong
Bt

Hong Kong
Bk

Hong Kong
Bk

Hong Kong
Bk

34 MEBARIEFR (2

Particulars of issued
and paid up capital
ERTRBERARFEE

100 shares of US$1 each
100REHREABIETZRR

100 shares of US$1 each
100REREBIET KRR

1 share of US$1 each
1REREEIETRA

100 shares of US$1 each

100B B R EE1R T2 B 1D

1 share of US$1 each
1REREEIETZ KRG

1 share of US$1 each
1REREEIETZ KRG

100 shares of US$1 each
100 B R EE1FE T2 B in

1 share of US$1 each
1REREEIETZ KRG

100 shares of US$1 each
100 B EE1FE T2 D

Proportion of effective

ownership interest

EREERERLLA

Direct Indirect
E# BF:3
100% -
100% -
100% -
100% -
100% =
100% =
100% =
- 100%

- 100%

Principal activity

TEXHR

Inactive
TEYY

Investment holding

REEK

Inactive
TEeY

Inactive

S

CEEE

7w

Ju

Investment holding
RERK

Investment holding
RERK

Investment holding
RERR

Investment holding
RERR

Inactive
Emex
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A B

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)
(BREEEAN ABTEF)

34 Subsidiaries’ information (Continued) 34 MBATEE 2
Place of Particulars of issued Proportion of effective
Name of company operations and paid up capital ownership interest
L EEWE ERTRBMERAFEE EREERERLLA
Direct Indirect
E# 1

Incorporated in the British Virgin Islands: (Continued)

REBELBELMAT (&

Sau San Tong (Shanghai) Limited Hong Kong 1,000 shares of US$1 each - 50%
(“SST(SH)") (note (i) ( #1i())
BE 1,000 BHREEIETZ
g
Sau San Tong Healthy Trim Institute Hong Kong 100 shares of US$1 each = 51%
(Hangzhou) Limited (“SST(HZ)")
N 100R BREBEIET KRR
Sau San Tong (Shanghai) Development  Hong Kong 10 shares of US$1 each - 50%
Ltd. (“SST(SHD)") (note (i) ( #:#())
BE 10RBRE AT KA
Sau San Tong (Beijing) Investments Hong Kong 100 shares of US$1 each - 100%
Limited
e 100 BREBIETZ RS
Machiko Enterprises Inc. Hong Kong 100 shares of US$1 each = 100%
P 100 BREBIETZ RS
Sau San Tong Healthy Trim Institute Hong Kong 100 shares of US$1 each = 51%
(Shenzhen) Limited (“SST(S2)")
e 100R BREBEIET KRR
Yield Soar Limited Hong Kong 1 share of US$1 each - 100%
BB IREREBIZTZRG
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Principal activity

TEER

Investment holding

Investment holding

BEEK

Inactive

LEEX

Investment holding

RARR

Investment holding

BEEK

Investment holding

REEK

Investment holding

REEK



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MR IR AR M R

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(BRBEIHEBI ABITET)

34 Subsidiaries’ information (continued)

Name of company
NAEW

Place of
operations

EEBH

Incorporated in the British Virgin Islands: (Continued)

REBELHEAMAL: (&)

Silver Ally International Limited
RIGERER LA

Silver Shore Holdings Limited

Win Ease (BVI) Limited

REARDA

Profit Hunting Development Limited

Sky Hero Capital Limited

Linkway Limited

Brilliant Step Global Limited

Wisdom Link Holding Limited

Hong Kong
Bt

Hong Kong
Bk

Hong Kong

BE

Hong Kong
3

Hong Kong
B

Hong Kong
B

Hong Kong

BB

Hong Kong
Bk

34 MEBARIEFR (2

Particulars of issued Proportion of effective
and paid up capital ownership interest
ERTRBEREFE BERARRESLA

Direct Indirect

BEE 5623
1 share of US$1 each 100% -
1REREEIETZRR 100% =
1 share of US$1 each 100% -
1REREEIET 2 RH
1 share of US$1 each 100% -
1R EREEIE T2 KRG
1 share of US$1 each 100% =
1REREEIZTZRR
10 shares of US$1 each 100% =
10 ERAEIZT RS
10 shares of US$1 each 100% =
10 EREEIETZBRG
50,000 shares of US$1 each = 100%
50,000/ R BREEIRTZ

&

10 shares of US$1 each 100% -

10k EBREEIET KA

Principal activity

TEXHR

Property holding
RENE

Investment holding

REEK

Investment in
securities

Investment holding
REZR

Inactive
TmEX

Inactive
TmEX

Property holding
RENE

Investment holding
RERR
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A B

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)
(BREEEAN ABTEF)

34 Subsidiaries’ information (Continued) 34 MBATEE 2
Place of Particulars of issued Proportion of effective
Name of company operations and paid up capital ownership interest
L EEWE ERTRBMERAFEE EREERERLLA
Direct Indirect
E# 1

Incorporated in the United States of America (‘USA’):
REFIZEZE ([ZH))EMAT

Sau San Tong Rodeo Drive Beauty USA 1 share of US$1 each 100% S
Scientific Research Institute Limited
%M IREREEI1ZT KA
Incorporated in Hong Kong:
REEAMAL
SCO Talent Search Company Limited Hong Kong 1 share of HK$1 100% -
BERATEBERAA e 1R1B T 2R
Sau San Tong Beauty Figure Limited Hong Kong 10,000 shares of HK$10,000 - 100%
EHERRRA e 10,0008%10,0007% T 2 B 3
Sau San Tong Medical Cosmetology Hong Kong 18,750 shares of HK$18,750 - 100%
Healthy Trim Institute Limited
EaEBEXTRRABRETLER B 18,7508% 18,7507 7t 2 AR 3
N A
Sau San Tong Medical Cosmetology Hong Kong 10,000 shares of - 100%
Healthy Trim Institute (TST) Limited HK$4,905,100
EaEBEXTRRABRESL BB 10,000/%4,905,1007% 70 2
(XAH)ERDA g
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Principal activity

TEER

Inactive

LEEX

Inactive
EmEE

Sale of health and
beauty products
and investment
holding

HERBRREREM
NRBREER

Provision of beauty
and slimming
services

REXALGBRY

Provision of beauty
and slimming
services

REXS RARRE



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)
(BEHEEBIN REBTES)

34 Subsidiaries’ information (Continued) 34 WEARER (@)
Place of Particulars of issued Proportion of effective
Name of company operations and paid up capital ownership interest
NAEW E 3 ERTRBEREFE EREERERLLA
Direct Indirect
E# 8 &

Incorporated in Hong Kong. (Continued)
REEAMAT (&)

Sau San Tong Medical Cosmetology Hong Kong 100 shares of HK$100 - 100%
Healthy Trim Institute (Causeway Bay)
Limited
EaEBEXTRREBRESL £ 1008% 10078 7T 2 B 17
(FEE)ERAA
Sau San Tong Management Limited Hong Kong 100 shares of HK$100 - 100%
EaEERBERATF e 100/%1007% 70 2 R 3
SST Advertising Agency Limited Hong Kong 10,000 shares of HK$10,000 = 100%
BEEERBERDA Bt 10,0004%10,0007% 7t 2 A& 17
Moon Profit Limited Hong Kong 1 share of HK$1 = 100%
mEBERRA e 1RE T KD
Highlight International Trading Limited Hong Kong 100 shares of HK$100 = 100%
SREREFERRA B 1008% 1005 7T 2 & 17
Sau San Tong Investment Holdings Hong Kong 100 shares of HK$100 - 75%
Limited (“SSTIHL")
EHEREZRERAR E 1008% 1007 7T 2 & 17

(M ERERK])

Wealthy Sound Limited Hong Kong 10,000 shares of HK$10,000 100%

TEERAH 5% 10,0000%10,0005% 7t 2 A {7

Principal activity

TEXHR

Provision of beauty
and slimming
services

REXSRABRE

Provision of
management
consultancy
services

FR AL B I8 o AR

Provision of
advertising agency
services

R RS RE RS

Investment holding
REZRK

Sale of health and
beauty products
HERBEEDEM
Property holding

HENE

Investment holding

BEEK
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MR IR AR MY R

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(BmEERN KNBTE5)

34 Subsidiaries’ information (continued)

Name of company

DAEER

Incorporated in Hong Kong: (Continued)

REBZMAL : (&

Winic Management Limited
XNEBBERRA

Jadepower International Limited
ZHBERAERRLA

BUML

Trillion Well International Finance
Company Limited

ERERSBERAR

Sun Fung Capital Limited

MERE (ZM)BERRA

| Pro Medical Skin Care Centre Limited

EREREEARAR

Place of
operations

EE SR

Hong Kong
B

Hong Kong
Bk

Hong Kong

Hong Kong

BR

Hong Kong

&R

Hong Kong

'R

SAU SAN TONG HOLDINGS LIMITED &5 = RAER AT
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Particulars of issued
and paid up capital

34 MEARER (&)

Proportion of effective
ownership interest

BRITRARRAFESE ERBEEREERLH
Direct Indirect
R f
1 share of HK$1 - 100%
1B T2 B in
1 share of HK$1 - 100%
11T 2 D
100 shares of - 80%
HK$19,797,305
1008%19,797,305 7T 2
)
1 share of HK$1 = 100%
1B T2 B iR
10,000 shares of HK$10,000 - 100%
10,0008%10,0007 7t 2 B 13
10,000 shares of - 100%
HK$15,010,000

10,000/%15,010,0007 70 2
Bt

Principal activity

TEER

Investment holding
REZK

Inactive
TEYY

Provision of a
proprietary
internet platform
to promote and
sell slimming
beauty and health
related services
and products

RUEZEBETE
NEBRIHELR
EARRREBZ
PR 7% 2 2 m

Investment holding

BEEK

Provision of money
lending services

R ERS

Provision of beauty
and slimming
services

REXARARBRE



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MR IR AR M R

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(BRBEIHEBI ABITET)

34 Subsidiaries’ information (continued)

Name of company
NAEW

Incorporated in Hong Kong. (Continued)
REEAMAT (&)

Kowloon West Properties Development

Limited

| Pro Medical Skin Care Centre (Asia)
Limited

Sau San Tong Healthy Care Product
Limited (“SSTHCPL”")

Sau San Tong (Asia) Limited

Sau San Tong Licensing Limited

Wisdom Link (Hong Kong) Limited

Place of
operations

EEBH

Hong Kong

BB

Hong Kong

B

Hong Kong

B

Hong Kong
0

Hong Kong
0

Hong Kong
0

34 WEARER (@)

Particulars of issued Proportion of effective

and paid up capital ownership interest

BRTRARRAFESE EREEREERLLA
Direct Indirect

EE f

1 share of HK$1 - 100%

1R1B T 2R

100 shares of HK$100 = 100%

10081007 7T 2 & 17

100 shares of HK$100 - 60%

10081007 7 2 B 19

100 shares of HK$100 - 100%

100810078 70 2 B 19

100 shares of HK$100 - 100%

10081007 70 2 B 19

100 shares of HK$100 - 100%

10081007 70 2 B 19
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Principal activity

TEXHR

Property holding

BENE

Inactive

TEex

Sale of health and

beauty products
HERBREDER

Inactive
TEey

Inactive
TEey

Inactive
EEey
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MR IR AR MY R

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)
(BREEEAN ABTEF)

34 Subsidiaries’ information (continued)

Place of
Name of company operations
NAEW 3

Incorporated in the PRC:
R BT -

FREHBEERERAA (‘RHABIL") The PRC
(note (i) (B 7 (ii))

F
—EERERE ORI BERAF The PRC
(“—E BRI (ote (if) (H7E(i))
F
—EREEERE (N ERRA The PRC
(‘—EBIM") (notes (i) and (iv))
(Wit ki)
Hh g

AFHEXRZH (IER) BRAF (note (ij)) The PRC
(Htii)

hE

a2 (L) CE£EBHEABRAF  The PRC
(note (i) (FTiZ(i))

th
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34 MEARER (&)

Particulars of issued Proportion of effective

and paid up capital ownership interest

ERTRBERAFE BERARRESLA
Direct Indirect

E# GEE3

Registered capital of - 51%
US$5,000,000

# fif & A5,000,000% 7T

Registered capital of - 51%
HK$3,500,000

# fif & A3,500,000% 7

Registered capital of S 51%
HK$3,500,000

& fif & 43,500,000 7T

Registered capital of - 100%
HK$1,000,000

& 451,000,000/ 1T

Registered capital of - 100%
RMB6,000,000

& A AR #6,000,0007T

Principal activity

TEER

Distribution sale of
cosmetic and skin
care products

DHBEEHRER
Em

Provision of beauty
and slimming
services

REXAREBRE

Provision of beauty
and slimming
services

REXSRABRE

Provision of beauty
and slimming
services

REXBLBERY

Provision of
management
consultancy
services and
investment
holding

RUEEZARE R
REER



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)
(BEHEEBIN REBTES)

34 Subsidiaries’ information (continued)

Place of Particulars of issued
Name of company operations and paid up capital
NCIEE X ERTRBMERAFE
Incorporated in the PRC: (Continued)
ReEdMags: (&)
EBRERA(LE)BRAA The PRC Registered capital of
(notes (ij) and (iv)) ( B &#(i) & (iv)) US$500,000
e # it & A500,000% 7T
ERFAEECEERRABRAA The PRC Registered capital of
(note (if) ( #1i2(i)) RMB20,000,000
HE AMER
AR 20,000,000t
Notes:

(i)

(if)

(i)

(iv)

Although the Group has only 50% ownership in SST(SHD) and
SST(SH), the directors concluded that the Group has dominant
power to direct relevant activities of SST(SHD) and SST(SH) on
the basis of the Group’s control over the boards of directors of
respective companies because of contractual arrangements with
the other shareholders of respective companies.

The subsidiaries are registered in the form of wholly foreign owned
enterprises.

The subsidiary is registered in the form of Chinese-foreign equity
joint ventures.

The subsidiary was deregistered during the year ended 31 March
2025.

Bt -

(i)

(if)

(i)

(iv)

34 MEBARIEFR (2

Proportion of effective
ownership interest Principal activity
ERBRREERLA TTEH
Direct Indirect

E# %

- 100%  Provision of beauty
and slimming
services

REXAREERS
- 100%  Inactive
E L E

7wy

1% & AN % [ £ ¥ ASST(SHD) & SST(SH) 2 50%
BRC-EHRERBARHEMBREZANOZT
MEERAANEERAIERE N WEAEEY
HEAREE G # 2 E%EEESST(SHD) &
SST(SH)Z #E/EE) -

ZEMBRABMI BEBECE W AERL

ZHBARARIIAEEELEZERERL-

ZHBLAAERHE-_T-_AF=A=+—HIt
FEWEH

SAU SAN TONG HOLDINGS LIMITED &5 Z#=RAER AT

Annual Report 2024/25 FE K&

247



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR RA M

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(BREEEAN ABTEF)

MELTER &)

TRFINEMASEEES ERFZRAE
o ([l ) 2B AR ZER -

TX2HNZzMBERB A B EMN QR
i DA - S

34 Subsidiaries’ information (continued) 34

The following table lists out the information relating to
the subsidiaries of the Group which have material non-
controlling interest (“NCI1”). The summarised financial
information presented below represents the amounts before

248

any inter-company elimination.

2025
—ECHE
SST(SZ) SST(HZ)
and its and its
subsidiary, subsidiary,
BUML SSTIHL  R#&A{Lk -—-EBFI -—-EBHNM
SST(SZ)Kk  SST(HZ)K
BEE HMEAR HHELR
EY- PN REZK RiBL -SRI —EESHNM
NCI percentage IR E S 20% 25% 49% 49% 49%
HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000
FERL FET FET FET FET
Non-current assets ERBEE - 35,410 3,064 - -
Current assets RBEE 7,805 7,766 121,349 47,101 2,249
Current liabilities mEEE (4,063) (58,408) (49,081)  (149,763) (16,337)
Non-current liabilities ERBEE - - = = =
Net assets/(liabilities) BE/(afE)FE 3,742 (15,232) 75,332 (102,662) (14,088)
Carrying amount of NCI FERER CEEE 748 (3,808) 34,815 (50,305) (6,903)
Revenue Y &= - 1,320 803,747 - -
(Loss)/profit for the year FR(BR)/5H (2,791) (195) 6,245 (1,031) 834
Other comprehensive H2@m (B1B),/ k&
(loss)/income - - (605) 427 -
(Loss)/profit allocated to NC AREFERERZ
(B8),/&H (559) (49) 3,060 (505) 408
Other comprehensive PEEFZRERZ
(loss)/income allocated to NGl E# 2@ (1) /K3 - - (296) 209 -
Dividends paid to NCI BRI ERER - - 13,311 = =
Cash flows from operating RELE /E@JZ
activities, net Benhe 38 (1) (5) (32,779) 146 (4)
Cash flows from investing REBREED
activities, net Bene 38 - - 364 - -
Cash flows from financing REBMEEH
activities, net Renz 58 - - (15,297 - -
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34 MEQARER (&)

34 Subsidiaries’ information (continued)

2024
-y 12
SST(S2) SST(HZ)
and its and its
subsidiary,  subsidiary,
BUML SSTIHL BHAL —EG8FIN —EEnM
SST(SZ)%  SST(HZ) &
EaE HMBAR HEKNBAA
ZERE B BHAfL -8RI —EERM
NCI percentage FERERBENL 20% 25% 49% 49% 49%
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET FAET FET FET
Non-current assets ERBEE = 36,917 6,852 = =
Current assets MBEE 10,046 6,450 148,079 47 851 3,586
Current liabilities nEaRE (3,513) (58,404) (55,218) (149,909) (18,508)
Non-current liabilities e ER=N - - (2,859) = =
Net assets/(liabilities) BE/(8E)FE 6,533 (15,037) 96,854 (102,058) (14,922)
Carrying amount of NCI kR EHE 1,307 (3,759) 45,349 (50,009) (7,311)
Revenue Y g - 1,100 1,015,567 =
Profit/(loss) for the year FREH/(BB) 3,704 (416) 7,053 (13,204) 4,556
Other comprehensive HuzENE/ (BE)
income/(loss) - - (5,442) 3,755 187
Profit/(loss) allocated to NCI PEEFERES ZER
(B#R) 741 (104) 3,456 (6,470) 2,233
Other comprehensive DEEFERERZHM
income/(loss) allocated to NCI 2 E W%/ (E#E) - - (2,667) 1,840 91
Dividends paid to NCI EFEERER RS - - - S S
Cash flows from operating rE& E/ﬁbz%ﬁé”@ '
activities, net ek - (2) (5,171) 623 -
Cash flows from investing REREZDH RERE
activities, net FE - - 368 - -
Cash flows from financing REREED L HRERE "
activities, net T - = (2,010) > -

SAU SAN TONG HOLDINGS LIMITED &5 Z#=RAER AT

249
Annual Report 2024/25 FE K&



250

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e SRR

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(BREEEAN ABTEF)

35 Accounting estimates and judgements

The methods, estimates and judgements the directors
used in applying the Group’s accounting policies have a
significant impact on the Group’s financial position and
operating results. Some of the accounting policies require
the Group to apply estimates and judgements, on matters
that are inherently uncertain. The critical accounting
judgements in applying the Group’s accounting policies are
described below.

(@) Impairment loss on goodwill

Determining whether goodwill is impaired requires an
estimation of the value-in-use of the cash-generating
units to which goodwill has been allocated. The value-
in-use calculation requires the directors to estimate
the future cash flows expected to arise from the cash-
generating unit and a suitable discount rate in order to
calculate the present value of these cash flows.

(b) Loss allowances for trade and other receivables
and loans and interest receivables

The Group estimates the loss allowances for trade and
other receivables and loans and interest receivables by
assessing the ECLs. This requires the use of estimates
and judgements. ECLs are based on the Group’s
historical credit loss experience, adjusted for factors
that are specific to the debtors, and an assessment
of both the current and forecast general economic
conditions as well as forward-looking information as at
the end of the reporting period. Where the estimation
is different from the previous estimate, such difference
will affect the carrying amounts of trade and other
receivables and loans and interest receivables and
thus the impairment loss in the period in which such
estimate is changed.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)
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36 Possible impact of amendments, new 36 BE-_E-_HFF=A=1+—H1L

standards and interpretations issued but
not yet effective for the year ended 31
March 2025

Up to the date of issue of these consolidated financial
statements, the HKICPA has issued a number of new or
amended standards, which are not yet effective for the year
ended 31 March 2025 and which have not been adopted in
these consolidated financial statements. These amendments
include the following which may be relevant to the Group:

FECEMERERERZIEETA
HEARZRBUREEZRE

BEZSHGAVBHRRTEAY TS
AMAGERMEREBRE_T _4F
CAZT - ALEFEHRERARZS
FAMBERRAEKRFAZE THEA L
(ERTRER - ZFBITABEATAIGEER
SEERE:

Amendments to HKAS 21 Lack of Exchangeability’ ES et R BRS AT H e
F215ERT A
Amendments to HKFRS ~ Amendments to the Classification EAVBMELER HeRITESER
9 and HKFRS 7 and Measurement of Financial FOW N EE 2B E]?
Instruments? B 75 4R 4 o g
FETRIEFT AR

Amendments to HKFRS  Annual Improvements to HKFRS
Accounting Standards Accounting Standards -
Volume 112

Amendments to HKFRS  Contracts Referencing Nature-
9 and HKFRS 7 dependent Electricity?

HKFRS 18 Presentation and Disclosure in

Financial Statements®
Amendments to HKFRS  Sale or Contribution of Assets
10 and HKAS 28 between an Investor and its

BBV BmERER BAUBREED

SEEAEITAR FIHEANFE
W —F1152

BBV BmEER PRIKBEALR
FIORRBH EEEFENNEGHL?
B 7% e 5 22 Al
FETHRIEET A

BBV BMERER MBBRERZIEINR
#1858 5 #&e

BBV BmERER REEEHEE QA
F10REE B FEBRE BN

i i 4 NS P . s
Associate or Joint Venture SR LR BE WP E T A
1BET AR

1 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2025. L BE-ZZ-_AF— A —ARZERABNEE
HAR e

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2026. g BEZZ_R"F-—HA— B2 ERBENEE
AR e

g Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2027. E BT - tF—A B ZEABNEE
BRI AE K o

4 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after a date to be < ERTFTEECHNBSKcRARNFEAMA

determined. 3V

The Group is in the process of making an assessment of
what the impact of these developments is expected to
be in the period of initial application. Except for the new
HKFRS Accounting Standards mentioned below, so far it
has concluded that the adoption of them will not have a
significant impact on the Group’s consolidated financial
statements.

AEBEARG LR EREERERY
BMEHEEZEE R TAMT BB
BEEAESTENIN 25 HER/K
MEZBEEITABTEHARELREUH
BREKEFMERZE -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A B

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(BmEERN RBTZ25)

36 Possible impact of amendments, new

standards and interpretations issued but
not yet effective for the year ended 31
March 2025 (continued)

HKFRS 18, Presentation and Disclosure in Financial
Statements

HKFRS 18 “Presentation and Disclosure in Financial
Statements”, which sets out requirements on presentation
and disclosures in financial statements, will replace HKAS 1
“Presentation of Financial Statements”. This new standard,
while carrying forward many of the requirements in HKAS 1,
introduces new requirements to present specified categories
and defined subtotals in the statement of profit or loss;
provide disclosures on management-defined performance
measures in the notes to the financial statements and
improve aggregation and disaggregation of information to
be disclosed in the financial statements. In addition, some
HKAS 1 paragraphs have been moved to HKAS 8 and
HKFRS 7. Minor amendments to HKAS 7 “Statement of
Cash Flows” and HKAS 33 “Earnings per Share” are also
made.

HKFRS 18, and amendments to other standards, will be
effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 April
2027, with early application permitted. The application of
the new standard is expected to affect the presentation
of the statement of profit or loss and disclosures in the
future financial statements. The Group is in the process of
assessing the detailed impact of HKFRS 18 on the Group’s
consolidated financial statements.
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ERMBREENE18H  UBBRZ2
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2 REEIHIMBRR 22T REE
RE YRR EESERNFEIR 5
BRERZZ5] - FHETER G LR E
EEERGAENFIRPSHEREZR
B sl ARBHEERTE2INEEENRESR
NEHZFRTE MM RRM TP EEE
REZKRBAFTERHERERSERN BT
KPR TERBEZEARSHAAEER 1
S BB EFEREVR 2 OBREER
EEEEENFSR LB EMBRELE
AIE7R -BEGHERETR[BERE
RIREBEBGAEAEIBRE [FREN]
TRE BB RT -

BV BHREERAE18K R EMER 2
BARABR_ZE_+FMA-—Rszi&
Mz FERRBER LR FEMA &
RFEREHSEYERaR 2R
ARMBRRBTE - AEBELENGE
AU BRELENFISREREELEGEE
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SUMMARY OF INVESTMENT PROPERTY

REVMERE

Particulars of investment property held as at 31 March 2025 is as

follows:

Location

1. House 49,
1 Lo Ping Road,
Casa Marina I,
Tai Po, New Territories,
Hong Kong

i HE

B

AR K
ZAE W
BB
4958 |

Usage
k=S

Residential
F=

RZB-_AF=ZA=T-HARHAZREVEF

(=R UNE

Percentage held by

the Group

Term

rEEFAZESL HEH

100%

Middle-term lease

hETE A
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Hong Kong
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ABEBSSTMEBMBRAA
B

#lm0m
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AR ER

Cricket Square

Hutchins Drive

P.O. Box 2681
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B
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EmEE 14155
FREBKE
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